
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
December 07, 2016 1:30 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Agendas are subject to amendment through 

5:00pm on the day prior to City Council Meetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Pastor Waldemar Serrano of Remnant Christian Center 
PLEDGE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council meeting November 16, 2016 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Employee Recognition: 

 Five Year Service Award – Christopher Lenahan – Fire/Suppression 
 Ten Year Service Award – Tamara Hobbick – Administration 
 Ten Year Service Award – Daniel Garcia – Police/Field Services 
 Fifteen Year Service Award – Rhonda Cline – Recreation/Athletics 
 Fifteen Year Service Award – Reagan Rizo – Police/Field Services 

 
Presentations: 

1. Canterwood Manor request for financial assistance presentation.     Jim Swan 
 
Appropriations/Donations/Grants 

1. Authorize the acceptance of the Cops Hiring Program grant and approve the funding. Chief McKinley  
2. Acceptance of a grant award from the Committee of One Hundred of Orange County, Inc. Chief Carnesale 

 
Public Comment Period:  
The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Authorize the renewal of Police Department Mutual Aid Agreements with local jurisdictions. 
2. Authorize the presentation of a service weapon to retired officer. 
3. Authorize the purchase of a 3-D Laser Scanner for the Police Forensics Unit. 
4. Authorize the negotiation of a contract with Motorola for the installation of a northern communication site. 
5. Authorize a contract with the Department of Corrections for an inmate work squad. 
6. Approve the alignment and construction of Brush Drive and a reallocation of funds. 
7. Authorize the purchase of a vehicle for the Fire Department. 
8. Authorize the purchase of one Rear Loader Refuse for the Sanitation Division. 
9. Authorize a Change Order for the Water Reclamation Facility Expansion and Improvements Project. 

10. Award a Professional Services Agreement to update the Land Development Code.   
11. Authorize the disposal of surplus playground equipment and the removal from the city asset list. 

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Final Development Plan & Development Agreement – Emerson North Townhomes - Quasi-Judicial David Moon 
2. Final Development Plan/Plat – Maudehelen, Phase 4 – Quasi-Judicial Rogers Beckett 

 
 
 
 

1



  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 
1. Ordinance No. 2510 – Second Reading – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 74 “Business Tax Receipts” – Legislative Postpone 
2. Ordinance No. 2511 – Second Reading - Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86 “Vehicles for Hire.” – Legislative  Postpone 
3. Ordinance No. 2532 – First Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative Elizabeth Florence 
4. Ordinance No. 2533 – First Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial Elizabeth Florence 
5. Ordinance No. 2534 – First Reading – Comp Plan Amendment – Capital Improvements Element – Legislative Kyle Wilkes 
6. Ordinance No. 2535 – First Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial Kyle Wilkes  
7. Ordinance No. 2536 – First Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative Kyle Wilkes 
8. Ordinance No. 2537 – First Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial Kyle Wilkes 
9. Ordinance No. 2538 – First Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative Kyle Wilkes 

10. Ordinance No. 2539 – First Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial Kyle Wilkes  
11. Ordinance No. 2540 – First Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial Elizabeth Florence 
12. Ordinance No. 2541 – First Reading – Right-of-Way Vacate – Quasi-Judicial Rogers Beckett 
13. Resolution No. 2016-35 - Economic Development Grant and Tax Abatement Agreement – Qorvo US, Inc. James Hitt 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
NOT REQUIRING ACTION 

1. Thank you letter to the Public Services Department from Resident.  
2. Thank you letter from Deanna Killian for the Ann Dupee memorial flowers.   

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

December 10, 2016    10:00am – Apopka Christmas Parade  

December 13, 2016 1:00pm – 3:30pm Council Workshop 

December 13, 2016 5:30pm – 6:00pm Planning Commission Meeting 

December 16, 2016 12:00pm – 2:00pm City Offices will be temporarily closed during this time frame. 

December 21, 2016     7:00pm – Council Meeting 

December 23, 2016 – Holiday – City Offices Closed 

December 26, 2016 – Holiday – City Offices Closed 

December 26, 2016 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

January 2, 2016 – Holiday – City Offices Closed 

January 4, 2016     1:30pm – Council Meeting 

January 5, 2016 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up  

January 10, 2016 5:30pm – 6:00pm Planning Commission Meeting 

January 18, 2016    7:00pm – Council Meeting 

January 23, 2016 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. City Council meeting November 16, 2016 
  

3



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on November 16, 2016, at 7:00 p.m., in 

the City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

PRESS PRESENT:  Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

    Bethany Rodgers, Orlando Sentinel 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

INVOCATION:  Mayor Kilsheimer introduced Pastor Steven Jencks of the Apopka Seventh-

Day Adventist Church, who gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said in the fall of 1620, more than 100 

pilgrims set sail from England aboard the Mayflower and two months later made landfall in 

Plymouth, Massachusetts. Half of the pilgrims perished during the first winter. In the spring, two 

members of local Native American tribes helped the settlers learn how to successfully farm the 

land, and by the following autumn they reaped a bountiful crop. To celebrate the harvest and to 

give thanks, Governor William Bradford called for a feast and invited the local Native American 

tribes who worked alongside the pilgrims to sustain their colony. The tribes and the pilgrims 

hunted together and feasted for three days. It became a yearly tradition for the colonists to 

celebrate their harvest with a feast of Thanksgiving. Abraham Lincoln proclaimed the final 

Thursday in November to be a national holiday in 1863. Later, Franklin D. Roosevelt signed a 

joint resolution of congress in 1941, which established the fourth Thursday of November as a 

national holiday, the day we will celebrate next week as Thanksgiving.  He asked everyone to 

reflect upon the spirit and collaboration between the pilgrims and Native American tribes that 

made it possible for Plymouth to flourish and for our Nation to give thanks as he led in the 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council meeting November 2, 2016. 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to approve 

the minutes of November 2, 2016. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Bankson and Becker voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

Proclamation: 

1. Vietnamese-American Heritage and Freedom Flag Day. 

Mayor Kilsheimer read a proclamation recognizing Vietnamese-American Heritage and 

4



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 16, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 2 

 

Freedom Flag Day presenting it to John McKinney from Tavares. Mr. McKinney 

recognized other Vietnamese-Americans’ with him.  

 

Presentation: 

Mayor Kilsheimer and the Council presented Debbie Turner Cancer Center with a check in the 

amount of $1,000 from the money raised in October during breast cancer awareness month.  

 

Public Comment: 

Pastor Richard King said he was here to request City Council’s support in providing the 

amphitheater venue and all associated costs as an in-kind donation to the Apopka Faith Alliance 

as they facilitate the Apopka Family Faith and Food Festival on January 7, 2017.  He stated Ed 

Walls was present in support of youth sports and they also support anyone helping the youth.  

 

Pastor Hezekiah Bradford thanked the City for the repaving of Hawthorne Road. He also spoke of 

the Apopka Family Faith and Food Festival on January 7, 2017, and requested support from the 

City as one of the sponsors of this event.  

 

Rod Love echoed the prior comments regarding the venue and requesting in-kind donation from 

the City for the event on January 7, 2017. He also recognized Ed Walls being present to speak on 

Apopka youth sports and stated he supported youth sports as it keeps children off the streets and 

helps them learn to build character. 

 

Ray Shackelford said he supported a partnership between the City and the Faith Family and Food 

Festival. He called on the City of Apopka to consider a naming opportunity whereby businesses 

and corporations could contribute funds in naming a field on their behalf to help defer costs for 

the Apopka youth sports teams.  

 

Shirley Sharpe Terrell said she was in favor of the recommendation made by Pastor King to 

support the Faith and Family Food Festival and asked the City be favorable in waiving these 

costs.  

 

Pastor Manny Rosario said we have a great opportunity as a City to come together with the faith 

community to do something to mark the City in a positive way. 

 

Pastor Darrell Morgan said he was Vice President of the Apopka Christian Ministerial Alliance 

and said he was talking with Pastor Bradford and Rod Love over a year ago and they talked about 

bringing in music and the gospel for young people to hear. He stated he was excited about the 

Faith Family, and Food Festival and asked that the City work and partner with them.  

 

Ed Walls said he has been a resident for 17 years and he thanked the pastors for their support. He 

spoke of a recent negative affect to the Apopka Youth Sports organization due to an oversight by 

the City that cost their program $7,500 by not honoring a reserved date of October 29, 2016. He 

said they had to contact 24 organizations and cancel an event due to the date being double 

booked. He said this was embarrassing to their organization and the City. He asked the Council 

compensate their program for $7,500 for the loss suffered by having to cancel their event.  He 

requested with the tax increase that all fees for youth organizations be abolished.  

 

5



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 16, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 3 

 

CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the Disbursement Report for the month of October, 2016. 

2. Approve the final extension of the consulting service contracts for Professional Engineering 

Services. 

3. Authorize an expenditure from the Law Enforcement Trust Funds for undercover 

operations. 

4. Authorize the purchase of capital equipment for utility construction and water maintenance. 

5. Authorize the purchase of capital equipment for the Streets Division. 

6. Authorize Amendment #1 of the Cost-Share Agreement Contract for the Water Reclamation 

Facility with SJRWMD. 

7. Authorize a Cost-Share Agreement Contract for the Water Conservation Program with 

SJRWMD. 

8. Award a contract to Dell Financial Services for the lease of Police Department Laptops. 

9. Authorize a contract for the construction of Phase #1 of the Water Reclamation Facility 

Expansion and Improvements project. 

10. Award a pre-construction services contract to Miller Construction Management Inc., for the 

Fire Station 5 project. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to approve 

the ten items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Bankson and Becker voting aye. 

 

BUSINESS 

1. Final Development Plan – Canterwood Manor Assisted Living Facility (ALF) 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was a quasi-judicial hearing and witnesses were sworn in by 

the clerk. 

 

David Moon, Planning Manager, provided a brief lead-in for the Final Development Plan 

(FDP), Canterwood Manor Assisted Living Facility, stating it proposes a 125 bed Assisted 

Living Facility, an 89,000 sq. ft. building with 70 parking spaces. The Preliminary 

Development Plan (PDP) was previously approved by Council and this is the last step prior to 

the developer, MJM Associates moving to construction. DRC found the FDP to be consistent 

with the PDP and the PUD ordinance, and recommends approval.  

 

Joel Hass, Sr. Executive of MJM and Associates, was present for any questions. He thanked 

the City staff and said they were looking forward to starting the project. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to approve 

the Final Development Plan for Canterwood Manor Assisted Living Facility, as 

presented and issue the Final Development Order. Motion carried unanimously with 

Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting 

aye. 

 

 

6



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 16, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 4 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2524 – Second Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment.  The 

title was read by the City Clerk as follows: 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced Ordinance No. 2524 was legislative and Ordinance No. 2525 

was quasi-judicial. Witnesses were sworn in by the clerk. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2524 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” LOW 
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (0-4 DU/AC) TO “CITY” OFFICE (MAX. FAR 
0.30),  FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED 
WEST OF SOUTH PARK AVENUE, EAST OF SOUTH CENTRAL 
AVENUE, SOUTH OF E G H WASHINGTON STREET, NORTH OF 
EAST 12TH STREET, COMPRISING 0.52 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND 
OWNED BY APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Kyle Wilkes, Planner, said this was the second reading for a small scale future land use map 

amendment. DRC recommends approval.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez disclosed ex parte communication stating she visited the facility at 

Turkey Lake and her concerns were addressed.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer, Commissioner Bankson, and Commissioner Becker also disclosed ex parte 

communication, advising they also individually toured the facility.  

 

Wendy Packer, Central Florida Recovery Centers, said they currently have a full service 

counseling and recovery center in Orlando. She stated they were excited to bring their service 

to Apopka and reviewed their services. She affirmed they plan on getting involved with the 

City and bring education to the children in the area and bring a positive influence to the City. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Rod Love said that he, Pastor Bradford, and Pastor King had an opportunity to speak to the 

applicants and they do believe there is a need for treatment. However, there are some concerns 

and he advised the applicant is interested in the Apopka Task Force. He maintained the 

position of not supporting as well as not being against it.  

 

Dr. Ghulldu thanked the Mayor and Commissioners for visiting the Turkey Lake facility. He 

stated at a community meeting they had almost full acceptance. He asked consideration of a 

privacy fence with a waiver of the two walls.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

7



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 16, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 5 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2524. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2525 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning. The City Clerk read the title 

as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2525 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 
THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” R-3 (RESIDENTIAL) TO PLANNED 
UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD-PO/I-RESIDENTIAL); FOR CERTAIN 
REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF SOUTH PARK 
AVENUE, EAST OF SOUTH CENTRAL AVENUE, SOUTH OF EAST G. 
H. WASHINGTON STREET, NORTH OF EAST 12TH STREET, 
COMPRISING 0.52 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY APOPKA 
HOLDINGS, LLC; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

David Moon, Planning Manager, advised City Council can take action upon the waiver 

request. He advised it is a Planned Unit Development, which allows flexibility and special 

design. He stated the intent of the Land Development Code did not provide a means to 

circumvent a regulation and provide something that would be considered less quality. He 

advised this request was not made prior to the Planning Commission meeting and was not 

reviewed by the Planning Commission. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2525. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2526 – Second Reading – Temporary Moratorium – Dispensing of 

Medical Cannabis. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2526 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON 

THE DISPENSING OF MEDICAL CANNABIS WITHIN THE CITY OF 

APOPKA; PROHIBITING ANY AND ALL DISPENSING OF MEDICAL 

CANNABIS DURING THE MORATORIUM PERIOD FOR ANY 

PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY OF APOPKA; ADOPTING FINDINGS 

OF FACT; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS; AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

8



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 16, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 6 

 

The following spoke in opposition to the moratorium on dispensing of medical marijuana for 

such reasons of the opportunity to open jobs in the area, limiting the opportunity of obtaining 

investors for an additional two potential grow areas, and a request to exclude the designated 

grow zones. It was also reiterated that this was for medical cannabis.  

 

Jose Sikaffy 

Glen Treadwell 

Raymond Hogshead 

Rod Hogshead 

Bob Barkett 

Bill Dewar 

Fred Curley 

Michael Stone 

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

Chief McKinley said he understands the concerns on the moratorium, but he stated the City 

has changed in the last year and a half, stating the grow areas are now surrounded by 

subdivisions.  He stated looking at history, Colorado started with medical marijuana and he 

gave statistics of related crimes.  He added that this is not federally regulated. He affirmed 

the Department of Health has been provided six months to develop regulations.  

 

City Attorney Shepard said the City adopted Ordinance No. 2388 in anticipation of the 

Charlotte’s Web statute that passed and also the potential of medical marijuana in 2015 that 

did not pass at that time.  The idea was to put something on the books to provide the City the 

ability to control its own destiny if this did pass, which it now has, and if the state chose to 

pre-empt us from regulating our own. However, the state could pre-empt the ordinance. He 

stated there will be no dispensing until the Department of Health has the rules done. This six 

month moratorium to allow the City to look at our law to make sure it is compliant with what 

comes out, in practical effect will not affect anyone.  He advised that just based upon the 

amendment, there are already portions of our ordinance that are problematic.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding public safety, if certain areas could be excluded from the 

moratorium, and the time frame in conjunction with the state providing six months for the 

Department of Health to set guidelines.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2526. Motion carried three/two with Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, and Bankson voting aye, and Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioner Becker 

voting nay. 

 

Council recessed at 9:14 p.m. and reconvened at 9:20 p.m. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2528 – Second Reading – Annexation. The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

 

 

9



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 16, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 7 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2528 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY ADAMS BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. 
LOCATED WEST OF SHEELER AVENUE AND SOUTH OF EAST 13TH 
STREET; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2528. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2529 – Second Reading – Annexation. The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2529 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY SHIRLEY L. LITTLE LIFE ESTATE LOCATED WEST OF 
CENTRAL AVENUE AND NORTH OF OAK STREET; PROVIDING FOR 
DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2529. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2530 – Second Reading – Annexation. The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2530 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY JERRY OWENS AND LINDA S. OWENS LOCATED WEST 
OF MARDEN ROAD AND SOUTH OF KEENE ROAD; PROVIDING FOR 
DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

10



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 16, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 8 

 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2530. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

7. Ordinance No. 2531 – Second Reading – Annexation. The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2531 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY WON CHUL LEE, MYONG SEA LEE, BONG JIN CHOE 
AND CHONG SOON CHOE LOCATED EAST OF PLYMOUTH 
SORRENTO ROAD AND NORTH OF KELLY PARK ROAD; 
PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

postpone Ordinance No. 2531 to the December 21, 2016 meeting. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, 

and Bankson voting aye. 

 

8. Resolution 2016-34 – Workers’ Comp Legislative Review. The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-34 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF APOPKA FLORIDA REQUESTING 

THE FLORIDA LEGISLATURE AMEND CHAPTER 440, FLORIDA 

STATUTES, TO ADDRESS THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT’S 

RECENT DECISIONS RELATED TO FLORIDA’S WORKERS’ 

COMPENSATION SYSTEM. 

 

Sharon Thornton, Human Resource Director, said recently there were some Supreme Court 

decisions that removed the cap on attorney fees, as well as the limit on temporary total 

disability.  She said this was in support to ask the legislature to review the worker’s 

compensation system.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public comment. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public comment. 

 

11



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 16, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 9 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Resolution No. 2016-34. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

Mayor said they have had public comment and will now hold discussion between the City 

Council and Staff regarding the request by the Ministerial Alliance.  He asked the City Attorney 

to provide input. 

 

City Attorney Shepard said the issue raised is whether the City Council can waive fees for a 

religious event. He said the answer was yes you can, however, the persuading factor is what this 

means to them as a community. He pointed out a fee structure was adopted some time back that 

is to apply to all community organizations and this applies when the city venues are used. He 

stated this was put in place so they were not put in a position to choose between the merits of one 

organization over another. He advised the Supreme Court term for this is “view point 

discrimination” and he gave several court examples before the Supreme Court stating it was not 

so much the separation of church and state as much as it was the regulation of the message. He 

affirmed if you waive for one message, then you must waive for all.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding partnering on the event and Commissioner Becker inquired if 

Council had the discretion. 

 

City Attorney Shepard said Council can take the risk, but his advice would be to stay out of this 

situation since a policy determination has been made. Following further discuss, he suggested 

the organizers contact the Mayor Land Community Trust, which was set up for matters such as 

this.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer asked David Burgoon to comment on Mr. Walls’ request. 

 

David Burgoon, Recreation Director, explained that he and Mr. Walls met a few times about 

their playoff schedules. He said in those conversations he told Mr. Walls to send him the dates 

and they would block them.  He stated since those conversations, he received an email from Mr. 

Walls about a football game the week prior to October 29, 2016, and to his knowledge that was 

the games they were talking about.  Three days later AAU was requesting the field and it was 

available and offered to them.  In the same week he was notified from one of his staff members 

that they had games coming up that was not on the books. He informed Pop Warner there was 

already a schedule for October 29, 2016 and AAU had already paid their fees for that day, 

therefore, they were not available. This is why he is here to request reimbursement for the fees 

he lost from that day.  

 

It was the consensus of City Council that this discussion be continued by Mr. Irby and staff with 

Mr. Irby keeping Council informed.  

 

MAYOR’S REPORT – Mayor Kilsheimer reported this past week the Chair of Lake Apopka 

Natural Gas Board, Ann Dupee, passed away. The City of Apopka was represented at her 

Celebration of Life ceremony by Commissioner Dean, Glenn Irby, Jim Hitt, and former 

Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith. 

12



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 16, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 10 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 10:22 p.m. 
 

 

 

        ___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST; 

 

___________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

13



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Canterwood Manor request for financial assistance presentation.    Jim Swan 
  

14



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  December 07, 2016  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:               Administration  

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

 X   OTHER: Presentation  
  

 

SUBJECT: CANTERWOOD MANOR REQUEST FOR FINANICAL ASSISTANCE   

 

REQUEST: THEIR DESIRE TO ISSUE DEBT WITH ASSISTANCE FROM THE CITY OF 

APOPKA 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Canterwood Manor will present their desire to seek financial assistance for their project with the support 

of the City of Apopka in a form necessary to issue debt via a special bond.  During this presentation the 

Council will hear from the City’s Bond Attorney Mike Williams of Akerman, LLP and Canterwood 

Manor representative Jim Swan of Stifel, Nicolaus and Company from New York City.  Collectively and 

individually the process of how this debt is issued and why the city is needed will be explained.   

 

Should the Council decide to allow Canterwood Manor’s request to proceed, a resolution would need to 

be considered and adopted at a later date.  As you will hear at some point during the presentation, the City 

would in no way be obligated or responsible for this debt; furthermore, the City will bear no expense for 

attorneys or other necessities related to this debt.  All costs would be the responsibility of Canterwood 

Manor.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Hear the presentation as presented by a Canterwood Manor representative.   
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

15



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Authorize the acceptance of the Cops Hiring Program grant and approve the funding. Chief McKinley  
  

16



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA       MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING       FROM: Police Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS       EXHIBITS:       

   X    OTHER: Appropriations/Donations/Grants 
  

 

SUBJECT: COPS HIRING PROGRAM GRANT 

 

REQUEST: GRANT ACCEPTANCE 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Apopka Police Department (Department), through the Office of Community Oriented Policing 

Services (COPS Office), has been awarded a grant for 5 officer positions under the 2016 COPS Hiring 

Program (CHP).  The estimated amount of Federal funds to be awarded to the Department over the 3-year 

award period is $625,000.  The local cash match for the grant will be $339,800 over the 3-year period.  

The CHP award funding may be used to hire the new officers on or after the official award start date of 

September 1, 2016.  CHP award recipients must retain all sworn officer positions funded under the 2016 

CHP award for a minimum of 12 months, following the 36-month Federal funding period.  The retained 

CHP-funded position(s) should be added to the law enforcement budget with local funds, over and above 

the number of locally-funded positions that would have existed in the absence of the award. 

 

Acceptance of this grant will afford the City of Apopka (City) the opportunity to put 5 more police 

officers on the street with less of a budgetary impact on the City.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Existing police budget (FY 2016-2017) will be used to fund the City’s first year portion of the accepted 

grant.  A budget amendment will be forthcoming to fund the first year grant portion.  The grant portion 

will be a reimbursable expense through the CHP grant program.  Future years will be included within 

future year budgets.     
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the acceptance of the CHP grant and approve the funding scenario as outlined.  

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

17



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Acceptance of a grant award from the Committee of One Hundred of Orange County, Inc.  Chief Carnesale 
  

18



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:            December 7, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:                            Fire Department            

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:                          Award Letter     

  X     OTHER: Appropriations/Donations/Grants 
  

 

SUBJECT: GRANT AWARD FROM THE COMMITTEE OF ONE HUNDRED OF ORANGE 

COUNTY, INC.  

 

REQUEST: ACCEPTANCE OF THE GRANT AWARD FROM THE COMMITTEE OF ONE 

HUNDRED OF ORANGE COUNTY, INC. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Fire Department has been awarded a grant from the Committee of One Hundred of Orange County, 

Inc., in the amount of $6,495. These funds will be used to purchase a Unimac K2M Washer to protect 

firefighters from exposure of carcinogens and other harmful pollutants. The purchase of the Unimac K2M 

Washer will allow the department to meet the cleaning requirements of NFPA 1851 standards. 

 

In the FY 16/17 budget, the Fire Department budgeted $7,500 to purchase the Unimac K2M Washer.  With 

this grant, only $2,500 of that budgeted amount will be needed to complete the purchase.  The additional 

$5,000 will be returned to reserves. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Acceptance of the grant award, in the amount of $6,495, from the Committee of One Hundred of Orange 

County, Inc. 

 
 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

19



20



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Authorize the renewal of Police Department Mutual Aid Agreements with local jurisdictions. 
  

21



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  December 7, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Police Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:   

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: MUTUAL AID AGREEMENTS. 
 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE RENEWAL OF MUTUAL AID AGREEMENTS WITH LOCAL 

JURISDICTIONS 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Florida Statute allows law enforcement agencies to enter into agreements so they may adequately 

respond with each other to continuing multi-jurisdictional law enforcement problems, to protect the 

public peace and safety, and preserve lives and property.  There are existing agreements and this 

request will allow the Chief of Police to renew the agreements which are set to expire.  The Apopka 

Police Department’s legal counsel has reviewed and accepted the agreements.  

 

NOTE: The mutual aid agreements are on file in the Police Department. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Police Chief to renew the mutual aid agreements.  
  
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

22



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Authorize the presentation of a service weapon to retired officer. 
  

23



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  December 7, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Police Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:   

       OTHER:  
  

 

 

SUBJECT:  PRESENTATION OF SERVICE WEAPON 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PRESENTATION OF A SERVICE WEAPON TO A 

RETIRING MEMBER OF THE POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 

  
 

SUMMARY:  

 

The Police Department requests City Council authorization to present a service weapon to a retiring 

member of the Police Department to recognize the member’s credited service to the City of Apopka and 

its citizens. 

Officer Steven Gideon served 20 years. The weapon to be presented at a later date is a Glock 21 Semi-

Automatic Handgun with Serial Number YSA 959.  

  
 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A 

    
 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Police Chief to present the item to the retiring members of the agency in recognition of their 

years of service to the City of Apopka and its citizens. 

 
  
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

24



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Authorize the purchase of a 3-D Laser Scanner for the Police Forensics Unit. 
  

25



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  December 7, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Police Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:              Quote 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: CAPTIAL EQUIPMENT 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF A 3D LASER SCANNER 

 

 

SUMMARY:  

 

Funded in this year’s budget is equipment to improve the forensics capabilities of the Apopka Police 

Department.  This purchase request is for a 3D LASER scanner.  LASER scanners are latest in technology 

for quick and accurate indoor and outdoor measurements in three dimensions recording of investigation 

scenes 

 

The selected device will enable forensics technicians to capture fast, straightforward, and accurate 

measurements of complex objects and buildings, and capture detailed imagery.  

 

Description          Cost 

FARO Technologies 3D Scanner with associated hardware and software  $99,932.10 

 

FARO Technologies is a local (Central Florida) company; and during evaluation by staff, was found to be 

the device utilized by most Central Florida law enforcement agencies.  This device is on Federal GSA 

contract (GS24F0044M).   

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Police – Equipment & Machinery  

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the purchase.  

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

26



 

27



 

28



 

29



 

30



 

31



 

32



 

33



 

34



 

35



 

36



 

37



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Authorize the negotiation of a contract with Motorola for the installation of a northern communication site. 
  

38



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  December 7, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Police Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:               

       OTHER:   
  

SUBJECT:   NORTHERN COMMUNICATIONS SITE.  

 

REQUEST:  AUTHORIZE THE NEGOTIATION OF A CONTRACT WITH MOTOROLA. 
  
SUMMARY:  
The City’s existing Motorola communications radio site (prime site) was constructed around 1988 and, at the time, 

was generally located within the center of the City of Apopka (City).  Since then, the City has grown in both land 

area and population. This growth was directed generally to the north, to the Lake County line; and west, to 

Plymouth.  Initially, the annexation of open areas had no direct impact on the radio communication coverage of the 

system; however, due to the increased construction on the north and west ends of the City, coverage for general 

City services and public safety communications has diminished.  Motorola has provided public safety and general 

services radio communications for the City for well over 3 decades. More than 2 years ago, the Apopka Police 

Department began consulting with Motorola engineers to improve and expand the coverage in these impacted areas.  

The engineers and staff determined the prime site needed hardware and software upgrades; and a second site was 

necessary in order to take the radio system into the future, based upon City size and demographics.  In the 2015-16 

budget, the City allocated funds to execute an upgrade to the existing prime site.  During the preparation of the 

2016-17 budget, funding was allocated for a second site in the north of the City. The initial prime site upgrades 

have been completed and staff is ready to move forward with the negotiation and execution of the contract for the 

northern tower site.  

 

This request is to allow staff to consult with Motorola, and negotiate and execute a contract, to identify a northern 

location for this facility.  Due to consistency in product, Motorola Solutions, Inc., is a sole source provider for 

services and equipment in order to expand the City’s communications network.  The approved funding in this 

budget is $2,800,000 for construction, equipment installation, and engineering, and will be financed.  This request 

includes a direction for staff to negotiate competitive financing.  The City will be responsible for the initial site 

preparation and with this responsibility, the Department requests to use up to $50,000 of the allocated funding for 

site preparation, if necessary.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
Police Communications, Machinery and Equipment - FY16/17 Budget   

 Tower site construction, equipment installation     $2,750,000 

Site preparation             $     50,000    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

Authorize the Mayor, or Designee, to execute the contract on behalf of the City.   
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

39



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Authorize a contract with the Department of Corrections for an inmate work squad.. 
  

40



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:       Public Services 

    SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:    

    OTHER 
  

 

SUBJECT: INMATE WORK SQUADS CONTRACT  
  

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT WITH THE 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

On February 4, 2015, City Council approved Inmate Work Squad Contract. The contract will expire April 

11, 2017. 

 

The Department of Corrections has established a new contract and has requested the City execute it. The 

contract will be effective for a one-year term, beginning April 12, 2017, and is subject to one (1) one-year 

extension, with the same terms and conditions. The cost is $57,497.00 per year, the same as the prior 

years.  

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Funding is included in the Street Improvement Fund – Inmate Division FY17 Budget.     
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to sign a contract with the Department of Corrections for an inmate 

work squad. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director  

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Contract 

41



CONTRACT # W1095 

Page 1 of 12 
Master Document Revised 10/2016 

CONTRACT BETWEEN 

 

THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

 

AND 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

 
 

This Contract is between the Florida Department of Corrections (“Department”) and the City of Apopka 

("Agency"), which are the parties hereto. 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, Section 944.10(7) and Section 946.40, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Rules 33-601.201 and 33-601.202, 

Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), provide for the use of inmate labor in work programs; 

 

WHEREAS, inmate labor will be used for the purposes of providing services and performing work under the 

supervision of the Department’s staff; 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Apopka is a qualified and willing participant with the Department to contract for an 

inmate work squad(s); and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto find it to be in their best interests to enter into this Contract, and in recognition of 

the mutual benefits and considerations set forth, the parties hereto covenant and agree as follows: 

 

I. CONTRACT TERM/RENEWAL 

 

A. Contract Term 

 

This Contract shall begin on April 12, 2017, or the last date of signature by all parties, whichever 

is later. 

 

 This Contract shall end at midnight one (1) year from the last date of signature by all parties or 

April 11, 2018, whichever is later.  In the event this Contract is signed by the parties on different 

dates, the latter date shall control. 

 

B. Contract Renewal 

 

This Contract may be renewed for up to a one (1) year period, in whole or part, after the initial 

Contract period upon the same terms and conditions contained herein.  The Contract renewal is at 

the Agency’s initiative with the concurrence of the Department.  The decision to exercise the 

option to renew should be made no later than 60 days prior to the Contract expiration. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



CONTRACT # W1095 

Page 2 of 12 
Master Document Revised 10/2016 

II. SCOPE OF CONTRACT 

 

A.  Administrative Functions 

 

1. Each party shall cooperate with the other in any litigation or claims against the other party as a 

result of unlawful acts committed by an inmate(s) performing services under this Contract 

between the parties. 

 

2. Each party will retain responsibility for its personnel, and its fiscal and general administrative 

services to support this Contract. 

 

3. Through their designated representatives, the parties shall collaborate on the development of 

policies and operational procedures for the effective management and operation of this 

Contract. 

 

B. Description of Services 

 

1. Responsibilities of the Department 

 

a. Pursuant to Chapter 33-601.202(2)(a), F.A.C., supervision of the work squad(s) will be 

provided by the Department.  The Department shall provide one (1) Correctional Work 

Squad Officer position(s) to supervise an inmate work squad(s).  This Contract provides 

for one (1) work squad of up to six (6) inmates.   

 

b. The Department shall ensure the availability of the work squad(s) except: when weather 

conditions are such that to check the squad(s) out would breach good security practices; 

when the absence of the Correctional Work Squad Officer is necessary for reasons of 

required participation in training or approved use of leave; when the officer’s presence is 

required at the institution to assist with an emergency situation; when the officer is ill; or 

when the Correctional Work Squad Officer position is vacant.  In the event a position 

becomes vacant, the Department shall make every effort to fill the position(s) within five 

(5) business days. 

 

c. For security and other reasons, the Department shall keep physical custody of the vehicle 

furnished by the Agency. Unless otherwise specified, the Agency shall maintain physical 

custody of all Agency trailers and all tools, equipment, supplies, materials, and personal 

work items (gloves, boots, hard hats, etc.) furnished to the Department by the Agency.  

The Agency is responsible for the maintenance of all furnished equipment. 

 

d. In the event of damage to property as a result of an accident charged to a Department 

employee or blatant acts of vandalism by inmates, or loss of tools and equipment, the 

Agency may request that the Department replace or repair to previous condition the 

damaged or lost property. 

 

e. The Department shall be reimbursed by the Agency for the Department’s costs associated 

with this Contract in accordance with Addendum A. Once the Agency reimburses the 

Department for the costs reflected on Addendum A, Section II., these items will be placed 

on the Department’s property records, as appropriate, and upon the end or termination of 

this Contract such items will be transferred to the Agency. 

43



CONTRACT # W1095 

Page 3 of 12 
Master Document Revised 10/2016 

 

f. The Department shall, to the maximum extent possible, maintain stability in the inmate 

work force assigned to the work squad on a day-to-day basis in order to maximize the 

effectiveness of the work squad. 

 

g. The Department shall provide food and drinks for inmates’ lunches. 

 

h. The Department shall be responsible for the apprehension of an escapee and handling of 

problem inmates.  The Department shall provide transportation from the work site to the 

correctional facility for inmates who refuse to work, become unable to work, or cause a 

disruption in the work schedule. 

 

i. The Department shall be responsible for administering all disciplinary action taken against 

an inmate for infractions committed while performing work under this Contract. 

 

j. The Department shall provide for medical treatment of ill or injured inmates and 

transportation of such inmates. 

 

k. The Department shall provide inmates with all personal items of clothing appropriate for 

the season of the year. 

 

l. The Department shall be responsible for driving the Correctional Work Squad Officer and 

the inmates to and from the work site. 

 

m. Both parties agree that the Department is making no representations as to the level of skills 

of the work squad. 

 

2. Responsibilities of the Agency 

 

a. The Agency shall periodically provide the Department’s Contract Manager with a 

schedule of work to be accomplished under the terms of this Contract.  Deviation from the 

established schedule shall be reported to, and coordinated with, the Department. 

 

b. If required, the Agency shall obtain licenses or permits for the work to be performed. The 

Agency shall provide supervision and guidance for projects that require a permit or which 

require technical assistance to complete the project. 

 

c. The Agency shall ensure that all projects utilizing inmates are authorized projects of the 

municipality, city, county, governmental Agency, or non-profit organization and that 

private contractors employed by the Agency do not use inmates as any part of their labor 

force. 

 

d. The Agency shall retain ownership of any vehicles or equipment provided by the Agency 

for the work squad.  The Agency shall maintain its own inventory of transportation, tools, 

and equipment belonging to the Agency. 

 

e. The Agency shall provide vehicles for transportation of the work squads and is responsible 

for the maintenance of said vehicle. 

 

 

44



CONTRACT # W1095 

Page 4 of 12 
Master Document Revised 10/2016 

3. Communications Equipment 

 
It is the intent of this Contract that the work squad maintains communication with the 
institution at all times.  A method of communication (radios, cellular phone, etc.), shall be 
provided at no cost to the Department.  The Agency shall provide a primary method of 
communication that shall be approved by the Department’s Contract Manager in writing prior 
to assignment of the work squad.  Depending upon the method of communication provided, the 
Department’s Contract Manager may require a secondary or back-up method of 
communication. 

 
All radio communication equipment owned or purchased by the Agency that is programmed to 
the Department’s radio frequency and used by the work squad(s), whether purchased by the 
Department or the Agency, shall be IMMEDIATELY deprogrammed by the Department at no 
cost to the Agency upon the end or termination of this Contract.  Under no circumstances shall 
the Agency accept the return of radio communications equipment provided to the Department 
under this Contract until such time as the radio communications equipment has been 
deprogrammed by the Department. 

 
At the end or termination of this Contract, the Department's Contract Manager will contact the 
Department's Utility Systems/Communications Engineer in the Bureau of Security Operations 
to effect the deprogramming of radio communications equipment provided by the Agency. 

 
a. Vehicle Mounted Radios: 

 
Vehicles provided by the Agency, that are or that will be equipped with a mobile/vehicle 
mounted radio programmed to the Department's radio frequency(ies), will be retained by 
the Department to ensure security of the communication equipment except for short 
durations dictated by the need for vehicle and/or communications equipment maintenance 
and/or repair.  The use of these vehicle(s) during the period covered by this Contract shall 
not be for any purpose other than as indicated in this Contract. 

 

b. Hand Held Radios: 

 

Hand held radios provided by the Agency, that are or that will be programmed to the 

Department's radio frequency(ies), will be retained by the Department to ensure security of 

the communication equipment except for short durations dictated by the need for 

maintenance and/or repair.  The use of any hand held radio(s) provided by the Agency that 

is programmed to a Department radio frequency utilized by the Agency during the period 

covered by this Contract shall not be for any purpose other than as indicated in this 

Contract. 

 

c. Cellular Phones: 

 

Cellular phones may be utilized by the Correctional Work Squad Officer as either a 

primary or secondary means of communication as approved by the Department’s Contract 

Manager.  The Department’s Contract Manager shall designate whether the usage of a 

cellular phone is required on Addendum A.  The cellular phone will be retained by the 

Department and, upon the end or termination of this Contract, returned to the Agency.  

The use of the cellular phone is not authorized for any purposes other than as indicated in 

this Contract. 

 

 

45



CONTRACT # W1095 

Page 5 of 12 
Master Document Revised 10/2016 

4. Other Equipment 

 

The Department’s Contract Manager shall determine if an enclosed trailer is required for the 

work squad to transport tools and equipment utilized in the performance of this Contract, and 

shall notify the Agency if a trailer is necessary.  The Department’s Contract Manager shall 

designate whether the usage of an enclosed trailer is required on Addendum A.  

 

If a trailer is required, it will be provided by the Agency at no cost to the Department.  If the 

Department is to maintain control of the trailer when the squad is not working, the Agency 

shall provide an enclosed trailer that can be secured when not in use.  All tools and equipment 

utilized by the work squad shall be secured in the trailer.  The Department shall maintain an 

inventory of all property, expendable and non-expendable, which is in the custody and control 

of the Department.  Upon the end or termination of this Contract, the trailer and any non-

expendable items will be returned to the Agency. 

 

III. COMPENSATION 

 

A.  Payment to the Department 

 

1. Total Operating Capital To Be Advanced By The Agency, as delineated in Section IV., of 

Addendum A, shall be due and payable upon execution of the Contract.  The Department will 

not proceed with the purchase until payment, in full, has been received and processed by the 

Department’s Bureau of Finance and Accounting.  Delays in receipt of these funds may result 

in start-up postponement or interruption of the services provided by the work squad. 

 

2. Total Costs To Be Billed To The Agency By Contract, as delineated in Section VI., of 

Addendum A, will be made quarterly, in advance, with the first payment equaling one-fourth 

of the total amount, due within two (2) weeks after the effective date of the Contract. The 

second quarterly payment is due no later than the 20th day of the last month of the first 

Contract quarter.  Payment for subsequent consecutive quarters shall be received no later than 

the 20th day of the last month of the preceding Contract quarter. 

 

3. In the event the Correctional Work Squad Officer position becomes vacant and remains vacant 

for a period of more than five (5) business days, the next or subsequent billing will be adjusted 

by the Department for services not provided. 

 

4. The Agency shall insure any vehicles owned by the Agency used under this Contract.   

 

5. The rate of compensation shall remain in effect through the term of the Contract or subsequent 

to legislative change.  In the event there is an increase/decrease in costs identified in 

Addendum A, this Contract shall be amended to adjust to such new rates. 

 

B. Official Payee 

 

The name and address of the Department’s official payee to whom payment shall be made is as 

follows: 

 

 

 

46



CONTRACT # W1095 

Page 6 of 12 
Master Document Revised 10/2016 

Department of Corrections 
Bureau of Finance and Accounting  
Attn:  Professional Accountant Supervisor 
Centerville Station 
Call Box 13600 
Tallahassee, Florida  32317-3600 

 
C. Submission of Invoice(s) 

 
The name, address, and phone number of the Agency’s official representative to whom invoices 
shall be submitted is: 
 
Dennis F. Carter 
City of Apopka 
748 E. Cleveland Street 
Apopka, Florida 32704-1229 
Telephone: 407-703-1731 
Fax: 407-703-1748 
Email:  dcarter@apopka.net 

 
IV. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 
 

The Department will be responsible for the project management of this Contract.  The Department has 
assigned the following named individuals, address, and phone number as indicated, as Contract Manager 
and Contract Administrator for the Project. 
 

 A. Department’s Contract Manager 
 

The Warden of the Correctional Institution represented in this Contract is designated Contract 
Manager for the Department and is responsible for enforcing performance of the Contract terms 
and conditions and shall serve as a liaison with the Agency.  The position, address, and telephone 
number of the Department’s Contract Manager for this Contract is: 
 
Warden 
Central Florida Reception Center 
7000 H.C. Kelley Road 
Orlando, Florida 32831  
Telephone:   (407) 207-7700 
 

B. Department’s Contract Administrator 
 

The Contract Administrator is responsible for maintaining a Contract file on this Contract service 
and will serve as a liaison with the Contract Manager for the Department.   
 
The address and telephone number of the Department’s Contract Administrator for this Contract 
is: 
 
Contract Administrator 
Bureau of Procurement 
Florida Department of Corrections 
501 South Calhoun Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500 
Telephone: (850) 717-3681 
Fax: (850) 488-7189 

47



CONTRACT # W1095 

Page 7 of 12 
Master Document Revised 10/2016 

C. Agency’s Representative 
 

The name, address, and telephone number of the representative of the Agency is: 
 

Dennis F. Carter 

City of Apopka 

748 E. Cleveland Street 

Apopka, Florida 32704-1229 

Telephone: 407-703-1731 

Fax: 407-703-1748 
 

D. Changes to Designees 
 

In the event that different representatives are designated by either party after execution of this 
Contract, notice of the name and address of the new representatives will be rendered in writing to 
the other party and said notification attached to originals of this Contract. 
 

V. CONTRACT MODIFICATIONS 
 

Modifications to provisions of this Contract shall only be valid when they have been rendered in writing 
and duly signed by both parties.  The parties agree to renegotiate this Contract if stated revisions of any 
applicable laws, regulations, or increases/decreases in allocations make changes to this Contract necessary. 

 
VI. TERMINATION/CANCELLATION 

 
Termination at Will 
 
This Contract may be terminated by either party upon no less than 30 calendar days notice, without cause, 
unless a lesser time is mutually agreed upon by both parties.  Said notice shall be delivered by certified 
mail (return receipt requested), by other method of delivery whereby an original signature is obtained, or 
in-person with proof of delivery.  In the event of termination, the Department will be paid for all costs 
incurred and hours worked up to the time of termination.  The Department shall reimburse the Agency any 
advance payments, prorated as of last day worked. 

 
VII. CONDITIONS 
 

A. Records 
 

The Agency agrees to allow the Department and the public access to any documents, papers, 

letters, or other materials subject to the provisions of Chapter 119 and Section 945.10, F.S., made 

or received by the Agency in conjunction with this Contract. The Agency’s refusal to comply with 

this provision shall constitute sufficient cause for termination of this Contract. 

B. Annual Appropriation 
 

The Department’s performance under this Contract is contingent upon an annual appropriation by 
the legislature.  It is also contingent upon receipt of payments as outlined in Addendum A and in 
Section III., COMPENSATION. 
 

C. Disputes 
 

Any dispute concerning performance of the Contract shall be resolved informally by the 
Department’s Contract Manager.  Any dispute that cannot be resolved informally shall be reduced 

48



CONTRACT # W1095 

Page 8 of 12 
Master Document Revised 10/2016 

to writing and delivered to the Director of Institutional Operations. The Director shall decide the 
dispute, reduce the decision to writing, and deliver a copy to the Agency with a copy to the 
Department’s Contract Administrator and Contract Manager. 
 

 D. Force Majeure 
 

Neither party shall be liable for loss or damage suffered as a result of any delay or failure in performance 
under this Contract or interruption of performance resulting directly or indirectly from acts of God, fire, 
explosions, earthquakes, floods, water, wind, lightning, civil or military authority, acts of public enemy, 
war, riots, civil disturbances, insurrections, strikes, or labor disputes.  

 
E. Severability 
 

The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Contract shall not affect the 
other provisions hereof and this Contract shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or 
unenforceable provision was omitted. 
 

F. Verbal Instructions 
 

No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated or executed by the Agency as a result of 
any discussions with any Department employee.  Only those communications which are in writing 
from the Department’s administrative or project staff identified in Section IV., CONTRACT 
MANAGEMENT, of this Contract shall be considered as a duly authorized expression on behalf 
of the Department.  Only communications from the Agency that are signed and in writing will be 
recognized by the Department as duly authorized expressions on behalf of the Agency. 
 

 G. No Third Party Beneficiaries 
 

Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, neither this Contract, nor any amendment, 
addendum or exhibit attached hereto, nor term, provision or clause contained therein, shall be 
construed as being for the benefit of, or providing a benefit to, any party not a signatory hereto. 
 

H. Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA)   
 

The Agency shall report any violations of the Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA), Federal Rule 
28 C.F.R. Part 115, to the Department of Corrections' Contract Manager. 
 

I. Cooperation with Inspector General 
 

In accordance with Section 20.055(5), F.S., the Agency understands and will comply with its duty to 
cooperate with the Inspector General in any investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing. 
 

J. Sovereign Immunity  
 
The Agency and the Department are state agencies or political subdivisions as defined in Section 
768.28, F.S., and agree to be fully responsible for acts and omissions of their own agents or 
employees to the extent permitted by law.  Nothing herein is intended to serve as a waiver of 
sovereign immunity by either party to which sovereign immunity may be applicable.  Further, 
nothing herein shall be construed as consent by a state agency or political subdivision of the State 
of Florida to be sued by third parties in any matter arising out of this Agreement. 
 
 
 

49



CONTRACT # W1095 

Page 9 of 12 
Master Document Revised 10/2016 

Waiver of breach of any provision of this Contract shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach and shall 
not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Contract. 
 
This Contract will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. Any action 
hereon or in connection herewith shall be brought in Leon County, Florida. 
 
This Contract and Addendum A contain all of the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be executed by their undersigned 
officials as duly authorized. 

 

AGENCY:  CITY OF APOPKA 

 

SIGNED 

BY: 

 

  

NAME:  

  

TITLE:  

  

DATE:  

  

FEID #:  

  

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS   Approved as to form and legality, 

subject to execution. 

    

SIGNED 

BY: 

 SIGNED 

BY: 

 

    

NAME: Kasey B. Faulk NAME: Kenneth S. Steely 

    

TITLE: Chief, Bureau of Procurement TITLE: General Counsel 

    

DATE:  DATE:  
 

 

50



Addendum A

Inmate Work Squad Detail of Costs for City of Apopka

Interagency Contract Number W1095 Effective April 12, 2017
***ENTER MULTIPLIERS IN SHADED BOXES ONLY IF TO BE INVOICED TO AGENCY*** Per Officer Total

 Annual Cost Annual Cost

I.  CORRECTIONAL WORK SQUAD OFFICER SALARIES AND POSITION RELATED-EXPENSES 

    TO BE REIMBURSED BY THE AGENCY:

Officers Salary # Officers  Multiplier 1 54,194.00$      ** 54,194.00$           

Salary Incentive Payment  1,128.00$         1,128.00$             

Repair and Maintenance 121.00$            121.00$                

State Personnel Assessment 354.00$            354.00$                

Training/Criminal Justice Standards 200.00$            200.00$                

Uniform Purchase 400.00$            400.00$                

Uniform Maintenance 350.00$            350.00$                

Training/Criminal Justice Standards  * 2,225.00$         

 

   TOTAL - To Be Billed By Contract To Agency 58,972.00$       56,747.00$           

*Cost limited to first year of contract as this is not a recurring personnel/position cost.

IA.

Number Total

Squads Annual Cost

II.  ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS TO BE REIMBURSED BY THE AGENCY:

Costs include but may not be limited to the following:  

Rain coats, staff high visibility safety vest, inmate high visibility  

safety vest, fire extinguisher, first aid kit, personal protection kit, flex  

cuffs, warning signs, handcuffs, Igloo coolers, portable toilets, insect   

repellants, masks, vaccinations, and other administrative expenses. 1 750.00$                

TOTAL - To Be Billed By Contract To Agency 750.00$                

    

Tools, equipment, materials and supplies not listed in Section II above

are to be provided by the Agency.

 

       CELLULAR PHONE WITH SERVICE REQUIRED:               YES              NO

       ENCLOSED TRAILER REQUIRED:                                       YES              NO

The Overtime Hourly Rate of Compensation for this Contract is $31.85, if applicable.   (The Overtime Hourly Rate of 

Compensation shall include the average hourly rate of pay for a Correctional Officer and the average benefit package 

provided by the department, represented as time and one half for purposes of this Contract.)         

         

"           

** Annual cost does not include overtime pay.

III.  ADDITIONAL AGENCY EXPENSES:

X

X

Addendum A Revised 06-02-03/01-12-04 Page 10 of 12

51



Addendum A

Inmate Work Squad Detail of Costs for City of Apopka

Interagency Contract Number W1095 Effective April 12, 2017

Per Unit Number Total Bill To Provided Already

IV.  OPERATING CAPITAL TO BE ADVANCED BY AGENCY: Cost of Units  Cost Agency By Agency Exists

          Hand Held Radio   -$                      

          Vehicle Mounted Radio 1 -$                      

TOTAL Operating Capital To Be Advanced By Agency -$                      

 

 

 Total

V.  TOTAL COSTS TO BE  ADVANCED BY AGENCY: Cost

     1.  Operating Capital - from Section IV.   $0.00

     2.  Grand Total - To Be Advanced By Agency At Contract Signing: $0.00

VI.  TOTAL COSTS TO BE BILLED TO AGENCY BY CONTRACT: Total

Cost

     1.  Correctional Officer Salaries and Position-Related Expenses - from Section I. $56,747.00

     2.  Other Related Expenses and Security Supplies - from Section II.  $750.00

     3.  Grand Total - To Be Billed To Agency By Contract: $57,497.00

VII.  TOTAL OF ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH CONTRACT: $57,497.00

        (Total of Sections V. and VI.)

VIII.  OVERTIME COSTS:  

        If the contracting Agency requests overtime for the work squad which is approved by the Department,

        the contracting Agency agrees to pay such costs and will be billed separately by the Department for the cost of overtime.

      

                                 

 

  

MACOM    $4969.00

 MACOM   $5400.00 XX

Addendum A Revised 06-02-03/01-12-04 Page 11 of 12

52



 

                                                                                                 Addendum A - INSTRUCTIONS

Inmate Work Squad Detail of Costs for City of Apopka

Interagency Contract Number W1095 Effective April 12, 2017

Section I.  Costs in this section are determined each fiscal year by the Budget and Management Evaluation Bureau and are fixed.  

By entering the number of Officers required for this contract, the spreadsheet will automatically calculate the "Total Annual Cost" 

column.  If this Work Squad is beyond the first year of existence, enter a zero (0) in the "Total Annual Cost" 

column for "Training/Criminal Justice Standards" after you have entered the "# Officers Multiplier".

Section II. Safety and environmental health procedures require safety measures such as the use of safety signs, vests, and clothing.

The Department's procedure for Outside Work Squads requires that all Work Squad Officers be responsible for ensuring their squad 

is equipped with a first aid kit and a personal protection equipment (PPE) kit.  Section II identifies such required

equipment.  A new squad must be sufficiently equipped and an on-going squad must be re-supplied when needed.

Type in the number of squads used for this contract and the spreadsheet will automatically calculate the fixed annual expense

 of $750.00 per squad and place the total in Section VI.

Section III. Check "Yes" or "No" to indicate whether a Cellular Phone with Service and/or an Enclosed Trailer is required by the Contract Manager.

Section IV. The Department's procedure for Outside Work Squads requires that they have at least one (1) primary means of direct

communication with the Institution’s Control Room.  Communication via radio and/or cellular phone is appropriate. 

It is preferred that a backup, secondary means of communication also be available.  It is the Agency's responsibility to provide them.

a radio(s) is not being purchased at this time.  Check applicable boxes ("Bill to Agency", "Provided by Agency" and "Already Exists") for

NOTE:  All radio communication equipment owned or purchased by the Agency that is programmed to the Department's radio

frequency and used by the work squad(s), whether purchased by the Department or the Agency, shall be IMMEDIATELY

deprogrammed by the Department at no cost to the Agency upon the end or termination of this Contract.

Section V. The total funds the Agency must provide at the time the contract is signed will be displayed here when the form is properly filled out. 

Section VI. The total funds the Agency will owe contractually, and pay in equal quarterly payments, will be displayed here.

Section VII. The total funds associated with the Contract, to be paid by the Agency as indicated in Sections V. and VI., will be displayed here.

Section VIII. Any agreement in this area will be billed separately as charges are incurred.

each radio. 

If the Department purchases a radio(s), the Agency must fund the purchase at the time the Contract is signed.  Check the box for the type 

of radio and fill in the Per Unit Cost for the type of radio, Number of Units, and Total Cost columns. Leave the Total Cost column blank if

Addendum A Revised 06-02-03/01-12-04 Page 12 of 12

53



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Approve the alignment and construction of Brush Drive and a reallocation of funds. 
  

54



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      DESIGN 

  X   OTHER: STAFF PRESENTATION 
  

 

SUBJECT: NEW ROAD CONSTRUCTION   
   

REQUEST: APPROVE ALIGNMENT AND CONSTRUCTION OF BRUSH DRIVE AND A 

REALLOCATION OF FUNDS IN THE 2016-2017 APPROVED BUDGET 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Right-of-Way and stub out of Brush Drive from Rolling Hills Lane was constructed as a part of the 

Rock Springs Ridge Subdivision, Phase 6A. Brush Drive was anticipated to be extended west and connect 

to Jason Dwelley Parkway thus providing another access connection into Rock Springs Ridge. The City’s 

Engineering team has developed an alignment for Brush Drive from Jason Dwelley Pkwy to Rolling Hills 

Lane. This connection is vital for Fire Station 5 response times to the area. To accommodate the 

construction of Brush Drive the Transportation Impact Fees need to be reallocated as follows: 

 

Transportation Impact Fees Budgeted + / - Balance 

Old Dixie Highway from Hawthorne to Schopke Lester Road $750,000 -$400,000 $350.000 

Brush Drive from Jason Dwelley Parkway to Rolling Hills Lane - +$400,000 $400,000 

Total $750,000 $0 $750,000 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Traffic Impact Fees FY 16/17 $400,000 reallocation. 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve alignment & construction and a reallocation of funds in the 2016-2017 approved budget. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

55



56



DATE:NO. REVISIONS:

CITY OF APOPKA

FAX: (407) 703-1748

TEL: (407) 703-1731

748 E. CLEVELAND STREET

DESIGN ENGINEERING DIVISION

APOPKA, FLORIDA 32703

AS NOTEDSCALE:

PROJECT NAME:

DATE:

DWG File: Sheet 1 (Plan View)

November, 2016

SHEET

NO.

ENGINEERED BY:

NARET TERAN, P.E.

LICENSE NO. 73796

SHEET DESCRIPTION:

DATE

SIGNATURE

PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

1

(BRUSH RD.,APOPKA, FL)

PLAN VIEW

PRELIMINARY PLANS

0 30

SCALE: 1"=30'

60

Brush Dr. - Roadway Extension

G
:
\
P

u
b

l
i
c
S

e
r
v
i
c
e

s
\
P

S
\
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
\
B

r
u

s
h

 
D

r
\
P

r
o

p
o

s
e

d
.
d

w
g

N

S

W

E

12' SHARED BIKEWAY

100' RIGHT-OF-WAY

5' SIDEWALK

2

1

2

B

r

u

s

h

 

D

r

.

J

a

s

o

n

 
D

w

e

l
l
e

y

 
P

k

w

y

R

o
l
l
i
n
g
 
H

i
l
l
s
 
L
n

57



DATE:NO. REVISIONS:

CITY OF APOPKA

FAX: (407) 703-1748

TEL: (407) 703-1731

748 E. CLEVELAND STREET

DESIGN ENGINEERING DIVISION

APOPKA, FLORIDA 32703

AS NOTEDSCALE:

PROJECT NAME:

DATE:

DWG File: Sheet 2 (Prelim)

November, 2016

SHEET

NO.

ENGINEERED BY:

NARET TERAN, P.E.

LICENSE NO. 73796

SHEET DESCRIPTION:

DATE

SIGNATURE

PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

2

(BRUSH DR.,APOPKA, FL)

TYPICAL SECTIONS

PRELIMINARY PLANS

Brush Dr. - Roadway Extension

G
:
\
P

u
b

l
i
c
S

e
r
v
i
c
e

s
\
P

S
\
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
\
B

r
u

s
h

 
D

r
\
S

h
e

e
t
 
4

 
(
G

r
a

d
i
n

g
 
P

l
a

n
)
.
d

w
g

NTS

BRUSH DRIVE TYPICAL SECTION

1

NTS

JASON DWELLEY PARKWAY TYPICAL SECTION

2

58



B

r

u

s

h

 

D

r

.

J

a

s

o

n

 
D

w

e

l
l
e

y

 
P

k

w

y

DATE:NO. REVISIONS:

CITY OF APOPKA

FAX: (407) 703-1748

TEL: (407) 703-1731

748 E. CLEVELAND STREET

DESIGN ENGINEERING DIVISION

APOPKA, FLORIDA 32703

AS NOTEDSCALE:

PROJECT NAME:

DATE:

DWG File: Sheet 3 (Prelim Profile View)

November, 2016

SHEET

NO.

ENGINEERED BY:

NARET TERAN, P.E.

LICENSE NO. 73796

SHEET DESCRIPTION:

DATE

SIGNATURE

PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

3

(BRUSH DR.,APOPKA, FL)

PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW

PRELIMINARY PLANS

0 30

SCALE: 1"=30'

N

S

W

60

E

Brush Dr. - Roadway Extension

G
:
\
P

u
b

l
i
c
S

e
r
v
i
c
e

s
\
P

S
\
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
\
B

r
u

s
h

 
D

r
\
S

h
e

e
t
 
5

 
(
P

l
a

n
 
a

n
d

 
P

r
o

f
i
l
e

)
.
d

w
g

59



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. Authorize the purchase of a vehicle for the Fire Department. 
  

60



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

   X    CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: CAPITAL EQUIPMENT  
   

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF NEW EQUIPMENT FROM HUB CITY FORD  
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The purchase of new capital equipment for the Fire Department Public Educational Officer. The F-150 

would replace inoperable equipment. Pricing of $33,732 is made available from Hub City Ford through 

the Florida Sheriffs Association Contract. 

 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Funding is included in the General Fund FY16/17 Budget. 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the purchase of capital equipment in the amount of $33,732. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

61



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

8. Authorize the purchase of one Rear Loader Refuse for the Sanitation Division. 
  

62



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: ISUZU REAR LOADER REFUSE TRUCK FOR SANITATION  
  

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF ONE REAR LOADER REFUSE TRUCK 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

The purchase of one new Rear Loader Sanitation truck. Pricing is made available through the Florida 

Sheriffs Association Contract. The truck is priced at $98,277. 

 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Funding is included in the Sanitation Fund FY17 Budget.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the purchase of one Rear Loader Refuse Truck through the Florida Sheriffs Association 

Contract, in the total amount of $98,277. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

63



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

9. Authorize a Change Order for the Water Reclamation Facility Expansion and Improvements Project. 
  

64



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Agreement 

       OTHER:          
  

 

SUBJECT: WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY EXPANSION DESIGN ENGINEERING 

SERVICES CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO SIGN CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 

WITH TETRATECH, INC. FOR ADDITIONAL DESIGN ENGINEERING 

SERVICES FOR THE WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY EXPANSION AND 

IMPROVEMENTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $262,979.00. 
  
SUMMARY:   
 

On February 3, 2016, the City Council approved a contract with Tetratech Inc. for engineering, CMAR, 

permitting and construction management services for the Water Reclamation Facility expansion. 

 

It has been determined that a modification of the current design to remove the pretreatment and flow 

equalization facilities from the West Plant and design and construct these facilities at the new East Plant, 

will reduce the amount of construction required at the existing facility and therefore reduce the 

complexity of construction. Benefits of authorizing this change will include, 1) a reduction in yard piping 

to be installed for pretreatment and flow equalization facilities, 2) a reduction in flowmeters required for 

the facilities as a result of constructing one pretreatment structure, versus constructing and modifying two 

structures, and 3) a reduction in required odor control infrastructure. These changes are anticipated to 

result in both a cost savings, as well as, a time savings to the City for construction, thus providing the 

opportunity to expedite the construction time of the project. This modification of the current design and 

construction of these facilities at the new East Plant will make the new facilities more consistent with the 

City’s future expansion plans. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Capital Improvement Fund Sewer Impact Fee Fund. Project funding will be reimbursed through the FDEP 

State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Program. 
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the City Administrator to execute Change Order No. 1 with Tetratech Inc. for additional design 

engineering services for the Water Reclamation Facility Expansion and Improvements project for 

$262,979.00. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 65



 

 

 

 

 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 
201 E. Pine Street, Suite 1000, Orlando, FL 32801 

Tel  407.839.3955  Fax  407.839.3790  www.tetratech.com 

November 3, 2016     Tetra Tech Project No. 200-53076-16001 
 
Mr. R. Jay Davoll, PE 
Public Services Director/City Engineer 
City of Apopka 
748 Cleveland Street 
Apopka, FL  32704-1229 
 
Subject:   Apopka WRF Expansion Engineering Services 

   Amendment No. 1 Proposal 
 
Dear Jay, 
 
Please find attached the Scope of Services and Fee Proposal for Amendment No. 1 to the above-
referenced project.   
 
The original scope of services included revisions and/or minor changes to the original AECOM expansion 
documents which were not anticipated to result in significant alterations to the design concepts. The City 
would like to modify the current design to remove the pretreatment and flow equalization facilities from 
the West Plant, as currently designed, to the East Plant. This will reduce the amount of construction 
required at the existing facility and therefore complexity of construction and is more consistent with the 
City’s ultimate future plant expansion plans.  Specific details regarding the anticipated facilities and 
services are presented in the attached scope of services and fee proposal. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to work with the City on this project and look forward to its successful 
completion.  If you have any questions or need anything further, please let us know. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Tetra Tech  
 
 
 
Daniel L. Allen, PE  
Senior Project Manager 
 
DLA/ Apopka WRF Exp/200-53076-16001/2016-11-03 Apopka WRF Davoll 

 
Attachments 
 
C:  Kevin Burgess, City of Apopka 
 Brenda L. Keenan, PE, Tetra Tech 

Jon D. Fox, PE, Tetra Tech 

66



 

   
DLA/WRF Expansion/CO #1 Scope 2016-11-03 
Tetra Tech #200-53076-16001 Apopka -1-  11/04/16 

AMENDMENT NO. 1  

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY 

EXPANSION SCOPE OF SERVICES 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The City of Apopka (City) intends to expand its existing Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) from 

a current permitted capacity of 4.5 MGD on an AADF basis to 8.0 MGD-AADF. The expansion 

concept for the City’s WRF is based primarily on utilizing bidding documents prepared by 

AECOM dated November 2010 with the exception to the revisions described below. 

 

 The influent characteristics of the raw sewage have changed significantly since 2010 which 

will necessitate additional anoxic and aerobic volumes in the new process trains above the 

volumes proposed in 2010. The rated capacity of the existing process trains will also need 

to be decreased while the capacity of the new trains will need to be increase to maintain 

the total desired capacity of 8.0 MGD-AADF. 
 

 The City intends to implement a thermal sludge drying concept for sludge stabilization at 

their WRF in lieu of the previously proposed solar drying system. 
 

 Tetra Tech will need to assume responsibility of significant portions of the existing design 

as a “successor engineer” pursuant to FAC Rule 61G15-27-001. This will necessitate 

preparing design calculations, reviewing the current documents, and, if necessary, revising 

the current design. 
 

The original scope of services included revisions and/or minor changes to the current expansion 

concepts which were not anticipated to result in significant alterations to the current design 

concepts. The City would like to modify the current design to remove the pretreatment and flow 

equalization facilities from the West Plant as currently designed to the East Plant. This will reduce 

the amount of construction required at the existing facility and therefore complexity of 

construction and is more consistent with the City’s ultimate future plant expansion plans.  Specific 

details regarding the anticipated facilities and services are presented below. 

 

II. SCOPE OF WORK 

 

The following tasks will be performed under this Scope of Work: 

 Task 1: Document Revisions  

 Task 2: Permitting Services  

 Task 3: Surveying 

 Task 4: Geotechnical Services 

 

 

67



AMENDMENT NO. 1  
CITY OF APOPKA WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY EXPANSION 
 

   
DLA/WRF Expansion/CO #1 Scope 2016-11-03 
Tetra Tech #200-53076-16001 Apopka -2-  11/04/16 

Task 1: Document Revisions 

 

Tetra Tech will revise drawings and specifications to incorporate the following changes. 

 Demolition of the existing West Plant Preliminary Treatment Structure, equipment, and 

associated electrical. 

 Demolition and piping modifications to the influent force main piping configurations to 

redirect influent from the existing 18 inch force main and 30 inch force main east along 

Cleveland Street to the new proposed 8.0 MGD Preliminary Treatment Structure located at 

the East Plant.  

 Removal of the proposed 4.0 MGD Preliminary Treatment Structure, equipment and 

electrical from the West Plant. 

 Removal of the proposed modifications to convert the existing package plant to flow 

equalization. 

 Removal of the proposed West Plant Anoxic Basin, equipment and electrical. 

 Revise design to modify the outer ring of the existing package plant to an anoxic tank 

including replacing the inner ring of the tank, adding mixers, and stair and walkways.  

 Remove proposed Odor Control equipment and electrical from West Plant 

 Evaluate generator sizing at the West Plant to determine whether the generators can be 

reduced in size. 

 Design a new 8.0 mgd ADF/16.0 mgd PHF Preliminary Treatment Structure to be located 

at the East Plant using similar equipment and field instrumentation as the current design for 

the West Plant pretreatment processes except as follows.  

o The new Preliminary Treatment Structure will not include a gravity bypass around 

flow equalization to the anoxic basins. A gravity bypass will be provided to direct 

flows from the Preliminary Treatment Structure to a wetwell and pumped 

downstream the anoxic basins. 

o The design will be based on the following: 

 1-24-in flow meter 

 1-Mechanical Bar Screen  

 1-Screenings Washer/Compactor 

 1-Grit Collection Unit 

 1-Grit Classifier 

 2- Grit Pumps, constant speed 

 

 Design new Flow Equalization Tank to be located at the East Plant using similar equipment 

and field instrumentation as the current design for the West Plant flow equalization process 

except as follows.  

o The new Preliminary Treatment Structure will have a gravity bypass around the 

flow equalization tank that will discharge to a wetwell and then pumped 

downstream to the anoxic basins by the flow equalization pumps. Therefore the 

pumps will be sized to pump up to PHF with the largest unit out of service. 

68



AMENDMENT NO. 1  
CITY OF APOPKA WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY EXPANSION 
 

   
DLA/WRF Expansion/CO #1 Scope 2016-11-03 
Tetra Tech #200-53076-16001 Apopka -3-  11/04/16 

o  The design will be based on the following: 

 3-60 HP Flow Equalization Pumps with VFDs (To West Plant) 

 3-60 HP Flow Equalization Pumps with VFDs (To East Plant) 

o 2-100 HP Blowers with VFDs 

 

 Design new East Plant odor control system to treat odorous air collected at the East Plant 

Preliminary Treatment Structure and Flow Equalization Tank using similar equipment and 

field instrumentation as the current design for the West Plant odor control system. 

 Revise paving, grading and drainage for the above described changes.  

 Revise lighting plan in affected areas. 

 Revise electrical building equipment where appropriate. 

 Revise HVAC and other mechanical work in the effected buildings. 

 Revise yard piping as appropriate for the above described changes. 

 Design a new influent force main along Cleveland Street to redirect raw wastewater from 

the existing Preliminary Treatment Structure at the West Plant to the new Preliminary 

Treatment Structure at the East Plant. 

 Submit revisions to FDEP SRF to supplement the previously submitted plans and 

specifications. 

 

Task 2: Permitting Services 
 

Permits will need to be modified from FDEP and the City of Apopka to allow construction of 

the project. A summary of the various work items to be completed under this task is presented 

below. 
 

1. FDEP Wastewater Permit 

a. Prepare and submit FDEP Forms and supporting documentation in order to 

pursue a modification to the City’s current “Wastewater Permit”. 

b. Respond to up to two requests for additional information (RAIs) from FDEP. 
 

2. ERP 

a. Prepare and submit FDEP Forms and supporting documentation in order to 

pursue a modification to the City’s current Environmental Resource Permit. 

b. Respond to up to two requests for additional information (RAIs) from FDEP. 

 

3. Building Permit 

a. Prepare and submit documentation of changes for a building permit to the 

City’s Building Division along with required supporting documents. 

b. Respond to up to two requests for additional information from the City’s Building 

Division. 

 

 

69



AMENDMENT NO. 1  
CITY OF APOPKA WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY EXPANSION 
 

   
DLA/WRF Expansion/CO #1 Scope 2016-11-03 
Tetra Tech #200-53076-16001 Apopka -4-  11/04/16 

Task 3: Survey 

 

Tetra Tech’s surveyor will provide a topographical survey of the proposed influent force main 

project area of the right-of-way along Cleveland Street or within the plant site from the 

northwest corner of the site to the proposed location where the force main will enter the plant 

site.. All Survey performed by Tetra Tech will comply with "Minimum Technical Standards" 

established by the State of Florida. The coordinates for this project will conform to State Plan 

Coordinates.   
 

Task 4: Geotechnical Services 

 

Perform a geotechnical investigation to facilitate design of the proposed influent force main and 

proposed structures as described above. Recommendations for design of the force main and 

proposed structures, together with all data developed during the exploration, will be submitted in 

a written report.   
 

 

IV. COMPENSATION SUMMARY 

 

The total lump sum compensation for the Scope of Services described in Section II is 

summarized below. 

 

Phase 
Total 

Task 1: Document Revisions  $ 204,974.00 

Task 2: Permitting Services $ 34,392.00 

Task 3: Survey Services  $ 14,302.00 

Task 4: Geotechnical Services $ 9,311.00 

Total $ 262,979.00 

 

V. SCHEDULE 

 

The work effort described herein will be completed in accordance with the proposed 

schedule provided below: 

 

Milestone Completion Date 

Approval of Change Order 11/16/2016 

50% Design Documents and draft FDEP permitting updates 1/18/2017 

  City Review  1/25/2017 

FDEP Wastewater and ERP modification submittal 2/8/2017 

Resubmittals for FDEP SRF and Building Department 3/22/2017 

70



AMENDMENT NO. 1  
CITY OF APOPKA WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY EXPANSION 
 

   
DLA/WRF Expansion/CO #1 Scope 2016-11-03 
Tetra Tech #200-53076-16001 Apopka -5-  11/04/16 

V. SERVICES NOT INCLUDED 

 

The following services are not included in this scope of work, and may be performed under 

a separate task authorization, if authorized: 

 SRF Facilities Plan Revisions. 

 Environmental Audit Services. 

 WRF Operations or Maintenance. 

 Permit Compliance or Negotiations with FDEP. 

 Mitigation Services. 

 Asbestos Evaluations. 

71



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

10. Award a Professional Services Agreement to update the Land Development Code.   
  

72



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

X CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Agreement 

 OTHER:    
  
SUBJECT:    LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE  

    

REQUEST:  AWARD A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT TO CLARION 

ASSOCIATES, LLC 
  
SUMMARY:  

 

On July 1, 2016, the City received qualifications, data and expressions of interest for professional services 

related to the update of the Land Development Code.  The Land Development Code has not been updated 

since 1993.  Although some changes to the code have been made on a case-by-case basis to address specific 

problems, no overall evaluation of the code has been conducted to ensure consistency both internally and 

with the Comprehensive Plan.  An Evaluation Committee consisting of the Community Development 

Director (Mr. Reggentin at that the time), Public Services Director, Planning Manager, Senior Project 

Coordinator and Planner II reviewed the qualifications and ranked the firms. 

 

On September 7, 2016 City Council approved staff to negotiate with the top-ranked firm, Clarion Associates 

LLC. 

Staff is requesting final approval of the attached Agreement.  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

FY Budget 2015-2016:  $100,000 was budgeted and will be carried forward. 

FY Budget 2016-2017:  An additional $100,000 is budgeted. 

The remaining $37,710 will be funded through reserves requiring a budget amendment during FY 2016/17. 

Total Project:  $237,710   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

Approve the Agreement for Professional Services with Clarion Associates, LLC to prepare a revised Land 

Development Code. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief  

73



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page 1 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, effective as of the  7th  day of  December, 2016, by 
and between the City of Apopka, Florida, (hereinafter referred to as the Client), 
and Clarion Associates, LLC, a Colorado Limited Liability Company doing     
business in Florida (hereinafter referred to as the Contractor). 
 
 WHEREAS, the Client desires to undertake revisions to its Land 
Development Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Client desires to engage the Contractor to render these 
professional services in connection with this project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Contractor desires to undertake the project.  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 
 

1. Scope of Services   
The Contractor agrees to provide professional services to prepare a 
revised Land Development Code (hereinafter referred to as the LDC) for 
Client. The services to be performed are described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein (Exhibit A is titled "Scope of Services”). 
The Client agrees to provide supporting services to the Contractor as 
described in Exhibit A.   
 

2. Time of Performance   
The services of the Contractor are to commence on the date of 
execution of this Agreement by both Client and Contractor, and will be 
undertaken and completed consistent with the schedule set out in 
Exhibit A. The time of performance may be extended by mutual 
agreement of the parties.  

 
3. Method of Payment & Total Project Amount   

The Client shall compensate Contractor for its services in accordance 
with the Compensation Schedule set out in Exhibit B. It is understood 
and agreed that the total compensation and reimbursement to be paid 
for the professional services rendered under this Agreement shall not 
exceed the sum of $237,710.00. Contractor may invoice Client on a 
monthly basis for the percent of work completed on each task, and Client 
will pay Contractor within 30 days of receipt of the invoice, as long as 
the work is completed to the Client’s reasonable satisfaction. By mutual 
agreement, the Client and Contractor may reallocate the budget among 
project tasks if the total budget amount remains unchanged. 
 
 
 
 
 

74



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page 2 
 

4. General Terms and Conditions 
A. Termination of Agreement   

The Client shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, with 
or without cause, by giving written notice to the Contractor of such 
termination and specifying the effective date thereof, which notice 
shall be given at least 30 days before the effective date of such 
termination.  In such event all finished or unfinished documents, 
data, studies and reports prepared by the Contractor pursuant to 
this Agreement shall become the Client’s property.  Contractor 
shall be entitled to receive compensation in accordance with the 
Agreement for any satisfactory work completed pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement prior to the date of termination.   

 
B. Changes   

The Client may, from time to time, request changes in the scope 
of services of the Contractor to be performed hereunder. Such 
changes, including the increase or decrease in the amount of the 
Contractor’s compensation, shall be mutually agreed upon 
between the Client and the Contractor. 

 
C. Assignability   

Any assignment or attempted assignment of this Agreement by 
Contractor without the prior written consent of the Client shall be 
void; provided, however, that claims for money due or to become 
due Contractor from the Client under this Agreement may be 
assigned to a bank, or other financial institution, without such 
approval. Notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be 
furnished to the Client. 

 
D. Audit   

The Client or any of its duly authorized representatives shall have 
access to any books, documents, papers, and records of 
Contractor which are pertinent to Contractor’s performance under 
this Agreement, for the purposes of making an audit, 
examination, or excerpts. The Contractor shall maintain records 
for three years after the agreement ends. 

 
E. Ownership of Documents   

Drawings, specifications, guidelines and other documents 
prepared by Contractor in connection with this Agreement shall 
be property of the Client. However, Contractor shall have the right 
to utilize such documents in the course of its marketing, 
professional presentations, and for other business purposes. 

 
F. Assignment of Copyrights   

Contractor assigns to Client the copyrights to all work prepared, 
developed, or created pursuant to this agreement. This includes 
the right to: 1) reproduce the work; 2) prepare derivative works; 

75



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page 3 
 

3) distribute copies to the public; and 4) to display the work 
publicly. Contractor shall have the right to use materials produced 
in the course of this contract for marketing purposes and 
professional presentations, articles, speeches and other 
business purposes. Nothing in this Agreement shall divest either 
party of its intellectual property. 

 
G. Governing Law   

This Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto on the 
day and year first above written and shall be governed by the laws 
of the State of Florida. Contractor shall also comply with all 
applicable state and federal laws and regulations and resolutions 
of Client, and shall commit no trespass on any public or private 
property in the performance of any of the work embraced by this 
Agreement.   
 

H. Subcontractors   
Subcontractors may be utilized if approved by the Client. 
PlanActive Studio is authorized by Client as a subcontractor. 

 
I. Notices   

Any notice concerning the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement from Contractor to the Client shall be in writing and 
delivered, either personally or by mail (postage prepaid), by 
telegram or email transmission and shall be addressed as 
follows:   

 
James K. Hitt, FRA-RA 
Community Development Director 
City of Apopka 
120 E. Main St., 2nd Floor 
P.O. Box 1229 
Apopka, FL 32704-1229 
407-703-1712  
jhitt@apopka.net  

 
Notices to Contractor from Client shall be in writing and delivered, 
either personally or by mail (postage prepaid), by telegram or 
email transmission and shall be addressed to: 
 

Craig Richardson, Director    
Clarion Associates 
101 Market Street, Suite D 
Chapel Hill, North Carolina 27516 
Facsimile number: (919) 967-9077 
Email: crichardson@clarionassociates.com 

 

76



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page 4 
 

Notices shall be deemed effective upon delivery in the event of 
personal delivery, and after three days when mailed, postage 
prepaid; if transmitted by fax or email, upon verified receipt of the 
electronic transmission. Either party may change its address in 
reference to notices by written notification to the other party. 

 
5. Indemnification   

Contractor agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold the Client and 
its officers, employees, and agents free and harmless from and against 
any and all losses, penalties, damages, settlements, costs, charges, 
professional fees or other expenses or liabilities of every kind and 
character arising out of or relating to any and all claims, liens, demands, 
obligations, actions, proceedings, or causes of action of every kind and 
character in connection with or arising directly or indirectly out of this 
agreement and/or the performance hereof and caused by the 
negligence of the Contractor or subcontractors.  

 
6. Independent Contractor   

Contractor is an independent contractor. Notwithstanding any provision 
appearing in this Agreement, all personnel assigned by Contractor to 
perform work under the terms of the Agreement shall be and remain at 
all times, employees of the Contractor for all purposes. The Contractor, 
its agents and employees, in the performance of this Agreement, shall 
act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees of 
Client.   

 
7. Certificate of Insurance  

Contractor agrees to procure all of the insurance specified below and 
shall submit a Certificate of Insurance, from an insurer duly authorized 
to do business in Florida, naming the City of Apopka, Florida, as an 
additional insured:  

 
A. Workers’ compensation insurance  

Workers’ Compensation insurance for all employees who are 
engaged in the work under the agreement.  

 
B. Motor vehicle liability insurance   

Contractor shall take out and maintain during the life of this 
agreement, such motor vehicle liability insurance as shall protect 
Contractor while performing work covered by this agreement from 
claims for damages which may arise from operations by 
Contractor or by any other persons directly or indirectly employed 
by Contractor and the amounts of such insurance shall be as 
follows: On all motor vehicles owned, leased or otherwise used 
by Contractor in an amount not less than $1,000,000.00 
(combined single limit) for bodily injury including death and 
property damage combined. 
 

77



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page 5 
 

C. Professional liability insurance 
Contractor shall procure and maintain coverage in the amount of 
not less than $1,000,000.00. 

 
D. Insurance Company  

The insurance company(ies) used by Contractor must be 
licensed to do business in the State of Florida.   

 
8. Inquiries Regarding Payment   

All inquiries regarding payment of invoices are to be directed to:  
 

James K. Hitt, FRA-RA 
Community Development Director 
City of Apopka 
120 E. Main St., 2nd Floor 
P.O. Box 1229 
Apopka, FL 32704-1229 
407-703-1712  
jhitt@apopka.net  

 
9. Anti-discrimination Clause   

Client and Contractor shall not discriminate against any person because 
of race, color, religion, national origin, gender, or handicap in 
employment or service provided. 

 
10. Prohibition Against Contingent Fees Statement  

By entering into this Agreement, Contractor warrants that it has not 
employed or retained any company or person other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for the Contractor to solicit or secure this 
Agreement; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, 
company, corporation, individual, or firm other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for the Contractor, any fee, commission, 
percentage, gift, or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from 
the award of this Agreement.  
 

 
11. Public Entity Crimes Statement   

As provided in Section 287.132-133, Florida Statutes, by entering into 
this Agreement or performing any work in furtherance hereof, the 
Contractor certifies that it, its affiliates, suppliers, and sub-contractor(s) 
who will perform hereunder, have not been placed on the convicted 
vendors list maintained by the State of Florida Department of 
Management Services within the 36 months immediately preceding the 
date hereof.  This notice is required by Section 287.133(3)(a), Florida 
Statutes. 

 
 
 

78



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page 6 
 

12. Extent of Agreement  
This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement 
between the Client and the Contractor and supersedes all prior 
negotiations, representations or agreement, either written or oral. This 
Agreement may be amended only by written agreement signed by both 
the Client and the Contractor. 
 

13. Public Records 
The Contractor shall maintain public records required by the Client to 
perform the services. 
 
Upon request from the Client’s custodian of public records, the 
Contractor shall provide the Client with a copy of the requested records 
or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time 
at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in this chapter or as 
otherwise provided by law. 
 
The Contractor shall ensure that public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are 
not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract 
term and following completion of the contract if Contractor does not 
transfer the records to the Client. 
 
Upon completion of this contract, Contractor shall transfer, at no cost, to 
Client all public records in possession of Contractor or keep and 
maintain public records required by Client to perform the service. If the 
Contractor transfers all public records to Client upon completion of the 
contract, Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are 
exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements. If Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon 
completion of the contract, Contractor shall meet all applicable 
requirements for retaining public records. All records stored 
electronically must be provided to Client, upon request from Client’s 
custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the 
information technology systems of Client. 
 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING 
THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE 
PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, 
CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT:    

 
 
 
 
 
 

79



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page 7 
 

City Clerk’s Office  
City of Apopka 
City Hall, 2nd Floor 
120 E. Main Street 
Apopka, FL 32703 
Cityclerk@Apopka.Net  
(407) 703-1704 
 

 
14. Mediation  

All claims, disputes, and other matters in question between the parties 
to this Agreement arising out of or relating to this Agreement concerning 
a breach thereof, may be submitted to non-binding mediation upon 
agreement of the parties.  The cost of said mediation shall be split 
equally between the parties.  Mediation conducted under this Agreement 
shall occur in Apopka, Florida. 
 

15. Venue and Legal Fees       
Venue for any legal proceeding related to this Agreement shall be 

brought in the appropriate court in and for Orange County, Florida.  The 

prevailing party in any action, lawsuit, appeal, or other legal proceeding 

shall be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party all reasonable 

attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the prevailing party, 

and in all efforts to collect any recovery by the prevailing party.  

 

16. Severability    
In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be 
invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this agreement 
shall remain valid and binding upon the parties hereto. 
 

CLARION ASSOCIATES LLC           APOPKA, FLORIDA 
 
 

BY:        BY:       
Craig Richardson     Joe Kilsheimer 
Title: Director     Title: Mayor 

        
Date:       Date:    
        

ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk

80



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A: SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

This scope of services includes five tasks as outlined 
below. 

Task 1: Project Initiation 

Task 2: Land Development Code (LDC) Assessment 

Task 3: Draft Land Development Code (LDC) and 
  Zoning   Map 

Task 4: Test Draft Land Development Code (LDC) and 
  Zoning Map 

Task 5: Prepare Public Hearing Land Development 
  Code (LDC) and Zoning Map 

 

Task 1:  Project Initiation 

1.1  Initial Review of Background Documents 

As a first step, Contractor will review the relevant 
background materials, including, but not limited to: all 
relevant planning documents, other documents that 
provide policy direction, the existing Land Development 
Code (LDC), other relevant regulations, the zoning map, 
administrative rules and interpretations of the current LDC, 
examples of approved development permits, and other 
documents identified by city staff. 

 

1.2  Initial Meetings, Interviews, and Reconnaissance 

After completion of the background review, Contractor, on 
one, two and one- half day trip to the city, will: 

 Conduct interviews with the city’s project manager 
and other staff; 

 Conduct interviews with key stakeholders (citizens 
that represent different perspectives in the 
community), elected and appointed officials, and 
neighborhood and business representatives (if 
appropriate);  

 Undertake reconnaissance; and  

 Conduct kick-off meetings as outlined in Task 1.3.  

As part of this effort, Contractor will develop an internal 
survey for city staff to complete in advance of the meeting. 
This survey would be circulated by the city’s project manager to key staff for review 
and input. The survey provides a framework for input in a consistent fashion during 

TASK 1: PROJECT INITIATION  –  

RESPONSIBILITIES AND 

DELIVERABLES 

CONTRACTOR 

 Review plan documents, 
development regulations, 
other documents, and 
records 

 Draft survey for staff  

 Design and set-up web site  

 Conduct interviews with staff 

 Conduct interviews with 
stakeholders/others, as 
appropriate 

 Conduct recon. of city, with staff 

 Facilitate and conduct kick-off 
meetings as outlined in Task 
1  

CITY STAFF 

 Send copies of plans and 
development regulations, and 
other relevant documents to 
Contractor (including editable 
digital version of  current 
LDC) 

 Send notes and/or drafts on 
procedural streamlining   

 Send copies of photos of 
development, as appropriate 

 Circulate survey to staff (as 
appropriate) 

 Review and comment on project 
web site design 

 Establish advisory committee 

 Organize and accompany 
Clarion on reconnaissance  

 Organize kick-off meetings 

 Participate in meetings and 
interviews with Contractor 

TRIPS 

One, two and one-half day trip 
to  city to interview staff/ 
stakeholders, conduct recon., 
and  conduct kick-off meetings 

SCHEDULE 

Completed: One and one-half 
months after Project Initiation 
(assuming January 1, 2017 date 
of Project Initiation) 

81



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page A-2 
 

the interviews. These discussions will give Contractor a better understanding of 
how the existing regulations work (and don’t work) in practice, and how city staff 
believes different plan and other relevant policy goals should be implemented. The 
interviews with stakeholders, elected officials, board and commission members, 
and business and neighborhood representatives (if appropriate) will identify 
strengths and weaknesses of the current LDC, and how to incorporate key policy 
direction, for example, as established in Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 and 
Grow Apopka. 

After the interviews, Contractor will conduct reconnaissance of the city with staff to 
gain a better understanding of how land development issues are playing out (e.g., 
what in the current code is working and what is not working. 

 

 1.3  Kick-off Meetings and Public Forum 

Also during the trip, Contractor will also hold project kick-off meetings with an 
advisory committee, the Planning Commission, and City Council, as appropriate, 
and conduct a public forum. The purpose of these meetings and the public forum 
is to inform these groups and the public about the project and its schedule, and to 
receive input and direction about project goals. 

 

1.4  Project Website 

Also as part of Task 1, Contractor will set up a project website to provide 
information about the project, the schedule, and public involvement opportunities. 
New work products will be placed on the website when available for public review. 
The website will serve as a tool through which the public can comment on the 
process and the work products as they are completed.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

82



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page A-3 
 

Task 2: Land Development Code (LDC) Assessment 

Based on information gathered in Task 1, Contractor will prepare 
a Land Development Code Assessment in Task 2 to synthesize 
and refine the key issues, recommend solutions to address the 
key issues, and provide a detailed outline of the rewritten LDC 
structure if the key issues and solutions are addressed as 
recommended. The Assessment will consist of two components: 
a Diagnosis and an Annotated Outline. 

 

2.1  Diagnosis 

The purpose of the Diagnosis is to:  

 Identify the key issues that need to be addressed in 
the rewrite—in other words, the broad policy changes that 
are identified in the Comprehensive Plan, and other plans 
and policy documents as well as the goals identified in the 
RFQ, that need to be addressed. 

 Analyze the current Land Development Code 
regulations, identifying: 

o Their strengths and weaknesses (including but not 
limited to the existing districts, development 
standards, definitions, structure, organization, 
clarity, administration/procedures, and 
enforcement provisions; and 

o Areas where there is a mismatch or gap between 
Comprehensive Plan policies and direction and 
other land use policy the city wants to implement, 
and the current regulatory provisions (including 
mismatches in the zoning districts and land uses). 

 Summarize national best practices that might be 
considered for incorporation into the rewritten Land Development Code, such as 
solutions to address the key issues and challenges. This analysis will be based on 
lessons learned from Contractor’s work in other code update projects around Florida 
and the country, additional research on these issues, and Contractor’s general 
experience in preparing development codes.  

 Summarize and discuss the most appropriate zoning framework for the rewrite, 
building on the broad policy changes that are identified in the Comprehensive Plan 
and other plans and policy documents, as well as the goals identified in the RFQ. 
Initially, this will identify and confirm the key goals for the update. The discussion under 
each of the key goals will: explain why the identified goal is important (e.g., it might be 
based on policy direction in the Comprehensive Plan), summarize how the current 
regulations address the key goal and identify implementation gaps, and recommend 
how the updated regulations can better address the goal based on client input, 
professional experience, and national best practices. If there are different options 
available for addressing key goals, they will also be discussed. As part of the 
discussion of the goals, the most appropriate zoning framework to address the 
combination of key goals will also be discussed.  

 

TASK 2:   LAND 

DEVELOPMENT CODE 

ASSESSMENT –  

RESPONSIBILITIES AND 

DELIVERABLES 
CONTRACTOR 

 Prepare staff review draft of 
Assessment 

 Prepare public review draft 
of Assessment  

 Conduct meetings on 
Assessment, as outlined 
in Task 2 

 Receive direction  

CITY STAFF 

 Review and provide 
consolidated written 
comments on draft 
Assessment; tel.  conf. 
with Contractor on 
revisions  

 Distribute Assessment 

 Organize meetings 

 

 TRIPS 

 One, two and one-half day 
trip to conduct meetings 
in Task 2 

SCHEDULE  

 Completed: Two and one-
half months after 
complete Task 1 

83



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page A-4 
 

2.2  Annotated Outline 

The Annotated Outline provides the community an opportunity to review the overall structure 
of the proposed revisions before the actual drafting begins. It will include an article-by-article 
outline of the rewritten LDC if the key goals identified in the Diagnosis are addressed as 
recommended, and an explanation of the purpose and nature of each article and major section 
in layperson’s language.  

The first draft of the Assessment will be for internal staff review only. That review allows staff 
to provide Contractor with substantive feedback and identify any factual errors or major issues 
that should be adjusted in the document prior to public review. After receiving one set of written 
consolidated comments from city staff, Contractor and staff will reach consensus about 
revisions, and Contractor will make the agreed-upon changes. The Assessment will then be 
made available to the public by city staff. 

 

2.3  Meetings and Work Session 

Contractor will then meet with the advisory committee, conduct a work session with the 
Planning Commission/ City Council, as appropriate, and hold a public forum on the 
Assessment during one, two and one-half day trip to the city. At the work session, Contractor 
will look for direction on the Assessment and direction on the proposed structure of, and 
substantive changes that need to be made to, the rewritten LDC. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

84



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page A-5 
 

Task 3:  Draft Land Development Code (LDC) and 
Zoning Map  

3.1  Staff Draft 

General 

Based on the Assessment and the public input and direction 
in Task 2.3, Contractor will prepare a draft of the Land 
Development Code (LDC) that is user-friendly and includes 
the agreed-upon changes from the Assessment. The draft will 
follow the Annotated Outline in the Assessment. The rewritten 
LDC will be clear, concise, and drafted with the goal of 
efficient administration. It will emphasize the use of graphics, 
tables, and charts to explain zoning and land use concepts, 
instead of voluminous text. Areas that will benefit from 
illustrations will be noted (though not all illustrations will be 
produced until the public hearing draft in task 5). A total of 
$9,000 of graphics will be prepared for the rewritten LDC. The 
draft will include commentary in footnotes where necessary to 
explain changes from current practice and the rationale 
behind new provisions. 

Design Standards 

As part of the appropriate installment, Contractor will prepare 
(building on the current city’s design guidelines, as 
appropriate), a basic set of design standards for the following:  

 Single-family development; 

 Multi-family development; 

 Commercial, office, and mixed-use development;  

 Big-box development (large retail 
establishments);1and  

 Industrial development.  

Contractor will also draft community form standards, which 
shall apply to greenfield development in specific areas of the 
city. The design standards and community form standards, when drafted, will be 
incorporated into the appropriate draft installment of the LDC. 

Sign Regulations 

Contractor will not undertake a comprehensive revision of the sign regulations as 
part of this effort, but instead reformat the sign regulations to conform with the 
rewritten LDC format, and make minor and specific targeted revisions. 

 

                       
1 Single-use retail stores over a certain size (usually 60,000-80,000 

square feet). 

TASK 3: DRAFT NEW  LAND 

DEVELOPMENT CODE  AND 

ZONING MAP  – 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND 

DELIVERABLES 

CONTRACTOR 

 Prepare staff draft of 
LDC and graphics 
(in two installments)  

 Prepare Public Review 
Draft of  LDC and 
zoning map (in two 
installments)  

 Conduct two days of 
meetings on each 
installment, as 
outlined in Task 3  

CITY STAFF 

 Provide appropriate 
GIS map files for 
zoning map 

 Review and provide 
written consolidated 
comments on 
installments; provide 
input on illustrations/ 
graphics 

 Distribute installments 
to public 

 Organize meetings 

 

TRIPS 

 Two, two and one-half 
day trips to conduct 
meetings on each 
installment 

SCHEDULE 

 Completed: Eight 
months after 
completion of Task 
2 

85



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page A-6 
 

 Organization of Draft 

Because the rewritten LDC will include a substantial amount of new information, it 
will be difficult for any review body, or the public, to digest in a single review or 
meeting. Therefore, the drafting will be divided into two manageable installments 
consisting of related provisions. For example, Contractor might propose dividing 
the work as follows: 1) procedures, administration, districts and uses; 2) 
development standards and definitions. The exact composition and schedule for 
the drafting will be determined in consultation with city staff following the 
completion of the Assessment. A draft zoning map will be included with the second 
installment, based on City GIS mapping files provided by city staff, and additional 
input from the city regarding zoning district boundaries. 

As with the Assessment, Contractor will prepare a “staff draft” of each installment 
for internal staff review only. While staff is reviewing the first installment, Contractor 
will begin drafting the second installment. In this way, drafting and staff review will 
proceed in a relatively efficient way. Staff will consolidate and reconcile their 
comments on each installment and present consolidated written comments on 
each installment to Contractor. 

 

3.2  Public Review Draft and Meetings 

After receiving one set of consolidated written comments from staff on each 
installment, Contractor and staff will reach consensus about revisions, and 
Contractor will make the agreed-upon changes. The draft installment will then be 
made available to the public as the Public Review Draft. After release of each 
installment to the public, Contractor will conduct meetings with the advisory 
committee and the Planning Commission/City Council, as appropriate, on each of 
the installments, and conduct a public forum on the draft after the second 
installment is completed. The purpose of these meetings is to receive comment, 
input, and direction on the draft installments.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

86



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page A-7 
 

Task 4:  Test Draft Land Development Code 

In Task 4, and based on input from Task 3.2 and city staff, 
Contractor will conduct a focused test of the draft LDC 
through a side-by-side comparison of four examples (case 
studies) of recently approved development with comparable 
hypothetical development in accordance with the draft LDC. 
The test case studies should represent different types of 
development in different contexts (e.g. single-family homes, 
multifamily developments, stand-alone retail or commercial 
development, industrial or institutional development, mixed-
use development). No more than one test case shall be a 
mixed-use development, and no site shall be larger than five 
acres in area.  

The objective of the comparison is to demonstrate how well 
the rewritten LDC would produce desired forms of 
development, or outcomes, or otherwise affect development 
in terms of land uses, building form, and overall development 
quality. The strong preference is for selected test case sites 
to have development on the site that has been approved 
under the city’s current regulations, so comparisons can be 
made between the current and rewritten development code. 
Once the testing is completed, Contractor will prepare a 
summary presentation for each test case study for display on 
the web site, and for use in future public presentations. 
Contractor will then conduct meetings during one, one and 
one-half day trip to the city to present results and receive 
input.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TASK 4: TEST  DRAFT  LDC  

– RESPONSIBILITIES AND 

DELIVERABLES 

CONTRACTOR 

 Collaborate with staff in 
identifying cases for 
testing 

 Test cases 

 Prepare summary 
presentation for each 
test case 

 Present the test cases 
at meeting. 

CITY STAFF 

 Work with Contractor in 
identifying test cases 

 Provide the following 
for each test case 
site: development 
approvals (if 
relevant); site 
information; 
photographs; a site 
plan and/or 
documentation of 
uses, setbacks, 
parking spaces and 
location, 
landscaping, 
dumpster locations, 
and design 
guidelines that were 
applied (if relevant)   

 Review and provide 
comments on test 
cases 

 Review and provide 
comments on 
summary 
presentation 

 Organize meeting 

TRIPS 

 One, one and one-half 
day trip to present 
test cases and 
receive input 

SCHEDULE 

 Completed: One month 
after completion of  
Task 3 

87



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates   Page A-8 
 

Task 5:  Prepare Public Hearing Draft of Land 
Development Code (LDC) and Zoning Map 

5.1  Public Hearing Draft 

 Based on input from Tasks 3.2 and 4, Contractor will make 
revisions and deliver a Public Hearing Draft of the Land 
Development Code (LDC), and zoning map. An executive 
summary that explains the structure of the LDC and the 
changes that have been made will accompany the Public 
Hearing Draft. The Public Hearing Draft will include a total of 
$9,000 of graphics, a consolidated table of contents, 
illustrations, and an index for ease of use by reviewers. It will 
be produced in a common word processing format, include 
search and linking capabilities, and be web-ready. 
Recommendations will also be provided on long-term 
document management and codification maintenance. 

 

5.2  Public Hearing/Work Session 

Once the Public Hearing Draft of the LDC is made available, 
Contractor will attend work session(s) or public hearing(s) 
with the Planning Commission and City Council, as 
appropriate, during one, two and one-half day trip to the city, 
to present the public hearing draft and answer questions. 
Contractor will be available to attend additional public 
hearings and work sessions on a time and materials basis. 

  

5.3  Final Draft  

After adoption of the LDC, Contractor will commit up to 
$7500 of resources (professional services) to make any final 
revisions to the LDC and zoning map, and deliver a final 
version of the adopted Land Development Code and all 
associated graphic files, and a zoning map to city staff. The 
LDC will be usable by MuniCode and will be web-ready. The 
zoning map will be amendable in GIS. 

 

 

 

TASK 5: PREPARE PUBLIC 

HEARING DRAFT OF LAND 

DEVELOPMENT CODE – 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND 

DELIVERABLES 

CONTRACTOR 

 Prepare Public Hearing 
Draft of  LDC and 
zoning map, 
including total of 
$9,000 of graphics  

 Prepare executive 
summary of 
ordinance 

 Attend public 
hearing/work 
sessions on Public 
Hearing Draft as 
described in Task 5 

 Commit $7500 of 
resources to make 
final revisions to 
LDC, after adoption 

CITY STAFF 

 Distribute Public 
Hearing Draft of  
LDC and zoning map 

 Organize public 
hearing/work session 

TRIPS 

 One, two and one-half 
day trip to conduct 
public hearing/work 
session 

SCHEDULE 

 Completed: One month 
after completion of 
Task 4, or date 
mutually determined 
by city staff and 
Contractor 

88



Apopka, FL / Rewrite of Land Development Code 
December 2016 
Agreement with Clarion Associates  Page B-1 

EXHIBIT B: COMPENSATION  
 

 

Tasks  Cost 

Task 1: Project Initiation $25,840.00 

Task 2: Code Assessment $43,150.00 

Task 3: Draft Land Development Code and Zoning Map $99,280.00 

Task 4: Test Draft Land Development Code and Zoning 
Map 

$17,990.00 

Task 5: Prepare Public Hearing Draft of Land 
Development Code and Zoning Map 

$21,950.00 

Graphics  $9,000.00 

Website $5,500.00 

Zoning Map $7,500.00 

Final revisions after adoption (not to exceed) $7,500.00 

TOTAL $237,710 

 
 

89



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

11. Authorize the disposal of surplus playground equipment and the removal from the city asset list. 
  

90



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  December 7, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Recreation 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Surplus Forms 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT/PROPERTY AND 

REMOVAL OF ASSET PROPERTY FROM THE CITY ASSET LIST.  
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Staff requests City Council approval to dispose of surplus capital equipment/property which has no useful 

benefit to the daily operation of the city. This request is per Administrative Policy 122.1.1.II: “The 

disposal of capital asset property which is obsolete, or for which the continued use would be 

uneconomical or inefficient, shall be in accordance with Florida Statue 274 and must be approved by the 

City Council”. The asset property includes the disposal of items by auction, donation, or elimination.  

 

The playground at the Apopka Athletic Complex is over 20 years old and has become a safety hazard. 

Replacement parts for this playground are no longer available. Equipment images are attached.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the disposal of playground equipment. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

91



 

 

92



 

 

 

93



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Final Development Plan & Development Agreement – Emerson North Townhomes - Quasi-Judicial  David Moon 
  

94



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity & Aerial Maps 

X OTHER: Final Dev. Plan  Final Development Plan 

   Landscape Plans 

   Building & Wall Details 

   Developer’s Agreement 

   Road/Landscape Concept Plans 
  
SUBJECT:  EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

AND DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 
    
REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF THE EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES FINAL 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND DEVELPER’S AGREEMENT; AND 
ISSUANCE OF THE FINAL DEVEDLOPMENT ORDER. 

 

SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Pulte Group c/o Doug Hoffman 
 
ENGINEER:   Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc. c/o John T. Townsend, P.E.  
 
LOCATION:   1701 Ocoee Apopka Road (South of S.R. 414 and West of Marden Road) 
 
ZONING:   Mixed-EC 
      
FUTURE LAND USE: Mixed Use (0-15 du/ac) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Planted Pine Trees 
 
PROPOSED USE:  Residential Townhomes Community (136) units & future public right-of-way 
 
TRACT SIZE: 21.42 +/- (17.1 acres in residential community; 4.24 acres for East Harmon Road 

ROW) 
 
DENSITY:   7.95 Units\Acre (136 units\17.1 acres) 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  A developer’s agreement addresses (1) the dedication of right-of-way for the 
eastward extension of Harmon Road from the western boundary of the Emerson North Townhome Project 
to Marden Road, and (2) construction of Harmon Road within this right-of-way dedication.  Construction 
of Harmon Road East is anticipated to be funded from transportation impact fees.  The developer’s 
agreement identifies both the developer’s and the City’s share of the cost for road construction and right-
of-way dedication.  
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief  

95



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND  
DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Central Florida Expressway R-O-W S.R. 414 

East (City) Mixed Use R-3 Vacant Land/Planted Pines Trees 

South (City) Mixed Use Mixed-EC Emerson Park/Single family houses and townhomes 

West (City) Central Florida Expressway R-O-W Vacant Land/Retention Pond 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   City Council approved a Preliminary Development Plan for the Emerson 
North Townhomes Residential Subdivision on September 21, 2016 with a condition that a developer’s 
agreement address the dedication of right-of-way and construction of Harmon Road East.  After review by 
the Development Review Committee (DRC), the Final Development Plan is consistent with the approved 
Preliminary Development Plan.  A developer’s agreement was submitted by Pulte Homes, the applicant, 
and has been reviewed by the DRC, city administration, and the city attorney’s office.  City staff is satisfied 
with the developer’s agreement.  A summary of the proposed project is described below. 
 
PROJECT SUUMARY:  The Emerson North Townhomes Final Development Plan is a two phase project 
proposing 136 townhome units with 3.12 +/- acres of active and passive recreation and open space within 
a 17.1 +/- acre site.  Comprising a total of 21.42 acres, the Final Development Plan reserves the northern 
eighty feet of the northern project line for a future public right-of-way.  A developer’s agreement establishes 
a process for the dedication of the right-of-way to the City and addresses fair-share compensation of the 
right-of-way dedication and road construction.  Proposed design plans for the Harmon Road East Extension 
include aesthetic brick pavers at intersections and a concept landscape plan.  Final details of the roadside 
and median landscaping and materials will be addressed by the end of January 2017. 
 
The Mixed-EC zoning designation requires a minimum of 2.565 acres for parks and open space for this 
residential community to be owned and maintained by the homeowners’ association.  All internal roads will 
be private streets also maintained by the homeowners’ association.  The project entrances will be gated.  
The proposed living area for the townhomes is 1,530 sq. ft. which exceeds the 1,350 sq. ft. minimum 
requirement and the 1,500 sq. ft. aggregate for the Mixed-EC zoning designation. 
 
The minimum setbacks applicable to the project are: 
 

Setback Min. Standard 
Perimeter 25’ 
Front 50’* 
Side 20’* 
Rear 50’* 
*Distance between structures. 

 
Building Architecture:  Exterior elevations of all proposed homes must be reviewed by the Community 
Development Department prior to issuance of a building permit.  Exterior home elevations must meet the 
intent of the City’s Development Design Guidelines.  Staff has determined that the current architectural 
renderings within the Master Plan meet the intent of the City’s Development Design Guidelines. 
 
Access:  Ingress/egress for the development will be via two access points from Harmon Road.  The western 
access/gate will become available at the time East Harmon Road is extended to the west. 
 
 
 

96



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND  
DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 
PAGE 3 

 
Stormwater:  The stormwater management system includes an on-site retention area.  Stormwater ponds 
are located within Tract “B” and Tract “C.”  The design of the stormwater ponds meets the City’s Land 
Development Code requirements. 
 
Recreation:  The developer is providing over 3.12 acres of active and passive recreation space when only 
2.565 acres is required.  The applicant is proposing a swimming pool with a cabana (1,500 +/- sq. ft.) and 
a tot lot within the active recreational space.   
 
Buffer/Tree Program:  Buffers provided are consistent with the Land Development Code.  The planted 
pine is exempt from the arbor requirements and will be harvested for silviculture purposes.  A buffer wall 
detail  for the landscape tract along Harmon Road East is provided within the support documents. 
 
The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 
 

Total inches on-site: 15,277 
Total number of specimen trees: 2 

Total specimen inches retained: 0 
Total inches replaced: 1,033 
Total inches removed: 1,606 
Total inches retained: 1,441 
Total inches post development: 2,474 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL:  The developer must obtain approval from the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection prior to commencing any site construction activity regarding protection and 
relocation of any identified protected species.  
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Except for any plat application that addresses only the northern public 
right-of-way to be dedicated to the City of Apopka, a plat or building permit involving a residential structure 
shall not be released for recording with the County Comptroller until such time that a concurrency 
mitigation agreement has been approved by Orange County Public Schools (OCPS). 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment 
and rezoning applications for this property.  Coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding 
impact on adjacent parcels.  Orange County also receives a copy of the Development Review Committee 
agenda. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
The Development Review Committee finds the Final Development Plan to be consistent with the approved 
Preliminary Development Plan and Land Development Code, recommending approval of the Emerson 
North Townhomes Final Development Plan and the Developer’s Agreement. 
 
Planning Commission:  As the Planning Commission reviewed the Preliminary Development Plan for this 
project, development review process within the Land Development Code does not require Planning 
Commission to review a Final Development Plan.  The Planning Commission did recommend approval of 
the Preliminary Development Plan with conditions at its August 9, 2016 meeting. 
 
City Council Recommended Motion:  Approve the Emerson North Townhomes Final Development Plan 
and the Developer’s Agreement; and authorize issuance of a final development order. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

97



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND  
DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 
PAGE 4 

 

 

 

 

EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES 

 21.42 +/- Acres (17.1 acres residential\4.24 future R.O.W) 

Proposed Number of Units: 136 

Parcel ID#: 20-21-28-0000-00-001 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

98



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND  
DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 
PAGE 5 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 

 

99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Final Development Plan/Plat – Maudehelen, Phase 4 – Quasi-Judicial      Rogers 
Beckett 

  

144



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Maps 

X OTHER:   Final Development Plan 

    Landscape Plan 

    Plat 
  
SUBJECT:    MAUDEHELEN, PHASE 4 – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE MAUDEHELEN, PHASE 4, FINAL DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN/PLAT; AND ISSUE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT ORDER. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  GK Maudehelen, LLLP 
 
PROJECT ENGINEER:  Morris Engineering and Consulting, LLC 
     c/o Matthew J. Morris, P.E.  
 
LOCATION:    South of Beardsley Drive and East of Binion Road 

 
FUTURE LAND USE:   Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 
 
ZONING:    R-2 
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant Land 
 
PROPOSED USE:   Single Family Residential Subdivision (15 Lots) 
         
TRACT SIZE:    6.98 +/- Acres  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  

145



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MAUDEHELEN, PHASE 4 – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-2 Maudehelen, Phase 3 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-2 Maudehelen, Phase 2 

South (County) Rural (1du/10ac) A-1 SFR (1) Manf. Homes (2) 

West (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1 Clear Lake Landing Subdivision 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The MAUDEHELEN, PHASE 4 - Final Development Plan/Plat proposes 

the development of 15 single family residential lots in Phase 4.  Maudehelen Phase 4 Final Development 

Plan was revised to accommodate the re-alignment of Johns Road. On October 19, 2016 with the adoption 

of Ordinance 2523 a section of Johns Road was vacated to help facilitate better access for property owners 

located south of Maudehelen, Phases 2 and 4.  

 

The minimum typical lot width in Phase 4 is 70 feet and Phase 4 has a minimum lot size of 7,500 square 

feet.  The proposed minimum living area is 1,800 square feet which exceeds (1,350 square feet) as set forth 

in Chapter 2 of the Land Development Code.      

 

The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 

Setback Min. Standard 

*Front 25’ 

Side 7.5’ 

Rear 20’ 

Corner 25’ 
*Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet. 

 

Access:    Ingress/egress for the phase 4 will be via Beardsley Drive and Johns Road.   

 

Stormwater:  The retention ponds have been designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code 

requirements. 

 

Buffer/Tree Program and Landscaping: Buffers are provided consistent with the Land Development 

Code. A ten-foot wide buffer is proposed along South Binion Road with a six-foot high brick or masonry 

wall.  The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the property.  The planting 

materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape standards set forth 

in Ordinance No. 2069.    

 

The following is a summary of the tree replacement program: 

 

Total inches on-site:  890 

Total number of specimen trees: 6 

Total inches removed:  642 

Total inches replaced:  1,385 

Total Inches (Post Development): 1,883 

  

School Capacity Report:  A Schools Concurrency Mitigation Agreement was executed by Orange County 

Public Schools and Maudehelen Ph.4 on March 7, 2015. 146



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MAUDEHELEN, PHASE 4 – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE 3 

 

Orange County Notification:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment and rezoning 

application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding impact on 

adjacent parcels.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 14, 2016 - Planning Commission, 5:30 p.m. 

December 7, 2016 - City Council, 7:00 p.m. 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the Maudehelen, Phase 4 - Final 

Development Plan/Plat, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2016, unanimously recommended approval of 
the Maudehelen Phase 4, Final Development Plan\Plat, subject to the information and findings in the staff 
report.  

City Council Recommended Motion: Approve the Maudehelen Phase 4, Final Development Plan\Plat, 
and issuance of the Final Development Order, subject to information in the staff report. 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

147



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MAUDEHELEN, PHASE 4 – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE 4 

 

Project:   Maudehelen, Phase 4 

Application:  Final Development Plan/Plat 
Owner:  GK Maudehelen, LLLP 
Project Engineer: Morris Engineering and Consulting, Inc., c/o Matthew J. Morris, P.E. 
Parcel ID #s:  07-21-28-0000-00-052 and 07-21-28-0000-00-054 

Acres:   6.98 +/- 
 
 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

  

Maudehelen 

148



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MAUDEHELEN, PHASE 4 – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE 5 

 

Project:  Maudehelen, Phase 4 

Application:  Final Development Plan/Plat 
Owner:  GK Maudehelen, LLLP 
Project Engineer: Morris Engineering and Consulting, Inc., c/o Matthew J. Morris, P.E. 
Parcel ID #s:  07-21-28-0000-00-052 and 07-21-28-0000-00-054 

Acres:   6.98 +/- 
 
 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 
149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2510 – Second Reading – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 74 “Business Tax Receipts” – Legislative
 Postpone 

  

157



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBIT(S): Ordinance No. 2510 

X OTHER: Ordinance    

 
 
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2510 - AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

  

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2510 – TO ALLOW 
ADMINISTRATIVEE APPROVAL OF VEHICLE FOR HIRE 
PERMITS.  

SUMMARY:  
 
Currently, the process to review a Vehicle for Hire Permit application requires a public hearing 
before the City Council to make a determination of approval, approval with conditions, or denial.  
Review by City Council has produced little or no public benefit for having the extended review 
process. These processes are costly and time consuming for the City as well as permit applicants. 
Staff is requesting that Chapter 74, Article IV, Section 74-104 pertaining To “Vehicles for Hire” 
be amended by removing language indicating that City Council approval is required for Vehicle 
for Hire permits. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 7, 2016 - City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm)  
September 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) – Postponed to October 5, 2016 
October 5, 2016 - City Council 2nd Reading (1:30 pm) – Postponed to November 2, 2016 
November 2, 2016 - City Council 2nd Reading (1:30 pm) – Postponed to December 7, 2016 
December 7, 2016 - City Council 2nd Reading (1:30 pm) 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 19, 2016 – Public Hearing Notice 
September 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer   Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners    HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator   IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  

158



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CHAPTER 74 – BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT 
PAGE 2 

 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the amendment to the City of 
Apopka, Code of Ordinances, amending Chapter 74, Article IV, Section 74-104, pertaining To 
“Vehicles for Hire” by removing language indicating that City Council approval is required for 
drivers. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 21, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of 
Ordinance No. 2510 due to concerns expressed by the transportation network company, Lyft, and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on October 5, 2016. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on October 5, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of Ordinance 
No. 2510; and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on November 2, 2016 to allow the 
new Community Development Director time to acquaint himself with the amendment. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 2, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of 
Ordinance No. 2510; and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 7, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2510 
 
Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and 

its findings are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

159



ORDINANCE NO. 2510 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING CHAPTER 74, ARTICLE IV, SECTION 74-104 

OF THE CITY OF APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES 

PERTAINING TO “VEHICLES FOR HIRE” BY REMOVING 

LANGUAGE INDICATING THAT CITY COUNCIL 

APPROVAL IS REQUIRED FOR DRIVERS; AND 

PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka believes that it is necessary and in 

the best interest of the City to remove requirements for City Council approval of drivers for 

“vehicles for hire.” 

 

LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING:  Underlined words constitute additions to the City of 

Apopka Code of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks 

(***) indicate an omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  Section 74-104 of the City of Apopka Code of Ordinances is hereby 

amended as follows:  

 

Sec. 74-104. - Schedule. 

There is hereby assessed, levied and imposed upon every business, trade, occupation and 

profession carried on within the city an annual business tax in the following amounts:  

*** 

Vehicle for hire. (with driver) Must comply with requirements of City Code Chapter 86.  

(City council approval required)  

(1) 1 to 6 passengers, first vehicle .....61.00  

(2) 7+ passengers, first vehicle .....61.00  

(3) Each additional vehicle .....24.00  

*** 

160



ORDINANGE NO. 2510 

PAGE 2 

 

SECTION 2. CODIFICATION.  It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions 

of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Apopka; and the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the 

Code, and Sections of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered 

and the word “ordinance" may be changed to " chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other 

appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which 

do not affect the intent may be authorized by the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing 

a corrected or re-codified copy of same with the City Clerk. 

SECTION 3. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 

are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of 

this ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, 

administrative agency, or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, 

subsection, sentences, clauses, or phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, 

provisions, requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and 

be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

December 7, 2016 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Cliff B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 19, 2016 

       September 9, 2016 

161



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2511 – Second Reading - Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86 “Vehicles for Hire.” – Legislative  Postpone 
 

  

162



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBIT(S): Ordinance No. 2511 

X OTHER:  Ordinance    TNC Comments 
  
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2511 - AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES.  
  
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2511 – UPDATING THE VEHICLE FOR 

HIRE REQUIREMENS. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 

The current process for review and approval of a Vehicle for Hire Permit (VHP) is to have an applicant submit 

the appropriate application and back up documentation, submit for a criminal background check, schedule to 

have the application reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC) and finally scheduled for review 

by the City Council.  This process has caused difficulties and angst among the applicants which is inevitably 

directed toward administrative staff. This has increased with the popularity of Transportation Network 

Application companies such as Uber and Lyft.  A review of the VHP process revealed that there were greater 

efficiencies that could be achieved if the process were administratively based.  This would allow transportation 

service providers to receive their permits in approximately one week versus the current process which can take 

1-2 months dependent upon the timing of the application submittal as it relates to DRC and City Council 

schedules. 
 
Initially it was determined that a simple ordinance revision would be required to remove the DRC and City 
Council from the process.  However as staff and the City Attorney reviewed the Chapter 86 of the Code of 
Ordinances it became evident that the code was so outdated that a complete revision was necessary.  This is 
primarily based upon the fact that when the code was written, the only option available to hire a vehicle was 
through a taxi company. This has changed drastically based upon the advent of digitally based companies. 
 
The City Attorney conducted a preliminary review of the current requirements to identify possible amendments 
to address the emerging technologies and practices in the provision of passenger transportation services.  Based 
on this preliminary review, it was determined that the current chapter be repealed and replaced it in its entirety. 
 
Many of the vehicle for hire permitting requirements relate directly to ensuring public safety, including a 
satisfactory criminal background check, and proof of insurance.  Such requirements are important for any type 
of vehicle for hire service, whether it is a traditional taxicab company or a network of independent contractors 
providing transportation services through a transportation network company. 
 
The proposed ordinance is based upon models in Orlando and Tallahassee which have proven successful. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 7, 2016 - City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm)  
September 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) – Postponed to October 5, 2016 
October 5, 2016 - City Council 2nd Reading (1:30 pm) – Postponed to November 2, 2016 
November 2, 2016 - City Council 2nd Reading (1:30 pm) – Postponed to December 7, 2016 
December 7, 2016 - City Council 2nd Reading (1:30 pm) 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

163



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CHAPTER 86 – VEHICLE FOR HIRE 
PAGE 2 

 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 19, 2016 – Public Hearing Notice 
September 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

N/A 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the amendment to the City of Apopka, Code 

of Ordinances, amending the City of Apopka, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86 – Vehicle for Hire - vacating 

and deleting the provisions of chapter 86 of the city code as currently written, adopting new provisions in said 

chapter amending the permitting and regulation of taxicabs and creating regulations for transportation services 

and transportation network application companies and operators. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on September 7, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2511 

and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 21, 2016. 

 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 21, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 
2511 due to concerns expressed by the transportation network company, Lyft, and held it over for Second 
Reading and Adoption on October 5, 2016. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on October 5, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2511; 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on November 2, 2016 to allow the new Community 
Development Director time to acquaint himself with the amendment. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 2, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 
2511; and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 7, 2016 to allow the new Community 
Development Director to coordinate with the City Attorney to address the transportation network companies 
concerns. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2511. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its findings 

are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

164



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 
VACATING AND DELETING THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 86 
OF THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES AS CURRENTLY 
WRITTEN, ADOPTING NEW PROVISIONS IN SAID CHAPTER 
AMENDING THE PERMITTING AND REGULATION OF 
TAXICABS AND CREATING REGULATIONS FOR 
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AND TRANSPORTATION 
NETWORK APPLICATION COMPANIES AND OPERATORS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka believes that it is necessary and in the best 
interest of the City to update its regulations for vehicles for hire in recognition of changes and advances 
in modern business models of private automobile transportation. 

 

LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING: Underlined words constitute additions to the City of Apopka 
Code of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks (***) indicate 
an omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE    CITY OF 
APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

 
SECTION 1. The provisions of CHAPTER 86, VEHICLES FOR HIRE, shall be vacated and 

deleted in its entirety, and the following shall be adopted in their place. The provisions to be vacated and 
deleted are attached as Exhibit “A.” 

 

Chapter 86 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL 

Sec. 86-1. - Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

Company means any person, association, corporation or other organization which operates or 
intends to engage in the business of operating vehicles for hire or operate as a TNC. 

Conviction means the conviction by a court including an adjudication of guilt on a plea of guilty or 
nolo contendere or the forfeiture of a bond when charged with a crime. 

Digital platform means any online or smartphone enabled application that allows passengers to 
request transportation network vehicle services. 

Digital credential means the permission or access given to a driver to operate on a company's digital 
platform. 

Driver means an individual permitted to drive a vehicle for hire. 

Fees mean nonrefundable payments required in this chapter. 

Limousine means a specialized vehicle not equipped with a taximeter and for hire only by 
prearrangement at a rate charged per hour, or fixed in advance, and provided also that each such vehicle 
for hire is: (1) chauffeured, (2) a luxury class passenger vehicle built or modified for the purpose of a 
limousine as defined and recognized by the limousine industry; and (3) operated on a reserved, hourly  

  

165



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 
PAGE 2 of 16 

 
basis for a continuous period. A vehicle which is held out to be a limousine or which has an appearance 
deceptively similar to a limousine is a limousine for the purposes of this chapter. 

Narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and central nervous system stimulants. The term 
"narcotic drugs" as used in this chapter shall mean coca leaves, opium, cannabis, marijuana, isonipecaine 
and every synthetic substance known to have narcotic action. The term "barbituric acid derivative" means 
each of the salts and derivatives of barbituric acid, also known as malonyl urea, and derivatives, 
compounds, mixtures or preparations thereof. "Barbiturate" or "barbiturates" shall include all hypnotic 
or somnifacient drugs, whether or not derivatives of barbituric acids. The term "central nervous system 
stimulants" means amphetamine and desocyephedrine, and any derivative, compounds, mixture or 
preparation thereof. 

Permit means the authority granted to companies to operate, or persons who qualify to drive, 
vehicles for hire. 

Revocation means the rescinding of a permit. A person or entity whose permit is revoked shall not 
be entitled to reinstatement or an opportunity to reapply for such permit for a period of two years except 
as provided in subsection 86-61(5). 

Shuttle bus means a vehicle with a capacity of at least eight persons, including the driver, that is 
operated on a fixed route, or owner and operated directly by a motel or hotel and limited to registered 
guests thereof. 

Suspension means the temporary rescinding of a permit or license. The suspension may be for a time 
certain or indefinite pending compliance with the terms of this chapter. 

Taxicab means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, including the driver, 
equipped with a taximeter operated under a company and vehicle permit required by this article, which 
is routed under the direction of the person hiring the vehicle. 

Taximeter means an instrument or device attached to a vehicle and designed to measure 
mechanically or electronically the distance traveled by such vehicle, to record the times such vehicle 
travels or is in waiting, and to indicate the fare to be obtained. 

Transportation service means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, 
including the driver, which is not equipped with a taximeter, which charges passengers a fare generally 
based on a flat fee, and does not operate over a fixed or defined route but routed under the direction of 
the person hiring the vehicle. 

Transportation network application company ("TNC company") means any company operating in 
the city that uses a digital network or software application to connect a passenger to transportation 
network services provided by a transportation network operator. 

Transportation network operator means any driver or operator who operates a personal vehicle that 
utilizes any digital platform to arrange transportation of a passenger between points chosen by the 
passenger and that is in connection with a digital platform controlled by a TNC company. 

Transportation network service means the provision of transportation by a transportation network 
operator to a rider, beginning when the transportation network operator accepts a ride requested through 
a digital platform controlled by a TNC company, continuing while the transportation network operator 
transports a requesting rider, and ending when the last requesting rider departs from the personal vehicle. 

Use of narcotic drugs. The word "use" as employed in this chapter in relation to the drugs described 
in this chapter shall apply to any person who uses one or more of the narcotic drugs or barbituric acid 
derivatives or central nervous system stimulants as defined this section to any extent, with or without 
medical need or authority or prescription. 

Vehicle for hire means any vehicle, whether owned by the driver or company, that is operated by a 
taxicab driver, transportation service driver, transportation network operator, any other motor    vehicle 

166



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 3 of 16 

 
with driver transporting passengers for a fare, fee, or other charge in the city. The term vehicle for hire, 
by definition, excludes: 

(1) School, church, college or university buses; 

(2) Sightseeing cars and buses; 

(3) Ambulances; 

(4) Funeral home vehicles; 

(5) Interstate buses; 

(6) Limousines; 

(7) Shuttle buses. 

Vehicle for hire administrator means the City Administrator or his/her designee. 

ARTICLE II. - COMPANY PERMIT 

Sec. 86-31. - Application; contents. 

(a) No taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company shall operate or engage in the 
business of operating vehicles for hire or operating a TNC within the city without having first 
obtained a company permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee. An application shall 
be submitted on forms furnished by the vehicles for hire administrator or designee containing 
appropriate information which is reasonably related to the business of operating vehicles for hire. 

(b) In order to secure or renew a company permit, the company applicant shall file an application with 
the vehicles for hire administrator or designee, and such application shall be verified under oath and 
shall furnish the following information: 

(1) The name and address of the company. If the company is a corporation or partnership, the name 
and address of all officers, shareholders, partners or any principals or owners with an interest 
greater than twenty percent of the company must be listed. 

(2) The color scheme and insignia to be used to designate the vehicles of any taxicab company. 

(3) No company permit shall be granted to a taxicab company operating less than five vehicles. 
The vehicles must be currently operating, licensed, and inspected as required by this chapter. 
Each vehicle must conform to the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
maximum passenger standards allowed for the vehicle to operate. 

(4) Proof of proper amount of insurance coverage as provided in section 86-93, with the insurance 
coverage being filed with vehicle for hire administrator and approved by the City. 

(5) Such other information as the vehicle for hire administrator may require. 

(c) Payment of an annual company permit fee of $250.00. 

Sec. 86-32. - Maintaining a company permit. 

(a) In order to maintain a company permit to operate or engage in the business of operating vehicles for 
hire or operating a TNC, the company must: 

(1) Obtain and hold a current business tax receipt from the city as required by chapter 74, if 
applicable. 

(2) Maintain a telephone number that is monitored 24 hours a day for emergency contact by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee or law enforcement, and an e-mail address for citizen 
complaints or concerns. 

167



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 4 of 16 

 
(3) Maintain the name, home address, and telephone number of each driver affiliated with the 

company. 

(4) Maintain a log listing the year, make, model, license plate number of all vehicles in the 
company's fleet or that operate on a company's platform. 

(5) Maintain proper amount of insurance as provided in section 86-93. 

(6) Maintain records available for inspection, upon request by the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee, pursuant to a complaint received or if the vehicle for hire administrator has a 
reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this chapter. 
The records shall include, but not be limited to, records pertaining to permitted/certified drivers, 
vehicle inspection records, daily logs, and that the maximum rate charged in compliance with 
section 86-95. Unless otherwise agreed to by the company and the vehicle for hire 
administrator, such records shall be made available for inspection to the vehicle for hire 
administrator at a permit holder's place of business or a mutually agreed location in the city. 

(7) Each company shall implement a zero-tolerance policy on the use of drugs or alcohol applicable 
to all drivers, and provide notice of the policy to all company drivers and to the public through 
its website, if applicable. In addition, the company shall provide notice to the public on the 
procedure for reporting a driver the passenger reasonably suspects was under the influence of 
drugs or alcohol during the course of the ride. The company shall cooperate with the vehicle 
for hire administrator or designee during the pendency of the investigation pursuant to 
subsection 86-63(b)(3). 

(8) The vehicle for hire administrator or police chief is authorized to conduct annual audits of any 
company authorized to operate under this chapter. The company shall provide to the vehicle for 
hire administrator, on request, up to 250 unique identification numbers, each of which has been 
assigned to an individual driver affiliated with the company. The vehicle for hire administrator 
may send to the company a list of up to ten driver identification numbers and request copies of 
records held by the company for those ten drivers. Within five business days of receiving a 
request seeking records, the company shall make available to the vehicle for hire administrator 
at a company's place of business or a mutually agreed setting in the city, records to verify that 
the company has properly screened drivers in accordance with section 86-61; provided, that the 
company may redact any records it provides access to in order to protect the privacy and 
identifying information of the driver. 

Sec. 86-33. - Revocation or suspension of a company permit; grounds; right of appeal. 

(a) Revocation or suspension of company permit; grounds. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined in 
subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the authority 
to revoke or suspend any company permit which has been granted or which may hereinafter be 
granted by the city. Prior to suspension or revocation, the company shall be served notice by certified 
mail or hand delivery of the proposed action to be taken and shall have an opportunity to present to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee evidence as to why the company permit should not be 
revoked or suspended. 

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a company permit 
shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 

(1) The failure of the company to maintain any of the general qualifications applicable to the initial 
granting of the company permit as set forth in section 86-31 or maintaining a company permit 
as set forth in section 86-32. 

(2) Obtaining a company permit by providing false information. 

168



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 5 of 16 

 
(3) Conviction by a court of competent jurisdiction of any shareholder, officer, partner, member, 

principal or owner of any corporation, partnership, firm or association holding a five percent 
interest or more in the entity, of any of the following: criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, 
aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, child molestation, lewd 
and lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to 
commit any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system 
stimulants if such violation or violations are related to operation of the company, or violation 
of any ordinance of the city governing the conduct of a company. 

(4) Allowing any person to operate a company's designated vehicle for hire, or operate on the 
company's digital platform, without an active driver permit or credential, or when said person's 
permit or credential has been suspended or revoked because of a positive drug test pursuant to 
section 86-63. 

(c) Right of appeal. Any company whose permit is revoked or suspended by the vehicle for hire 
administrator or designee may appeal such decision to the City Council. Such appeal shall be taken 
by filing written notice thereof, in duplicate, with the city administrator's office within five days 
after the decision of the vehicles for hire administrator or designee. The notice of the appeal shall 
contain the grounds for the appeal and shall contain information that either the finding is contrary 
to the law or is not supported by competent substantial evidence. The vehicle for hire administrator 
or designee shall forthwith transmit copies of the appeal to the City Council along with all papers 
constituting the record upon which the action appealed from is based. The filing of a notice of appeal 
will not delay the effectiveness of any suspension or revocation. 

ARTICLE III. - VEHICLE FOR HIRE DRIVERS 

Sec. 86-60. - Prohibition against unauthorized operation. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate on behalf of a taxicab company, transportation 
service, or other vehicle for hire for the transportation of passengers within the city, or on a TNC's 
digital platform, or to cause or permit any other person to drive or operate a vehicle for hire: 

(1) Without first obtaining a written permit for the operation of a motor vehicle for hire from the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee; 

(2) Without having been certified to operate a motor vehicle for hire on behalf of a company or on 
the company's digital platform; or 

(3) When the company permit has previously been revoked pursuant to section 86-33. 

(b) Any person found to have violated this section shall be punished by the following: 

(1) A fine $150.00 for the first citation; 

(2) A fine of $250.00 for the second citation; and 

(3) A fine of $500.00 for the third or subsequent citation. 

Sec. 86-61. - Application for driver's permit. 

(a) In order to secure a driver permit or to obtain certification from a company, an applicant must: 

(1) Be at least 18 years of age; 

(2) Possess a valid state driver's license; 

(3) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have been convicted of: 

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs; or 

169



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 6 of 16 

 
b. Violation of any ordinance or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 

operation of a motor vehicle. 

(4) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have more than three moving 
violations; 

(5) Not have been convicted within the seven years previous to the date of application for the 
violation of any of the following criminal offenses of the state or any other state or of the United 
States: aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, lewd and 
lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit 
any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the offenses listed in this subsection, or 
been convicted within the last seven years of any felony in the commission of which a motor 
vehicle was used, perjury or false swearing in making any statement under oath in connection 
with application for a driver's permit, any felony involving theft, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivative and/or central nervous system 
stimulants. Applicants who have been convicted or served any time, probation, or parole for a 
criminal offense of homicide, rape, sexual battery, or child molestation must have their 
complete criminal history reviewed and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator; 

(6) Be able to communicate in the English language. 

(b) An applicant may apply for a permit or credential by completing a form provided by the vehicle for 
hire administrator establishing that the applicant meets the requirements of subsection. 

(c) Upon approval by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or certification by the taxicab 
company, transportation service, or TNC company, the driver shall be issued: 

(1) A permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee; or 

(2) Credentials from the taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company, which may be 
digital credentials, indicating that the driver was certified by the company, and the credential 
shall include the following information: 

a. The name or logo of the company; 

b. The name of the driver; 

c. The license plate number associated with the vehicle that the driver has been authorized to 
use. 

(3) The driver shall display the permit or credential in a manner that it is visible to the passengers 
of the vehicle while the vehicle is operating, or make available at a minimum the driver's first 
name, photograph, and make, model, and license plate number to the passenger through the 
company's digital platform. The driver shall present the permit or credential upon request to a 
law enforcement officer, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or designated airport 
personnel upon request. If the driver maintains a digital credential, upon a traffic stop, a driver 
shall provide law enforcement with access to a device containing the information required to 
be maintained as part of the driver's digital credential and an electronic record sufficient to 
establish that the trip in question was prearranged through a digital platform. 

(d) An applicant must pay an annual driver application fee of $100.00. 

Sec. 86-62. - Maintaining driver's permit. 

In order to maintain a valid permit or credential to drive a taxicab, transportation service, or other 
vehicle for hire, a driver must: 

(1) Wear proper dress while operating a vehicle for hire. 

(2) Maintain a neat appearance. 

170



  

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 7 of 16 
 

(3) Not smoke while carrying passengers. 

(4) Maintain a log upon which are recorded all trips made each day, showing time and place of 
origin and destination of each trip and amount of fare. Such logs must be maintained by the 
company or the vehicle owner, if not maintained by the driver, and shall be made available to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for a compliance inquiry if the administrator has 
a reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this 
chapter. 

(5) Renew his driver's permit or credential during the month of the driver's permit or credential 
expiration date. 

(6) Wear a seatbelt at all times while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation 
network services. 

Sec. 86-63. - Revocation or suspension of driver's permits; grounds; right of appeal. 

(a) Revocation or suspension of driver's permits or credential. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined 
in subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the 
authority to revoke or suspend any driver's permit or credential which has been issued or which may 
hereinafter be issued by the city. Before a driver's permit or credential shall be denied, suspended 
or revoked, notice of intention thereof shall be served upon the driver either by registered mail or 
personal service; however, such notice shall not be necessary for a denial of an original permit or 
credential. However, any such applicant or driver shall be given an opportunity to be heard by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee. 

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a driver's permit or 
credential shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 

(1) The failure of the driver to maintain any and all of the general qualifications as applicable to 
the initial issuance of a permit as set forth in section 86-61; 

(2) Obtaining a permit or credential by providing false information; 

(3) Violation by a driver of any of the following offenses: 

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs. A driver shall be required 
to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test at the request of the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee: 

b. Where reasonable suspicion exists that a driver is abusing alcohol or misusing prescription 
drugs or controlled substances; or 

c. Where a driver has been involved in a crash with serious injury or serious property 
damage while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation network services. 
"Serious injury" is defined as a physical condition that creates a substantial risk of death, 
serious personal disfigurement, or protracted loss or impairment of the function of any 
bodily member or organ. "Serious property damage" is defined as one or more of the 
motor vehicles involved in the crash is "totaled", or one or more of the vehicles sustains 
significant disabling damage to public and/or private property which equals or exceeds an 
apparent damage of $5,000.00 or more as estimated by the law enforcement officer who 
conducts the investigation at the scene of the traffic crash; or 

d. Refusing or failing to submit to a drug test at the request of the vehicle for hire administrator 
or designee shall be due cause for revocation of the driver's permit or credential with no 
reapplication for one year. Failing a drug or alcohol test shall be due cause for revocation 
of the driver's permit or credential with no reapplication for one year. 

e. Criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, 
kidnapping,  robbery,  child  molestation,  lewd  and  lascivious  acts,  armed  trespassing, 

171



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 8 of 16 
carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit any of the above, criminal 
attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or distribution of narcotic drugs, 
barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system stimulants, violation of any 
ordinance of the city governing the conduct of drivers of a vehicle for hire. 

(4) Charging a fare contrary to any fares established and approved by the city commission pursuant 
to section 86-95; 

(5) Violation of any ordinances or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 
operation of a taxicab, transportation service, TNC company, or other vehicle for hire; 

(6) Whenever it shall appear that a driver has disorders characterized by lapses of consciousness or 
other mental or physical disabilities affecting his or her ability to drive safely; 

(7) Accumulating nine or more points within a six-month period as outlined in F.S. § 322.27(3)d. 

(8) Violating the requirements of section 86-96. 

Sec. 86-64. - Duration of driver permit. 

Each driver permit or credential issued pursuant to section 86-61 above shall be valid for one year 
from the date of issuance. 

ARTICLE IV. - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

Sec. 86-91. - Identifying signs, monograms and insignias. 

(a) Taxicabs. 

Each taxicab shall be readily identifiable as a taxicab and shall bear on the outside of each rear or 
front door, in letters not less than two inches in height, the name of the person or corporation to 
whom the franchise is issued. Each such taxicab shall also be numbered consecutively, with such 
numbers being placed conspicuously on each vehicle, with such numerals being not less than four 
and one-half inches nor more than six inches in height. 

(b) Transportation services. 

(1) Each vehicle operated by a transportation service shall be readily identifiable as a transportation 
service and shall bear on the outside of each rear or front door, in letters not less than two inches 
in height, the name of the person or corporation to whom the vehicle is owned or operated by. 

(2) No transportation service shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself as a "taxi" or "cab" 
or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab. 

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company/transportation network operator. 

(1) Each vehicle operated by a TNC company or transportation network operator shall display a 
consistent signage or emblem on the transportation network operator’s personal vehicle at all 
times while the transportation network operator is active on the TNC company’s network.  The 
signage or emblem shall be sufficiently large or color-contrasted to be readable during daylight 
hours from a distance of 50 feet, reflective, illuminated, or otherwise visible in darkness, and 
capable of sufficiently identifying a personal vehicle as being associated with the TNC 
company. 

(2) No transportation network operator vehicle shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself 
as a "taxi" or "cab" or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab, or otherwise give the 
impression that the operator is available to solicit passengers other than through the digital 
platform. 

(3) No transportation network operator vehicle shall place any type or form of light device or other 
device on the roof, commonly known as a top light or top hat, whether or not permanently or 
temporarily affixed to the vehicle, or have within the interior of the vehicle. 

172



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 9 of 16 

 

Sec. 86-92. - Taximeter. 

(a) All taxicabs operated under the authority of this chapter shall be equipped with taximeters fastened 
in a manner so that the face thereof shall be visible and readable to passengers at all times both day 
and night. The face of the taximeter shall be set so that it will register and compute on a mileage 
basis while such taxicab is moving and on a time basis while such taxicab is standing and while the 
service is being rendered the fare to be charged. Such taximeter shall be operated mechanically by 
a mechanism of standard design and construction, driven either from the transmission or from one 
of the front wheels by a flexible and permanently attached driving mechanism. 

(b) No vehicle for hire other than a taxicab is authorized to install or be equipped with a taximeter. 

Sec. 86-93. - Liability insurance required. 

No vehicle for hire shall be placed in service unless such vehicle is in compliance with Florida law 
for liability insurance purposes. Proof of such insurance coverage, which may be provided on a blanket 
basis, shall be filed annually with and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for the 
carrying of passengers. 

Sec. 86-94. - Seat belts required. 

All vehicles for hire covered by this chapter shall be equipped with operational seat belts for each 
passenger. 

Sec. 86-95. - Authority of city commission to establish rates and charges; displaying rate cards. 

(a) Taxicabs. 

(1) The city commission may by ordinance establish maximum rates and charges for the 
transportation of persons and their baggage within the corporate limits of the city and suburban 
territory adjacent thereto. Any ordinance establishing rates as provided by this section shall 
become effective 24 hours after its adoption. 

(2) Every taxicab operating under this chapter shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a 
schedule of rates for the transportation of person within the corporate limits of the city, and no 
charges shall be made in excess of the rates so posted. 

(3) There is hereby established a schedule of the maximum rates which can be charged by all 
taxicab drivers operating taxicabs within the city. A taximeter may be set so that it will register 
and compute on a mileage or other basis at less than the maximum rates set forth in this section. 

(b) Transportation service. 

(1) All fares as agreed to between any transportation service operator and any passenger must be 
agreed upon prior to leaving the point of origin. No transportation service operator may increase 
the agreed upon fare after leaving the point of origin. 

(2) No transportation service shall be authorized to charge for wait time, or to charge any other 
rates or fees except for mileage. 

(3) Every transportation service vehicle shall have cards displayed visibly from the outside of the 
vehicle on the passenger side and on the inside of the right rear window at the eye level of a 
seated passenger that state the following: "RATE OF TRANSPORT IS BY FLAT FEE ONLY". 

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company or transportation network operator. 

(1) All TNC companies shall disclose the fare calculation method, the applicable rates being 
charged, and the option for an estimated fare to a passenger before the passenger arranges or 
books a trip with the transportation network application company or transportation network 
operator. 

173



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 10 of 16 

 
(2) Upon completion of the trip, a TNC company shall transmit an electronic receipt to the 

passenger's e-mail or mobile application that lists the: origin and destination of the trip; the total 
time and distance of the trip; and a breakdown of the total fare paid, if any. 

Sec. 86-96. - Miscellaneous regulations and other penalties. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any driver or operator of a vehicle for hire to drive or operate or be on duty 
or on call for the operation of a vehicle for hire for more than 12 hours within any 24-hour period. 

(b) A driver shall take the most direct route to a passenger's destination unless otherwise authorized or 
directed by the passenger. 

(c) No driver shall refuse to accept a passenger unless the passenger is obviously disorderly, dangerous, 
or otherwise a threat to the safety or welfare of the driver. 

(d) It shall be unlawful for the driver operating in the city to permit any person to accompany or use 
such vehicle for hire for the purpose of prostitution, or to direct, take or transport any other person 
with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the purpose of such directing, taking or 
transporting is for the purpose of prostitution. 

(e) No vehicle for hire shall be permitted to carry nonpaying passengers while transporting a paying 
passenger or passengers except for the purpose of driver training. 

(f) No vehicle for hire shall solicit or carry a paying passenger while in the process of carrying another 
paying passenger except when requested to do so by the latter passenger. 

(g) Transportation network operators shall exclusively accept passengers booked through a 
transportation network company's digital platform, and shall not solicit or accept street-hails. 

(h) No TNC company may provide personal information about a passenger to a transportation network 
operator, including a passenger's full name, e-mail address, or telephone number. 

Sec. 86-97. - Enforcement. 

The city police department and the vehicles for hire administrator shall be authorized to enforce the 
regulations contained in this chapter, including the promulgation of rules consistent with this chapter 
and the setting of fees. 

SECTION 2. CODIFICATION. It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka; and 

the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the Code, and Sections 

of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance" 

may be changed to " chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to 

accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which do not affect the intent may be authorized by 

the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing a corrected or re-codified copy of same with the 

City Clerk. 

SECTION 3. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of this 

ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, administrative agency, 

or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, subsection, sentences, clauses, or 

phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

174



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 11 of 16 

 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, 

requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force 

and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

 

READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

December 7, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 
 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 
 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 
 

 

 
 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 
 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  August 9, 2016 

        September 19, 2016    

175



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 12 of 16 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Sec. 86-39. - Liability insurance. 
 

(a) It shall be unlawful for the owner, operator, driver or chauffeur of any taxicab to drive or operate 

the taxicab or to permit the taxicab to be driven or operated upon the public streets, unless such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur shall have first procured and filed with the city clerk a liability 

insurance policy issued by a good and responsible surety company, which insurance company or 

surety company must have authority to do business as such in the state and must be acceptable to 

and approved by the city council. The amount of liability insurance or surety bond for each taxicab 

shall be the minimum required by the state for liability insurance, or, if liability insurance is not 

required by state law, the minimum financial responsibility requirements of the Financial 

Responsibility Law, F.S. ch. 324. 

(b) Such policy of insurance or surety bond may be in the form of a separate policy or separate surety 

bond for each taxicab, or may be in the form of a fleet policy covering all taxicabs operated by such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur, in which latter event such policy of insurance or surety bond 

shall provide the same liability for each taxicab operated in service as specified in subsection (a) of 

this section. Every taxicab hired in service shall have conspicuously displayed therein or thereon 

some sign evidencing the fact that the provisions of this section have been complied with, with the 

form thereof to be prescribed by the chief of police. 

(c) No policy of insurance or surety bond as provided for in this section shall be cancelled until the 

expiration of five days after notice of intended cancellation thereof has been given in writing to the 

city clerk by registered mail or personal delivery of such notice, and a provision therefor shall be 

embodied in the policy or surety bond. 

Sec. 86-40. - Use of streets for transacting business. 
 

Except as provided in this article, no taxicab shall occupy space on the streets for the transaction of 

business other than the picking up of passengers. All places of business of taxicabs shall be maintained 

off the streets. 

Sec. 86-41. - Use of improper vehicles. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to operate or drive, as a taxicab, in or upon any street, any motor- 

driven vehicle, unless the vehicle is a taxicab as defined in this article. 

Sec. 86-42. - Name of owner or operator to be displayed on vehicle. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any taxicab to be driven upon the streets unless the name of the person either 

owning or operating such taxicab, or the trade name under which such taxicab is operated, is 

conspicuously painted on such taxicab in letters not less than two inches in height. 

Sec. 86-43. - Meters. 
 

(a) All taxicabs shall be equipped with mechanical devices, commonly called taxicab meters, for 

registering the fare to be charged. 

176



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 13 of 16 

 

(b) Every meter in use shall be placed in such taxicabs at a location that will be plainly visible at all 

times to the occupants of such taxicabs. Between the hours of sunset and sunrise, the dial of the 

meter shall be illuminated whenever it is in use. 

(c) Whenever a taxicab is not in service, the meter shall show no fare and the flag shall be in the upright 

position. When a taxicab is in service, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be lowered and the 

meter shall be in the calculating position. 

(d) Upon the completion of service by a taxicab, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be raised and 

the meter shall be returned to the noncalculating position and its dials cleared. 

(e) It shall be unlawful for the operator or driver of any taxicab to operate the taxicab on the streets of 

the city with any occupant in such taxicab other than the driver when the flag or indicator on the 

taxicab meter is upright and in the noncalculating position, except when operating on an hourly or 

trip rate. 

(f) When the hourly rate or the special trip rate is used, an appropriate sign indicating that the cab is on 

a trip or hourly rate shall be exhibited. 

(g) It shall be the duty of the person owning and operating taxicabs to have the meter in good working 

condition and operating accurately as to the registration of mileage and fare. Such meters shall be 

sealed in a manner that will prevent any person from tampering with or changing the adjustment of 

the meter. It shall be unlawful for any person to tamper with or change the adjustment of a meter, 

except the owner operating the taxicab to which such meter is affixed, or a person duly designated 

by the owner, or a meter mechanic. 

(h) It shall be unlawful for any person owning and operating taxicabs with meters affixed thereto to 

permit the taxicabs to be operated on the streets of the city when such meters do not accurately 

register the mileage and the rate as set forth by the ordinances of the city. All meters shall be subject 

to inspection and test by any police officer at all times when cabs are not carrying passengers. 

Sec. 86-44. - Rates and charges. 
 

(a) Posting. Each taxicab shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a schedule of rates for the 

transportation of persons within the corporate limits of the city, and no charges shall be made in 

excess of the rates so posted. 

(b) Determination. All rate charges or fees for the use of taxicabs using meters shall be determined by 

a meter rate, hourly rate or special trip rate and by no other method. All charges are for the exclusive 

use of the taxicab, and shall apply regardless of the number of passengers transported. 

Sec. 86-45. - Fare receipts; right to demand payment of fare in advance. 
 

If demanded by the passenger, the driver in charge of a taxicab shall deliver to the person paying 

for the hiring of the taxicab, at the time of such payment, a receipt therefor in legible writing, containing 

the name of the owner and the city license or permit number, showing upon such receipt all items for 

which a charge is made, the total amount paid and the date of payment. Every driver of any such taxicab 

shall have the right to demand payment of the legal fare in advance, and may refuse employment unless 

so prepaid. 

Sec. 86-46. - Soliciting passengers near intersection. 

177



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 14 of 16 

 

It shall be unlawful for any person owning or operating one or more vehicles for hire in the city to 

operate such motor vehicles over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting patronage, 

picking up passengers or delivering passengers at any point within 100 feet of any intersecting street 

corner along such street. It is the purpose and intent of this section to prohibit such practice within 100 

feet in all directions from such intersections. Such distance in all cases shall be measured from the center 

of the intersection. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any taxicab 

or vehicle operated for hire from responding to any specific request for passage from any person seeking 

the services offered by such taxi or motor vehicle or from stopping at any point within the city for the 

purpose of delivering a passenger who has been picked up at any part of the city in a manner not 

prohibited by law. This section shall not apply to any buses or motor vehicles owned or operated by any 

bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city. 

Sec. 86-47. - Soliciting passengers by preceding or following scheduled bus. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person operating motor vehicles for hire in the city to operate such motor 

vehicle over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting the patronage of passengers by 

immediately preceding or following any duly scheduled bus or motor vehicle operated for such purpose 

by any bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city along the streets of the city. 

Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any duly licensed taxi 

from responding to any specific request for passage from any patron seeking the services offered by such 

duly licensed taxi. 

Sec. 86-48. - Smoking by driver. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any driver, operator or chauffeur of any taxicab to smoke while the taxicab 

is occupied by a passenger. 

Sec. 86-49. - Use for immoral purposes. 
 

It shall be unlawful for the driver of a taxicab to permit any person to accompany or use such taxicab 

for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or assignation, or to direct, take or transport, or to offer or agree 

to direct, take or transport, any other person, with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the 

purpose of such directing, taking or transporting is for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or 

assignation. 

Sec. 86-50. - Display of political advertisements. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person licensed by the city to operate or drive a taxicab upon any street 

within the city with a political ad displayed for anyone seeking public office at any time. 

DIVISION 2. - BUSINESS PERMIT 
 

Sec. 86-66. - Required. 
 

It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated any taxicab business unless a permit for the 

operation thereof shall have been first issued by the city council in the manner provided in this division. 

Sec. 86-67. - Application and investigation. 
 

(a) An application for the permit required by this division shall be made in writing to the city council. 

Such application shall set forth the name, residence address, and address of place of business of the 

applicant and the kind, make and model of the vehicle to be used in the business. If the applicant is 

178



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 15 of 16 

 

a copartnership, the application shall give the nmes and residence addresses of the copartners. If the 

application is a corporation, the application shall set forth the name of the corporation and the 

residence address of its officers and board of directors. The application shall set forth the trade name, 

if any, under which the applicant does or proposes to do business. 

(b) Upon the filing of an application, the city clerk shall make an investigation, including any hearing 

deemed necessary, as to each application for a permit for the operation of taxicabs. In determining 

whether a permit shall be issued, the city council shall investigate the fitness of the applicant to 

engage in the business of operating taxicabs and the fitness of the equipment to be used, and shall 

also consider and determine whether the demands of public convenience, necessity and safety justify 

the issuance of such permit. 

Sec. 86-68. - Issuance or denial. 
 

If the city council finds favorably to the applicant and decides to grant a permit for the operation of 

taxicabs, a permit as provided in this division shall be issued to the applicant. If the city council finds 

against the applicant and decides that the public convenience, necessity and safety do not justify the 

issuance of such permit or that the applicant is not fit to conduct the taxicab business or the equipment 

is not fit for such business, then no permit shall be issued, and notice of the action of the city council 

shall be given to the applicant, setting forth the reason for the refusal of such permit. 

Sec. 86-69. - Occupational license required. 
 

Prior to the issuance of a permit for the operation of taxicabs, the applicant shall obtain an 

occupational license. 

Sec. 86-70. - Transfer. 
 

A permit for the operation of taxicabs shall not be transferable, except upon application to and 

consent of the city council. 

Sec. 86-71. - Suspension or revocation. 
 

Whenever any person engaged in the taxicab business is found to be in violation of the provisions 

of this article or the traffic ordinances of the city or of any of the laws of the state, the city council may, 

upon complaint or upon its own motion, issue an order to such person to appear at a fixed time and place 

for investigation. If the city council is satisfied, after such hearing, that such person is guilty of the 

violations charged, it may, in its discretion, suspend for a fixed period or revoke entirely the permit 

issued to such person. 

DIVISION 3. - DRIVER'S PERMIT 
 

Sec. 86-91. - Required. 
 

No person shall operate or drive a taxicab upon any street unless he has obtained a permit pursuant 

to the provisions of this division. 

Sec. 86-92. - Application and investigation. 
 

Any person having resided continuously in the state for not less than six months immediately 

preceding the making of application for a permit to operate a taxicab and being 18 years of age or over 

may make application to the city clerk for a permit to operate a taxicab. A verbal or written examination, 

179



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 16 of 16 

 

or both, may be given by the chief of police to each applicant to determine knowledge of city streets, locations 

and environs. 

Sec. 86-93. - Issuance; contents. 
 

It shall be the duty of the chief of police, if the applicant for a permit under this division is knowledgeable 

of the provisions of this article and of the traffic ordinance of the city, and the applicant pays the required fee 

and otherwise complies with this division for the initial year, to issue such person a written permit, which permit 

shall be signed by the city clerk and sealed with the corporate seal of the city, and shall bear the name, address, 

sex, age, signature, photograph and fingerprints of the applicant. The chief of police shall procure the fingerprints 

and a photograph of the applicant and shall keep the fingerprints and photograph on permanent file in his office. 

The fingerprints and photograph shall be voluntarily furnished by the applicant at the time of filing his 

application. 

Sec. 86-94. - State commercial license required. 
 

No person shall be issued a taxicab driver's permit unless he holds a commercial license issued by the state. 

Sec. 86-95. - Alteration or destruction prohibited. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person holding a taxicab driver's permit to wilfully alter, deface, obliterate or 

destroy the permit, or to cause the permit to be defaced, obliterated or destroyed. 

Sec. 86-96. - Display. 
 

Every driver or operator of any taxicab operated shall have his driver's permit displayed in such taxicab in a 

conspicuous place so as to be easily observed by any person occupying such taxicab. 

Sec. 86-97. - Suspension or revocation. 
 

Whenever any operator or driver of a taxicab is found to be violating the provisions of this article, or the 

traffic ordinances of the city, or any of the laws of the state, the city council may, upon complaint or upon its own 

motion, issue an order to such operator or driver to appear at a fixed time and place for investigation. If the city 

council shall be satisfied after such hearing of the violation as charged, it may, in its discretion, suspend for a 

fixed period, or revoke entirely, the driver's permit issued. 

Sec. 86-98. - Appeals. 
 

Any person whose taxicab driver's permit is refused, suspended or revoked by the chief of police may appeal, 

by filing notice thereof with the city clerk within 30 days from the time of such refusal, revocation or suspension. 

Such appeal as filed shall not act as a supersedeas until such time as the city council shall take final action on 

such appeal. 

180



 
 

 

September 21, 2016 

 

Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

120 East Main Street, First Floor 

Apopka, FL 32703 

 

 

RE: LYFT TESTIMONY AND PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 

 

 

Dear Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners, 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide testimony on Proposed Ordinance 2511 for consideration by the full 

Council.  We at Lyft believe in working collaboratively towards developing an appropriate regulatory 

framework to allow for the successful continuing operation of Lyft, other ridesharing platforms, and existing 

industry.   

 

While Lyft supports many of the changes made to the City’s Vehicle for Hire Code in Proposed Ordinance 

2511, Lyft believes that there are still ways in which the Proposed Ordinance should be improved.  As such, 

we respectfully request the Council to consider delaying any action on Proposed Ordinance until the next full 

Council meeting.   

 

While we appreciate the Council’s work in updating the City’s Vehicle for Hire Code, Lyft respectfully 

suggests that some areas of the Proposed Ordinance be reconsidered, and that the Council considers 

eliminating some of the burdens placed on individual drivers.   

 

Please find attached our suggested amendments to Proposed Ordinance 2511, which we hope will be given 

fair consideration with an opportunity for both public and City Council input.   

 

 

Thank you for your consideration. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Timothy Alborg  

Public Policy Manager 

 

181



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 
VACATING AND DELETING THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 86 
OF THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES AS CURRENTLY 
WRITTEN, ADOPTING NEW PROVISIONS IN SAID CHAPTER 
AMENDING THE PERMITTING AND REGULATION OF 
TAXICABS AND CREATING REGULATIONS FOR 
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AND TRANSPORTATION 
NETWORK APPLICATION COMPANIES AND OPERATORS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka believes that it is necessary and in the best 
interest of the City to update its regulations for vehicles for hire in recognition of changes and advances 
in modern business models of private automobile transportation. 

 

LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING: Underlined words constitute additions to the City of Apopka 
Code of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks (***) indicate 
an  omission from  the existing text which is  intended to remain    unchanged. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE    CITY OF 
APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

 
SECTION 1. The provisions of CHAPTER 86, VEHICLES FOR HIRE, shall be vacated and 

deleted in its entirety, and the following shall be adopted in their place. The provisions to be vacated and 
deleted are attached as Exhibit “A.” 

 

Chapter 86 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL 

Sec. 86-1. - Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

Company means any person, association, corporation or other organization which operates or 
intends to engage in the business of operating vehicles for hire or operate as a TNC. 

Conviction means the conviction by a court including an adjudication of guilt on a plea of guilty or 
nolo contendere or the forfeiture of a bond when charged with a crime. 

Digital platform means any online or smartphone enabled application that allows passengers to 
request transportation network vehicle services. 

Digital credential means the permission or access given to a driver to operate on a company's digital 
platform. 

Driver means an individual permitted to drive a vehicle for hire. 

Fees mean nonrefundable payments required in this chapter. 

Limousine means a specialized vehicle not equipped with a taximeter and for hire only by 
prearrangement at a rate charged per hour, or fixed in advance, and provided also that each such vehicle 
for hire is: (1) chauffeured, (2) a luxury class passenger vehicle built or modified for the purpose of a 
limousine as defined and recognized by the limousine industry; and (3) operated on a reserved,   hourly 

182



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 2 of 16 

 
basis for a continuous period. A vehicle which is held out to be a limousine or which has an appearance 
deceptively similar to a limousine is a limousine for the purposes of this chapter. 

Narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and central nervous system stimulants. The term 
"narcotic drugs" as used in this chapter shall mean coca leaves, opium, cannabis, marijuana, isonipecaine 
and every synthetic substance known to have narcotic action. The term "barbituric acid derivative" means 
each of the salts and derivatives of barbituric acid, also known as malonyl urea, and derivatives, 
compounds, mixtures or preparations thereof. "Barbiturate" or "barbiturates" shall include all hypnotic 
or somnifacient drugs, whether or not derivatives of barbituric acids. The term "central nervous system 
stimulants" means amphetamine and desocyephedrine, and any derivative, compounds, mixture or 
preparation thereof. 

Permit means the authority granted to companies to operate, or persons who qualify to drive, 
vehicles for hire. 

Revocation means the rescinding of a permit. A person or entity whose permit is revoked shall not 
be entitled to reinstatement or an opportunity to reapply for such permit for a period of two years except 
as provided in subsection 86-61(5). 

Shuttle bus means a vehicle with a capacity of at least eight persons, including the driver, that is 
operated on a fixed route, or owner and operated directly by a motel or hotel and limited to registered 
guests thereof. 

Suspension means the temporary rescinding of a permit or license. The suspension may be for a time 
certain or indefinite pending compliance with the terms of this chapter. 

Taxicab means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, including the driver, 
equipped with a taximeter operated under a company and vehicle permit required by this article, which 
is routed under the direction of the person hiring the vehicle. 

Taximeter means an instrument or device attached to a vehicle and designed to measure 
mechanically or electronically the distance traveled by such vehicle, to record the times such vehicle 
travels or is in waiting, and to indicate the fare to be obtained. 

Transportation service means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, 
including the driver, which is not equipped with a taximeter, which charges passengers a fare generally 
based on a flat fee, and does not operate over a fixed or defined route but routed under the direction of 
the person hiring the vehicle. 

Transportation network application company ("TNC company") means any company operating in 
the city that uses a digital network or software application to connect a passenger to transportation 
network services provided by a transportation network operator. 

Transportation network operator means any driver or operator who operates a personal vehicle that 
utilizes any digital platform to arrange transportation of a passenger between points chosen by the 
passenger and that is in connection with a digital platform controlled by a TNC company. 

Transportation network service means the provision of transportation by a transportation network 
operator to a rider, beginning when the transportation network operator accepts a ride requested through 
a digital platform controlled by a TNC company, continuing while the transportation network operator 
transports a requesting rider, and ending when the last requesting rider departs from the personal vehicle. 

Use of narcotic drugs. The word "use" as employed in this chapter in relation to the drugs described 
in this chapter shall apply to any person who uses one or more of the narcotic drugs or barbituric acid 
derivatives or central nervous system stimulants as defined this section to any extent, with or without 
medical need or authority or prescription. 

Vehicle for hire means any vehicle, whether owned by the driver or company, that is operated by a 
taxicab driver, transportation service driver, transportation network operator, any other motor    vehicle 

183



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 3 of 16 

 
with driver transporting passengers for a fare, fee, or other charge in the city. The term vehicle for hire, 
by definition, excludes: 

(1) School, church, college or university buses; 

(2) Sightseeing cars and buses; 

(3) Ambulances; 

(4) Funeral home vehicles; 

(5) Interstate buses; 

(6) Limousines; 

(7) Shuttle buses. 

Vehicle for hire administrator means the City Administrator or his/her designee. 

ARTICLE II. - COMPANY PERMIT 

Sec. 86-31. - Application; contents. 

(a) No taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company shall operate or engage in the 
business of operating vehicles for hire or operating a TNC within the city without having first 
obtained a company permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee. An application shall 
be submitted on forms furnished by the vehicles for hire administrator or designee containing 
appropriate information which is reasonably related to the business of operating vehicles for hire. 

(b) In order to secure or renew a company permit, the company applicant shall file an application with 
the vehicles for hire administrator or designee, and such application shall be verified under oath and 
shall furnish the following information: 

(1) The name and address of the company. If the company is a corporation or partnership, the name 
and address of all officers, shareholders, partners or any principals or owners with an interest 
greater than five twenty percent of the company must be listed. 

(2) The color scheme and insignia to be used to designate the vehicles of any taxicab company. 

(3) No company permit shall be granted to a taxicab company operating less than five vehicles. 
The vehicles must be currently operating, licensed, and inspected as required by this chapter. 
Each vehicle must conform to the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
maximum passenger standards allowed for the vehicle to operate. 

(4) Proof of proper amount of insurance coverage as provided in section 86-93, with the insurance 
coverage being filed with vehicle for hire administrator and approved by the City. 

(5) Such other information as the vehicle for hire administrator may require. 

(c) Payment of an annual company permit fee of $250.00. 

Sec. 86-32. - Maintaining a company permit. 

(a) In order to maintain a company permit to operate or engage in the business of operating vehicles for 
hire or operating a TNC, the company must: 

(1) Obtain and hold a current business tax receipt from the city as required by chapter 74, if 
applicable. 

(2) Maintain a telephone number that is monitored 24 hours a day for emergency contact by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee or law enforcement, and an e-mail address for citizen 
complaints or concerns. 

184



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 4 of 16 

 
(3) Maintain the name, home address, and telephone number of each driver affiliated with the 

company. 

(4) Maintain a log listing the year, make, model, license plate number , and vehicle identification 
number (serial number) and ownership status of all vehicles in the company's fleet or that 
operate on a company's platform. 

(5) Maintain proper amount of insurance as provided in section 86-93. 

(6) Maintain records available for inspection, upon request by the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee, pursuant to a complaint received or if the vehicle for hire administrator has a 
reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this chapter. 
The records shall include, but not be limited to, records pertaining to permitted/certified drivers, 
vehicle inspection records, daily logs, and that the maximum rate charged in compliance with 
section 86-95. Unless otherwise agreed to by the company and the vehicle for hire 
administrator, such records shall be made available for inspection to the vehicle for hire 
administrator at a permit holder's place of business or a mutually agreed location in the city. 

(7) Each company shall implement a zero-tolerance policy on the use of drugs or alcohol applicable 
to all drivers, and provide notice of the policy to all company drivers and to the public through 
its website, if applicable. In addition, the company shall provide notice to the public on the 
procedure for reporting a driver the passenger reasonably suspects was under the influence of 
drugs or alcohol during the course of the ride. The company shall cooperate with the vehicle 
for hire administrator or designee during the pendency of the investigation pursuant to 
subsection 86-63(b)(3). 

(8) The vehicle for hire administrator or police chief is authorized to conduct annual audits of any 
company authorized to operate under this chapter. The company shall provide to the vehicle for 
hire administrator, on request, up to 250 unique identification numbers, each of which has been 
assigned to an individual driver affiliated with the company. The vehicle for hire administrator 
may send to the company a list of up to ten driver identification numbers and request copies of 
records held by the company for those ten drivers. Within five business days of receiving a 
request seeking records, the company shall make available to the vehicle for hire administrator 
at a company's place of business or a mutually agreed setting in the city, records to verify that 
the company has properly screened drivers in accordance with section 86-61; provided, that the 
company may redact any records it provides access to in order to protect the privacy and 
identifying information of the driver. 

Sec. 86-33. - Revocation or suspension of a company permit; grounds; right of appeal. 

(a) Revocation or suspension of company permit; grounds. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined in 
subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the authority 
to revoke or suspend any company permit which has been granted or which may hereinafter be 
granted by the city. Prior to suspension or revocation, the company shall be served notice by certified 
mail or hand delivery of the proposed action to be taken and shall have an opportunity to present to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee evidence as to why the company permit should not be 
revoked or suspended. 

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a company permit 
shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 

(1) The failure of the company to maintain any of the general qualifications applicable to the initial 
granting of the company permit as set forth in section 86-31 or maintaining a company permit 
as set forth in section 86-32. 

(2) Obtaining a company permit by providing false information. 

185



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 5 of 16 

 

(3) Conviction by a court of competent jurisdiction of any shareholder, officer, partner, member, 
principal or owner of any corporation, partnership, firm or association holding a five percent 
interest or more in the entity, of any of the following: criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, 
aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, child molestation, lewd 
and lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to 
commit any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system 
stimulants if such violation or violations are related to operation of the company, or violation 
of any ordinance of the city governing the conduct of a company. 

(4) Allowing any person to operate a company's designated vehicle for hire, or operate on the 
company's digital platform, without an active driver permit or credential, or when said person's 
permit or credential has been suspended or revoked because of a positive drug test pursuant to 
section 86-63. 

(c) Right of appeal. Any company whose permit is revoked or suspended by the vehicle for hire 
administrator or designee may appeal such decision to the City Council. Such appeal shall be taken 
by filing written notice thereof, in duplicate, with the city administrator's office within five days 
after the decision of the vehicles for hire administrator or designee. The notice of the appeal shall 
contain the grounds for the appeal and shall contain information that either the finding is contrary 
to the law or is not supported by competent substantial evidence. The vehicle for hire administrator 
or designee shall forthwith transmit copies of the appeal to the City Council along with all papers 
constituting the record upon which the action appealed from is based. The filing of a notice of appeal 
will not delay the effectiveness of any suspension or revocation. 

ARTICLE III. - VEHICLE FOR HIRE DRIVERS 

Sec. 86-60. - Prohibition against unauthorized operation. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate on behalf of a taxicab company, transportation 
service, or other vehicle for hire for the transportation of passengers within the city, or on a TNC's 
digital platform, or to cause or permit any other person to drive or operate a vehicle for hire: 

(1) Without first obtaining a written permit for the operation of a motor vehicle for hire from the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee; 

(2) Without having been certified to operate a motor vehicle for hire on behalf of a company or on 
the company's digital platform; or 

(3) When the company permit has previously been revoked pursuant to section 86-33. 

(b) Any person found to have violated this section shall be punished by the following: 

(1) A fine $150.00 for the first citation; 

(2) A fine of $250.00 for the second citation; and 

(3) A fine of $500.00 for the third or subsequent citation. 

Sec. 86-61. - Application for driver's permit. 

(a) In order to secure a driver permit or to obtain certification from a company, an applicant must: 

(1) Be at least 18 years of age; 

(2) Possess a valid state driver's license; 

(3) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have been convicted of: 

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs; or 

186



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 6 of 16 

 
b. Violation of any ordinance or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 

operation of a motor vehicle. 

(4) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have more than three moving 
violations; 

(5) Not have been convicted within the seven years previous to the date of application for the 
violation of any of the following criminal offenses of the state or any other state or of the United 
States: aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, lewd and 
lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit 
any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the offenses listed in this subsection, or 
been convicted within the last seven years of any felony in the commission of which a motor 
vehicle was used, perjury or false swearing in making any statement under oath in connection 
with application for a driver's permit, any felony involving theft, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivative and/or central nervous system 
stimulants. Applicants who have been convicted or served any time, probation, or parole for a 
criminal offense of homicide, rape, sexual battery, or child molestation must have their 
complete criminal history reviewed and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator; 

(0) Be able to communicate in the English language. 

(c)(b) An applicant may apply for a permit or credential by completing a form provided by the vehicle 
for hire administrator establishing that the applicant meets the requirements of subsection. 

(d)(c) Upon approval by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or certification by the taxicab 
company, transportation service, or TNC company, the driver shall be issued: 

(1) A permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee; or 

(2) Credentials from the taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company, which may be 
digital credentials, indicating that the driver was certified by the company, and the credential 
shall include the following information: 

a. The name or logo of the company; 

b. The name of the driver; 

c. The license plate number associated with the vehicle that the driver has been authorized to 
use. 

(3) The driver shall display the permit or credential in a manner that it is visible to the passengers 
of the vehicle while the vehicle is operating, or make available at a minimum the driver's first 
name, photograph, and make, model, and license plate number to the passenger through the 
company's digital platform. The driver shall present the permit or credential upon request to a 
law enforcement officer, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or designated airport 
personnel upon request. If the driver maintains a digital credential, upon a traffic stop, a driver 
shall provide law enforcement with access to a device containing the information required to 
be maintained as part of the driver's digital credential and an electronic record sufficient to 
establish that the trip in question was prearranged through a digital platform. 

 An applicant must pay an annual driver application fee of $100.00. 

Sec. 86-62. - Maintaining driver's permit. 

In order to maintain a valid permit or credential to drive a taxicab, transportation service, or other 
vehicle for hire, a driver must: 

(4) Wear proper dress while operating a vehicle for hire. 

(5) Maintain a neat appearance. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.38",  No bullets or

numbering

187



8 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 7 of 16 
 

(6) Not smoke while carrying passengers. 

(7) Maintain a log upon which are recorded all trips made each day, showing time and place of 
origin and destination of each trip and amount of fare. Such logs must be maintained by the 
company or the vehicle owner, if not maintained by the driver, and shall be made available to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for a compliance inquiry if the administrator has 
a reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this 
chapter. 

(8) Renew his driver's permit or credential during the month of the driver's permit or credential 
expiration date. 

(9) Wear a seatbelt at all times while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation 
network services. 

Sec. 86-63. - Revocation or suspension of driver's permits; grounds; right of appeal. 

(a) Revocation or suspension of driver's permits or credential. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined 
in subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the 
authority to revoke or suspend any driver's permit or credential which has been issued or which may 
hereinafter be issued by the city. Before a driver's permit or credential shall be denied, suspended 
or revoked, notice of intention thereof shall be served upon the driver either by registered mail or 
personal service; however, such notice shall not be necessary for a denial of an original permit or 
credential. However, any such applicant or driver shall be given an opportunity to be heard by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee. 

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a driver's permit or 
credential shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 

(1) The failure of the driver to maintain any and all of the general qualifications as applicable to 
the initial issuance of a permit as set forth in section 86-61; 

(2) Obtaining a permit or credential by providing false information; 

(3) Violation by a driver of any of the following offenses: 

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs. A driver shall be required 
to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test at the request of the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee, upon receipt of a passenger complaint, : 

b.a. Where reasonable suspicion exists that a driver is suspected of abusing alcohol or misusing 
prescription drugs or controlled substances; or. 

0. Where a driver has been involved in a crash with serious injury or serious property 
damage while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation network 
services. "Serious injury" is defined as a physical condition that creates a substantial 
risk of death, serious personal disfigurement, or protracted loss or impairment of the 
function of any bodily member or organ. "Serious property damage" is defined as one 
or more of the motor vehicles involved in the crash is "totaled", or one or more of the 
vehicles sustains significant disabling damage to public and/or private property which 
equals or exceeds an apparent damage of $5,000.00 or more as estimated by the law 
enforcement officer who conducts the investigation at the scene of the traffic crash; or 

d.b. Refusing or failing to submit to a drug test at the request of the vehicle for hire administrator 
or designee shall be due cause for revocation of the driver's permit or credential with no 
reapplication for one year. Failing a drug or alcohol test shall be due cause for revocation 
of the driver's permit or credential with no reapplication for one year. 

e.c. Criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, 

188



9 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

kidnapping,  robbery,  child  molestation,  lewd  and  lascivious  acts,  armed  trespassing, 
carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit any of the above, criminal 
attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or distribution of narcotic drugs, 
barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system stimulants, violation of any 
ordinance of the city governing the conduct of drivers of a vehicle for hire. 

(4) Charging a fare contrary to any fares established and approved by the city commission pursuant 
to section 86-95; 

(5) Violation of any ordinances or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 
operation of a taxicab, transportation service, TNC company, or other vehicle for hire; 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 8 of 16 

 

(6) Whenever it shall appearUpon receipt of a passenger complaint alleging that a driver has 
disorders characterized by lapses of consciousness or other mental or physical disabilities 
affecting his or her ability to drive safely; 

(7) Accumulating nine or more points within a six-month period as outlined in F.S. § 322.27(3)d. 

(8) Violating the requirements of section 86-96. 

Sec. 86-64. - Duration of driver permit. 

Each driver permit or credential issued pursuant to section 86-61 above shall be valid for one year 
from the date of issuance. 

ARTICLE IV. - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

Sec. 86-91. - Identifying signs, monograms and insignias. 

(a) Taxicabs. 

Each taxicab shall be readily identifiable as a taxicab and shall bear on the outside of each rear or 
front door, in letters not less than two inches in height, the name of the person or corporation to 
whom the franchise is issued. Each such taxicab shall also be numbered consecutively, with such 
numbers being placed conspicuously on each vehicle, with such numerals being not less than four 
and one-half inches nor more than six inches in height. 

(b) Transportation services. 

(1) Each vehicle operated by a transportation service shall be readily identifiable as a transportation 
service and shall bear on the outside of each rear or front door, in letters not less than two inches 
in height, the name of the person or corporation to whom the vehicle is owned or operated by. 

(2) No transportation service shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself as a "taxi" or "cab" 
or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab. 

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company/transportation network operator. 

(1) Each vehicle operated by a TNC company or transportation network operator shall bear on the 
outside of each rear or front door, in letters not less than two inches in height, the name of the 
person or corporation to whom the vehicle is owned or operated by, or any symbol or insignia 
approved by the vehicle for hire administratordisplay a consistent signage or emblem on the 
transportation network operator’s personal vehicle at all times while the transportation network 
operator is active on the TNC company’s network.  The signage or emblem shall be sufficiently 
large or color-contrasted to be readable during daylight hours from a distance of 50 feet, 
reflective, illuminated, or otherwise visible in darkness, and capable of sufficiently identifying 
a personal vehicle as being associated with the TNC company. 

189



10 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

(2) No transportation network operator vehicle shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself 
as a "taxi" or "cab" or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab, or otherwise give the 
impression that the operator is available to solicit passengers other than through the digital 
platform. 

(3) No transportation network operator vehicle shall place any type or form of light device or other 
device on the roof, commonly known as a top light or top hat, whether or not permanently or 
temporarily affixed to the vehicle, or have within the interior of the vehicle. 

 

Sec. 86-92. - Taximeter. 

a. All taxicabs operated under the authority of this chapter shall be equipped with taximeters fastened 
in a manner so that the face thereof shall be visible and readable to passengers at all times both  

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 9 of 16 

day and night. The face of the taximeter shall be set so that it will register and compute on a 
mileage basis while such taxicab is moving and on a time basis while such taxicab is standing and 
while the service is being rendered the fare to be charged. Such taximeter shall be operated 
mechanically by a mechanism of standard design and construction, driven either from the 
transmission or from one of the front wheels by a flexible and permanently attached driving 
mechanism. 

a. No vehicle for hire other than a taxicab is authorized to install or be equipped with a taximeter. 

Sec. 86-93. - Liability insurance required. 

No vehicle for hire shall be placed in service unless such vehicle is in compliance with Florida law 
for liability insurance purposes. Proof of such insurance coverage, which may be provided on a blanket 
basis, shall be filed annually with and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for the 
carriage of passengers. 

Sec. 86-94. - Seat belts required. 

All vehicles for hire covered by this chapter shall be equipped with operational seat belts for each 
passenger. 

Sec. 86-95. - Authority of city commission to establish rates and charges; displaying rate cards. 

(a) Taxicabs. 

(1) The city commission may by ordinance establish maximum rates and charges for the 
transportation of persons and their baggage within the corporate limits of the city and suburban 
territory adjacent thereto. Any ordinance establishing rates as provided by this section shall 
become effective 24 hours after its adoption. 

(2) Every taxicab operating under this chapter shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a 
schedule of rates for the transportation of person within the corporate limits of the city, and no 
charges shall be made in excess of the rates so posted. 

(3) There is hereby established a schedule of the maximum rates which can be charged by all 
taxicab drivers operating taxicabs within the city. A taximeter may be set so that it will register 
and compute on a mileage or other basis at less than the maximum rates set forth in this section. 

(b) Transportation service. 

(1) All fares as agreed to between any transportation service operator and any passenger must be 
agreed upon prior to leaving the point of origin. No transportation service operator may increase 
the agreed upon fare after leaving the point of origin. 

(2) No transportation service shall be authorized to charge for wait time, or to charge any other 

Commented [A1]: Double check on insurance provision. 

190



11 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

rates or fees except for mileage. 

(3) Every transportation service vehicle shall have cards displayed visibly from the outside of the 
vehicle on the passenger side and on the inside of the right rear window at the eye level of a 
seated passenger that state the following: "RATE OF TRANSPORT IS BY FLAT FEE ONLY". 

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company or transportation network operator. 

(1) All TNC companies shall disclose the fare calculation method, the applicable rates being 
charged, and the option for an estimated fare to a passenger before the passenger arranges or 
books a trip with the transportation network application company or transportation network 
operator. 

191



12 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 10 of 16 

 

(2) Upon completion of the trip, a TNC company shall transmit an electronic receipt to the 
passenger's e-mail or mobile application that lists the: origin and destination of the trip; the total 
time and distance of the trip; and a breakdown of the total fare paid, if any. 

Sec. 86-96. - Miscellaneous regulations and other penalties. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any driver or operator of a vehicle for hire to drive or operate or be on duty 
or on call for the operation of a vehicle for hire for more than 12 hours within any 24-hour period. 

(b) A driver shall take the most direct route to a passenger's destination unless otherwise authorized or 
directed by the passenger. 

(c) No driver shall refuse to accept a passenger unless the passenger is obviously disorderly, dangerous, 
or otherwise a threat to the safety or welfare of the driver. 

(d) It shall be unlawful for the driver operating in the city to permit any person to accompany or use 
such vehicle for hire for the purpose of prostitution, or to direct, take or transport any other person 
with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the purpose of such directing, taking or 
transporting is for the purpose of prostitution. 

(e) No vehicle for hire shall be permitted to carry nonpaying passengers while transporting a paying 
passenger or passengers except for the purpose of driver training. 

(f) No vehicle for hire shall solicit or carry a paying passenger while in the process of carrying another 
paying passenger except when requested to do so by the latter passenger. 

(g) Transportation network operators shall exclusively accept passengers booked through a 
transportation network company's digital platform, and shall not solicit or accept street-hails. 

(h) No TNC company may provide personal information about a passenger to a transportation network 
operator, including a passenger's full name, e-mail address, or telephone number. 

Sec. 86-97. - Enforcement. 

The city police department and the vehicles for hire administrator shall be authorized to enforce the 
regulations contained in this chapter, including the promulgation of rules consistent with this chapter 
and the setting of fees. 

SECTION 2. CODIFICATION. It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka; and 

the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the Code, and Sections 

of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance" 

may be changed to " chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to 

accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which do not affect the intent may be authorized by 

the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing a corrected or re-codified copy of same with the 

City Clerk. 

SECTION 3. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of this 

ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, administrative agency, 

or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, subsection, sentences, clauses, or 

phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

192



13 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 11 of 16 

 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, 

requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force 

and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016  
 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: September 21, 2016  
 

 

 

 
 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 
 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 
 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 
 

 

 

 
 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 
 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:   August 19, 2016 

September 9, 2016 

193



14 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 12 of 16 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Sec. 86-39. - Liability insurance. 
 

(a) It shall be unlawful for the owner, operator, driver or chauffeur of any taxicab to drive or operate 

the taxicab or to permit the taxicab to be driven or operated upon the public streets, unless such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur shall have first procured and filed with the city clerk a liability 

insurance policy issued by a good and responsible surety company, which insurance company or 

surety company must have authority to do business as such in the state and must be acceptable to 

and approved by the city council. The amount of liability insurance or surety bond for each taxicab 

shall be the minimum required by the state for liability insurance, or, if liability insurance is not 

required by state law, the minimum financial responsibility requirements of the Financial 

Responsibility Law, F.S. ch. 324. 

(b) Such policy of insurance or surety bond may be in the form of a separate policy or separate surety 

bond for each taxicab, or may be in the form of a fleet policy covering all taxicabs operated by such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur, in which latter event such policy of insurance or surety bond 

shall provide the same liability for each taxicab operated in service as specified in subsection (a) of 

this section. Every taxicab hired in service shall have conspicuously displayed therein or thereon 

some sign evidencing the fact that the provisions of this section have been complied with, with the 

form thereof to be prescribed by the chief of police. 

(c) No policy of insurance or surety bond as provided for in this section shall be cancelled until the 

expiration of five days after notice of intended cancellation thereof has been given in writing to the 

city clerk by registered mail or personal delivery of such notice, and a provision therefor shall be 

embodied in the policy or surety bond. 

Sec. 86-40. - Use of streets for transacting business. 
 

Except as provided in this article, no taxicab shall occupy space on the streets for the transaction of 

business other than the picking up of passengers. All places of business of taxicabs shall be maintained 

off the streets. 

Sec. 86-41. - Use of improper vehicles. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to operate or drive, as a taxicab, in or upon any street, any motor- 

driven vehicle, unless the vehicle is a taxicab as defined in this article. 

Sec. 86-42. - Name of owner or operator to be displayed on vehicle. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any taxicab to be driven upon the streets unless the name of the person either 

owning or operating such taxicab, or the trade name under which such taxicab is operated, is 

conspicuously painted on such taxicab in letters not less than two inches in height. 

Sec. 86-43. - Meters. 
 

(a) All taxicabs shall be equipped with mechanical devices, commonly called taxicab meters, for 

registering the fare to be charged. 

194



15 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 13 of 16 

 

(b) Every meter in use shall be placed in such taxicabs at a location that will be plainly visible at all 

times to the occupants of such taxicabs. Between the hours of sunset and sunrise, the dial of the 

meter shall be illuminated whenever it is in use. 

(c) Whenever a taxicab is not in service, the meter shall show no fare and the flag shall be in the upright 

position. When a taxicab is in service, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be lowered and the 

meter shall be in the calculating position. 

(d) Upon the completion of service by a taxicab, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be raised and 

the meter shall be returned to the noncalculating position and its dials cleared. 

(e) It shall be unlawful for the operator or driver of any taxicab to operate the taxicab on the streets of 

the city with any occupant in such taxicab other than the driver when the flag or indicator on the 

taxicab meter is upright and in the noncalculating position, except when operating on an hourly or 

trip rate. 

(f) When the hourly rate or the special trip rate is used, an appropriate sign indicating that the cab is on 

a trip or hourly rate shall be exhibited. 

(g) It shall be the duty of the person owning and operating taxicabs to have the meter in good working 

condition and operating accurately as to the registration of mileage and fare. Such meters shall be 

sealed in a manner that will prevent any person from tampering with or changing the adjustment of 

the meter. It shall be unlawful for any person to tamper with or change the adjustment of a meter, 

except the owner operating the taxicab to which such meter is affixed, or a person duly designated 

by the owner, or a meter mechanic. 

(h) It shall be unlawful for any person owning and operating taxicabs with meters affixed thereto to 

permit the taxicabs to be operated on the streets of the city when such meters do not accurately 

register the mileage and the rate as set forth by the ordinances of the city. All meters shall be subject 

to inspection and test by any police officer at all times when cabs are not carrying passengers. 

Sec. 86-44. - Rates and charges. 
 

(a) Posting. Each taxicab shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a schedule of rates for the 

transportation of persons within the corporate limits of the city, and no charges shall be made in 

excess of the rates so posted. 

(b) Determination. All rate charges or fees for the use of taxicabs using meters shall be determined by 

a meter rate, hourly rate or special trip rate and by no other method. All charges are for the exclusive 

use of the taxicab, and shall apply regardless of the number of passengers transported. 

Sec. 86-45. - Fare receipts; right to demand payment of fare in advance. 
 

If demanded by the passenger, the driver in charge of a taxicab shall deliver to the person paying 

for the hiring of the taxicab, at the time of such payment, a receipt therefor in legible writing, containing 

the name of the owner and the city license or permit number, showing upon such receipt all items for 

which a charge is made, the total amount paid and the date of payment. Every driver of any such taxicab 

shall have the right to demand payment of the legal fare in advance, and may refuse employment unless 

so prepaid. 

Sec. 86-46. - Soliciting passengers near intersection. 

195



16 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 14 of 16 

 

It shall be unlawful for any person owning or operating one or more vehicles for hire in the city to 

operate such motor vehicles over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting patronage, 

picking up passengers or delivering passengers at any point within 100 feet of any intersecting street 

corner along such street. It is the purpose and intent of this section to prohibit such practice within 100 

feet in all directions from such intersections. Such distance in all cases shall be measured from the center 

of the intersection. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any taxicab 

or vehicle operated for hire from responding to any specific request for passage from any person seeking 

the services offered by such taxi or motor vehicle or from stopping at any point within the city for the 

purpose of delivering a passenger who has been picked up at any part of the city in a manner not 

prohibited by law. This section shall not apply to any buses or motor vehicles owned or operated by any 

bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city. 

Sec. 86-47. - Soliciting passengers by preceding or following scheduled bus. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person operating motor vehicles for hire in the city to operate such motor 

vehicle over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting the patronage of passengers by 

immediately preceding or following any duly scheduled bus or motor vehicle operated for such purpose 

by any bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city along the streets of the city. 

Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any duly licensed taxi 

from responding to any specific request for passage from any patron seeking the services offered by such 

duly licensed taxi. 

Sec. 86-48. - Smoking by driver. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any driver, operator or chauffeur of any taxicab to smoke while the taxicab 

is occupied by a passenger. 

Sec. 86-49. - Use for immoral purposes. 
 

It shall be unlawful for the driver of a taxicab to permit any person to accompany or use such taxicab 

for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or assignation, or to direct, take or transport, or to offer or agree 

to direct, take or transport, any other person, with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the 

purpose of such directing, taking or transporting is for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or 

assignation. 

Sec. 86-50. - Display of political advertisements. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person licensed by the city to operate or drive a taxicab upon any street 

within the city with a political ad displayed for anyone seeking public office at any time. 

DIVISION 2. - BUSINESS PERMIT 
 

Sec. 86-66. - Required. 
 

It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated any taxicab business unless a permit for the 

operation thereof shall have been first issued by the city council in the manner provided in this division. 

Sec. 86-67. - Application and investigation. 
 

(a) An application for the permit required by this division shall be made in writing to the city council. 
Such application shall set forth the name, residence address, and address of place of business of the 

196



17 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 15 of 16 

 
 applicant and the kind, make and model of the vehicle to be used in the business. If the applicant is  
a copartnership, the application shall give the nmes and residence addresses of the copartners. If the 

application is a corporation, the application shall set forth the name of the corporation and the residence 

address of its officers and board of directors. The application shall set forth the trade name, if any, under which 

the applicant does or proposes to do business. 

(b) Upon the filing of an application, the city clerk shall make an investigation, including any hearing 

deemed necessary, as to each application for a permit for the operation of taxicabs. In determining 

whether a permit shall be issued, the city council shall investigate the fitness of the applicant to 

engage in the business of operating taxicabs and the fitness of the equipment to be used, and shall 

also consider and determine whether the demands of public convenience, necessity and safety justify 

the issuance of such permit. 

Sec. 86-68. - Issuance or denial. 
 

If the city council finds favorably to the applicant and decides to grant a permit for the operation of 

taxicabs, a permit as provided in this division shall be issued to the applicant. If the city council finds 

against the applicant and decides that the public convenience, necessity and safety do not justify the 

issuance of such permit or that the applicant is not fit to conduct the taxicab business or the equipment 

is not fit for such business, then no permit shall be issued, and notice of the action of the city council 

shall be given to the applicant, setting forth the reason for the refusal of such permit. 

Sec. 86-69. - Occupational license required. 
 

Prior to the issuance of a permit for the operation of taxicabs, the applicant shall obtain an 

occupational license. 

Sec. 86-70. - Transfer. 
 

A permit for the operation of taxicabs shall not be transferable, except upon application to and 

consent of the city council. 

Sec. 86-71. - Suspension or revocation. 
 

Whenever any person engaged in the taxicab business is found to be in violation of the provisions 

of this article or the traffic ordinances of the city or of any of the laws of the state, the city council may, 

upon complaint or upon its own motion, issue an order to such person to appear at a fixed time and place 

for investigation. If the city council is satisfied, after such hearing, that such person is guilty of the 

violations charged, it may, in its discretion, suspend for a fixed period or revoke entirely the permit 

issued to such person. 

DIVISION 3. - DRIVER'S PERMIT 
 

Sec. 86-91. - Required. 
 

No person shall operate or drive a taxicab upon any street unless he has obtained a permit pursuant 
to the provisions of this division. 

Sec. 86-92. - Application and investigation. 
 

Any person having resided continuously in the state for not less than six months immediately 

preceding the making of application for a permit to operate a taxicab and being 18 years of age or over 

may make application to the city clerk for a permit to operate a taxicab. A verbal or written examination, 

197



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 16 of 16 

 

or both, may be given by the chief of police to each applicant to determine knowledge of city streets, locations 

and environs. 

Sec. 86-93. - Issuance; contents. 
 

It shall be the duty of the chief of police, if the applicant for a permit under this division is knowledgeable 

of the provisions of this article and of the traffic ordinance of the city, and the applicant pays the required fee 

and otherwise complies with this division for the initial year, to issue such person a written permit, which permit 

shall be signed by the city clerk and sealed with the corporate seal of the city, and shall bear the name, address, 

sex, age, signature, photograph and fingerprints of the applicant. The chief of police shall procure the fingerprints 

and a photograph of the applicant and shall keep the fingerprints and photograph on permanent file in his office. 

The fingerprints and photograph shall be voluntarily furnished by the applicant at the time of filing his 

application. 

Sec. 86-94. - State commercial license required. 
 

No person shall be issued a taxicab driver's permit unless he holds a commercial license issued by the state. 

Sec. 86-95. - Alteration or destruction prohibited. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person holding a taxicab driver's permit to wilfully alter, deface, obliterate or 

destroy the permit, or to cause the permit to be defaced, obliterated or destroyed. 

Sec. 86-96. - Display. 
 

Every driver or operator of any taxicab operated shall have his driver's permit displayed in such taxicab in a 

conspicuous place so as to be easily observed by any person occupying such taxicab. 

Sec. 86-97. - Suspension or revocation. 
 

Whenever any operator or driver of a taxicab is found to be violating the provisions of this article, or the 

traffic ordinances of the city, or any of the laws of the state, the city council may, upon complaint or upon its own 

motion, issue an order to such operator or driver to appear at a fixed time and place for investigation. If the city 

council shall be satisfied after such hearing of the violation as charged, it may, in its discretion, suspend for a 

fixed period, or revoke entirely, the driver's permit issued. 

Sec. 86-98. - Appeals. 
 

Any person whose taxicab driver's permit is refused, suspended or revoked by the chief of police may appeal, 

by filing notice thereof with the city clerk within 30 days from the time of such refusal, revocation or suspension. 

Such appeal as filed shall not act as a supersedeas until such time as the city council shall take final action on 

such appeal. 
 

 

198



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2532 – First Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative  
 Elizabeth Florence 

  

199



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2532 
  

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2532 – SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 

   

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2532 – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE 

LAND USE AMENDMENT – CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY 

AUTHORITY, FROM “COUNTY” RURAL (1 DU/ 10 AC)) TO “CITY” 

RESIDENTIAL LOW SUBURBAN (3.5 DU/AC); (PARCEL I.D. NO. 36-20-27-

0000-00-126 & 36-20-27-0000-00-124); AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 

READING AND ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Central Florida Expressway Authority – Joseph A. Berenis, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: Plymouth Sorrento Rd.     
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Land 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED  
ZONING DESIGNATION: “City” R-1A (Residential) (Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment 

request is being processed along with a request to change the Zoning Map 
designation from “County”A-1 to “City” R-1A [Residential].) 

 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: right of way 
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.302 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: vacant; 1 dwelling unit per 10 acres 
    PROPOSED: right of way; 1 dwelling unit per 3.5 acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

200



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” Future 

Land Use Designation or a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a future 

land use designation of Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) to the property.  

 

City Council approved the annexations on September 21, 2016, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 

2513.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the owner/applicant.  

Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed as a small-

scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Residential Low Suburban is compatible with the 

designations assigned to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 0.302 acres.  

 

The applicant intends to develop the property for use as a right of way. The proposed future land use and 

use for the property is compatible with the general character of the surrounding neighborhood. The 

Residential Low Suburban Future Land Use Designation and right of way would serve as a use for the 

adjacent properties road access. 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is 

consistent with the Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) Future Land Use designation and the City’s 

proposed Residential Zoning so long as dwelling units are not expanded on the existing land area 

comprising the subject site. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this Change of Zoning represents a change in density that 

will not yield more than nine (9) residential units, development of the subject property is considered 

“deminimus” and exempt from School Capacity Enhancement review.  However, at the time of a 

Preliminary Development Plan application for residential development, school concurrency review 

through Orange county Public Schools may be required. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 7, 2016. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 14, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
December 7, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 
December 21, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 
December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

201



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends approval of the change 

in Future Land Use from “County” Rural (1 du/ 10 ac) to “City” Residential Low Suburban (3.5 du/ac) 

for the property owned by Central Florida Expressway Authority and located at Plymouth Sorrento Rd., 

contingent upon the annexation of the property into the City of Apopka. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2016, found that the proposed Small Scale 

Future Land Use Amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and 

recommended adoption (7-0) of the Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment from “County” Rural (1 

du/ 10 ac) to “City” Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) for the property owned by Central Florida 

Expressway Authority and located at Plymouth Sorrento Road. 

 

City Council Recommended Motion: Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2532 and Hold it Over 

for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 

 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

202



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 
I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) R-1AA Stanton Ridge residential plat 

owned by Central Florida 

Expressway Authority 

East (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-1 S.R. 429-Wekiva Parkway 

South (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-1 Single family residence 

West (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-1 Single family residence 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with the 
development of residential uses.  The property is west of Plymouth Sorrento Rd. and south of Yothers Rd. 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is not located within “Core Area” of the JPA.   
 
 Redevelopment:   Policy 3.13. No non-conforming structure shall be substantially expanded. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin 
Study Area, the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is 
consistent with the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
amendment has been reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater 
resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater 
run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection shows that there are karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property fronts no road but is west of Plymouth 
Sorrento Rd.  The vegetative communities present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand; and 
no wetlands occur on the site, and the terrain has a 5-12 percent slope. 
 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.d Low 
Density Residential Suburban Future Land Use designation. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the Property is Residential Low Suburban (3.5 du/ac).  Based on the housing 
element of the City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   
 

203



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED (County designation): 2 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 5.3 persons 
PROPOSED (City designation): 2 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 5.3 persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.  One single family home is the maximum development anticipated for the subject 
property. 
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  
This site is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan 
application.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located 
within the Orange County Utilities service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.  
The property owner will need to provide a letter from Orange County Utilities demonstrating available 
capacity prior to submittal of any development plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;   81 GPD/Capita; 
 81 GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka                  
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  196  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  53,054  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 177 
GPD/Capita; 
 177 GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  210  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  210  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 
 

204



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 
6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 
7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 
 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes           
 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None  
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  4  lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  4  lbs./day/1000 sf 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 

Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21.981 GPD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 GPD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 25 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 25 hour design storm  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.009  AC 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.009  AC 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 

205



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 
 

 
Central Florida Expressway Authority 

Plymouth Sorrento Rd. 
0.302 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling unit 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 1 dwelling unit 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural (1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Residential Low Suburban (3.5 du/ac) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: “County”A-1 
To: “City” R-1A 

Parcel ID #: 36-20-27-0000-00-126 & 36-20-27-0000-00-124 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 
 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

206



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

207



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

208



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

209



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 11 

 

 

 

 

STANTON RIDGE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

210



ORDINANCE NO. 2532 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” RURAL (1 DU/ 
10 AC) TO “CITY” RESIDENTIAL LOW SUBURBAN (3.5 DU/AC) FOR 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT PLYMOUTH SORRENTO 
RD., COMPRISING 0.302 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2524 adopted on November 16, 2016; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2524, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from “County” Rural (1 du/10 ac) to “City” Residential Low Suburban (3.5 
DU/AC), for certain real property located at Plymouth Sorrento Rd., comprising 0.302 acres more 
or less, (Parcel No. 36-20-27-0000-00-126 & 36-20-27-0000-00-124); as further described in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
 

211



 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2532 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
         day of                  , 2016 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
December 7, 2016 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:  

 
 
December 21, 2016 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: October 28, 2016 

      December 9, 2016 

 

212



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Central Florida Expressway Authority 
Plymouth Sorrento Rd. 

0.302 +/- Acres 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling unit 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 1 dwelling unit 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural/Agricultural (1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Residential Low Suburban (3.5 du/ac) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: “County”A-1 
To: “City” R-1A 

Parcel ID #: 36-20-27-0000-00-126 & 36-20-27-0000-00-124 
 

213



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2533 – First Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial     
 Elizabeth Florence 

  

214



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2533 
  

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2533 – CHANGE OF ZONING – CENTRAL FLORIDA 

EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 

   

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2533 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY, FROM “COUNTY” A-

1 (RURAL) TO “CITY” R-1A (RESIDENTIAL) (PARCEL I.D. NO. 36-20-27-

0000-00-126 & 36-20-27-0000-00-124); AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 

READING AND ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Central Florida Expressway Authority – Joseph A. Berenis, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: Plymouth Sorrento Rd. 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Land 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED  
FLUM DESIGNATION: Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) (NOTE: This change of zoning 

application is being processed in conjunction with a large scale FLUM 
amendment requesting Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC). 

 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  City has received a Preliminary Development Plan for a single family 
residential    development. 
 
TRACT SIZE:   Residential Development/Right of Way 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: vacant; 1 dwelling unit per 10 acres 
    PROPOSED: right of way; 1 dwelling unit per 3.5 acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

215



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” Future 
Land Use Designation or a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a future 
land use designation of Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) to the property.  
 
Applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of R-1A (Residential) to the property, 
consistent with the proposed Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) future land use designation.  
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to R-1A (Residential) is compatible to the adjacent zoning 
classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The property 
owner is requesting the R-1A (Residential) zoning classification to accommodate the use of the property 
to have the potential to be single family residential and road access to create access to parcels to the south. 
The subject properties abut S.R. 429 to the east and the Stanton Ridge residential plat to the north, which 
is also owned by the Central Florida Expressway Authority.   City staff supports this change of zoning 
request subject to the construction of a highway interchange for S.R. 429 at Plymouth Sorrento Road. 
This change of zoning application is being processed in conjunction with a small scale future land use 
amendment for Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC).  The proposed use is consistent with the 
proposed future land use, proposed zoning district and compatible with the general character of 
surrounding zoning and uses.    
 
The change of zoning application covers approximately .302 acres.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is 

consistent with the Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) Future Land Use designation and the City’s 

proposed Residential Zoning so long as dwelling units are not expanded on the existing land area 

comprising the subject site. Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use 

policies. School concurrency may occur at the time of a final development plan applicable to the subject 

property. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request is for a residential zoning classification that will only 

yield two residential units.  A rezoning that creates a net increase equal to nine or fewer residential units is 

exempt from School Capacity Enhancement.  School concurrency review may apply at the time a 

Preliminary Development Plan for residential development is submitted to the City.   

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 7, 2016. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 8, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
December 7, 2016 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
December 21, 2016 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 
December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

216



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends approval of the change 
in zoning from County A-1(Agriculture) to R-1A (Residential) for the property owned by Central Florida 
Expressway Authority. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2016, found that the proposed Change of 

Zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommended 

adoption (7-0) of the Change of Zoning from “County” A-1(Agriculture) to “City” R-1A (Residential) for 

the property owned by Central Florida Expressway and located at Plymouth Sorrento Road. 

 

City Council Recommended Motion: Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2533 and Hold it Over 

for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 

 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

217



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) R-1AA Stanton Ridge residential plat owned by the 

Central Florida Expressway Authority. 

East (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-1 S.R. 429 

South (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-1 Single family residence 

West (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-1 Single family residence 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC 

COMPATIBILITY: The assigned zoning will be compatible to the residential zoned properties 

to the north and the subject property will have access through the Stanton 

Ridge residential plat, which is owned by the same property owner. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE  

PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed R-1A (Residential) zoning is consistent with the City’s 

Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) Future Land Use designation and 

with the character of the surrounding area. The R-1A (Residential) zoning 

classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed within the 

proposed Residential Low Suburban Future Land Use Designation.   

Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the adopted 

Future Land Use Designation. 

 
MIXED USE-EC DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,600 sq. ft. 

Minimum Site Area: 10,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 85 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. (From property line) 

 Rear: 10 ft. (30 ft. from residential) 

 Side: 20 ft. 

 Corner 25 ft.  
Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcels do comply with 
code requirements for the R-1A (Residential) district. 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: 

 1.  Developments shall provide a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways within a 

minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.  

2. Areas adjacent to agricultural and residential uses or districts shall 

provide a minimum five-foot bufferyard and six-foot high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall. 

ALLOWABLE  

USES: Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures and uses. 

Supporting infrastructure and public facilities of less than five acres. 

218



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 
Central Florida Expressway Authority 

Property Owner 
0.302 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Rural/Agricultural (1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Residential Low Suburban (3.5 du/ac) 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County”A-1 
To: “City” R-1A 

Parcel ID #s:   36-20-27-0000-00-126 & 36-20-27-0000-00-124 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

219



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

220



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

221



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

222



ORDINANCE NO. 2533 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 TO “CITY” R-1A FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT PLYMOUTH SORRENTO RD., 

COMPRISING 0.302 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY CENTRAL 

FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 

THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 
public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in 
Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed R-1A (3.5 du/ac) zoning has been found to be consistent with the City 
of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 
follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the 
City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby R-1A (3.5 du/ac), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code.  
 
 Legal Description: COMM AT NE COR OF SE1/4 OF SEC 36-20-27 TH S02-14-21E 20.01 FT 
TO PT ON S LINE OF N 20 FT OF E 300 FT OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4 TH S89-27-24W 279.34 FT TO POB 
TH S00-27-45E 114.23 FT TH S89-31-59W 46.60 FT TH N52-36-26W 49.54 FT TO PT ON WLY LINE 
OF LANDS DESC IN OR 8943/2342 TH N37-23-29E 106.13 FT TO A PT ON AFORESAID S LINE TH 
N89-27-24E 20.58 FT TO POB and COMM AT NE COR OF SE1/4 OF SEC 36-20-27 T S89-28-38W 
278.71 FT ALONG N LINE OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4 TO POB TH S00-27-45E 20.1 FT TO PT ON S LINE 
OF N 20 FT OF E 300 FT OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4 TH S89-27-24W 20.58 FT TH S37-23-29W 106.13 FT 
ALONG ELY LINES OF LANDS DESC IN 6077/2248 TH N52-36-26W 29.99 FT TH N00-31-19W 85.41 
FT TO PT ON AFORESAID N LINE TH N89-28-38E 109.48 FT TO POB 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parcel I.D.: 36-20-27-0000-00-124 & 36-20-27-0000-00-126 

Contains: 0.302 +/- Acres 
223



ORDINANCE NO. 2533 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 
 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.   

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect 

of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the effective date of adoption of Ordinance 

No. 2533. 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: October 21, 2016 

    December 11, 2016  

READ FIRST TIME:  December 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 21, 2016 

224



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2534 – First Reading – Comp Plan Amendment – Capital Improvements Element – Legislative Kyle 
Wilkes 

  

225



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Ordinance No. 2534 
X OTHER: Ordinance   Appendix 7-1, CIE 

  
SUBJECT:    ANNUAL UPDATE TO THE CITY’S FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

PLAN, AND INCORPORATING INTO THE CITY OF APOPKA, COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT. 

    
REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2534 - ANNUAL UPDATE TO THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN AND INCORPORATE 
INTO THE CITY OF APOPKA COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT ELEMENT; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING AND 
ADOPTION. 

  
SUMMARY:  

 

Policy 1.4 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan’s Capital Improvements Element directs the City to update 

its five-year Capital Improvements Program (CIP) on an annual basis.   Exhibit “A” of ordinance 2534 

provides an updated list of infrastructure and other projects that are necessary to implement the City’s long-

range Comprehensive Plan.  Only large-scale capital projects necessary to support the Future Land Use, 

Transportation, Conservation, Infrastructure (i.e., potable water, sanitary sewer, reclaimed water, solid 

waste, stormwater), and Recreation Elements of the Comprehensive Plan are addressed within this five-

year Capital Improvements Program.  Other municipal services, such as Law Enforcement and Fire 

Protection, are not addressed in the Comprehensive Plan but are addressed in other capital improvement 

programs as part of the City’s fiscal management and budget process.   Annual review and preparation of 

the City’s budget will be consistent with the City’s Five-year Capital Improvement Program. 

 

This annual update of the five-year CIP is intended to schedule capital projects that are necessary to meet 

accepted levels of service (LOS), to maintain and repair failing facilities, and to provide additional 

infrastructure facilities and roads to meet demands generated by new growth and development.  The Five-

Year Capital Improvement Program only addresses major public facilities, infrastructure and road that are 

addressed within the City’s Comprehensive Plan – transportation, potable water, sanitary sewer, reclaimed 

water, recreation and parks, stormwater management and solid waste. 

 

The proposed annual update of the City’s Five-Year CIP incorporates capital facility maintenance and 

capacity upgrades for the Public Services and Recreation Departments.  Exhibit ‘A’ included with 

Ordinance No. 2534 includes the updated CIP to be incorporated as Appendix 7-1 of the Capital 

Improvements Element (CIE).  This appendix identifies the proposed improvements, proposed financial 

outlays for each project, as well as funding sources.    
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

 
226



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 

FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN ANNUAL UPDATE – CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT 

AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

 

Furthermore, the City of Apopka submitted a Florida Recreation Development Assistance Program grant 

(FRDAP) for recreation improvements to Alonzo Williams and Kit Land Nelson parks. As part of the grant 

submittal requirements, the City indicated support for these proposed improvements, through approval of 

Resolutions 2015-14 & 2015-15.  The City was awarded the FRDAP grant, and as a condition of receiving 

funding disbursement, the City must incorporate the Kit Land Nelson and Alonzo Williams Park grant-

funded improvements into the Five-Year CIP as a requirement of the FRDAP grant funding process.  In 

addition, additional FRDAP grant funding has been requested for renovations and new construction at the 

Apopka Athletic Complex (AAC) in the amount of $50,000. These proposed improvements have been 

incorporated into this annual update, per the aforementioned FRDAP grant application requirements. 

 

Legislative changes in 2011 to Chapter 163, Florida Statues allow local governments to update their five-

year CIP without transmitting the amendment to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity prior to 

adoption, as is required for other policy amendments or Future Land Use amendment to the Comprehensive 

Plan. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 14, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm)  

December 7, 2016 – City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm) 

December 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 28, 2016 – Public Hearing Notice 

December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Adoption Ad  

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annual update of the City of Apopka Five-Year 

Capital Improvements Plan to be incorporated into the Apopka Comprehensive Plan – Capital Improvements 

Element. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2016, recommended approval (5-1) of the annual 

update of the City of Apopka Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan to be incorporated into the Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Improvements Element. 

 

City Council Recommended Motion:  Accept the first reading of Ordinance 2534, and hold over for Second 

Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 

 

Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

 

 

  

227



ORDINANCE NO. 2534 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; 

INCORPORATING THE ANNUAL UPDATE TO THE CITY’S FIVE YEAR 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, on October 2, 1991 adopted 

Ordinance No. 653 which adopted the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Apopka; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has subsequently amended the Comprehensive Plan for 

the City of Apopka, most recently through Ordinance No. 2524; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s Local Planning Agency and the City Council have 

conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings, as per Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, relative 

to the adoption of this ordinance and the requirements for amendment to the Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows:  

 

 SECTION I: The City of Apopka hereby amends the Capital Improvements Element of the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan as follows:   

 

 The Capital Improvements Element is hereby amended to incorporate annual updates to 

the Five Year Capital Improvements plan and replaced in its entirety by Exhibit “A” of this 

Ordinance, and incorporated herein by reference.  

 

 SECTION II: If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 

force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this ordinance.  

 

 SECTION III:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION IV: This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.  

 

 

 

 

228



ORDINANCE NO. 2534 

PAGE 2 

 

 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

____ day of _____________, 20___. 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: December 7, 2016 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________                                                                       

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                            

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________________                                                                       

Cliff B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: October 28, 2016 

       December 9, 2016  

 

229



EXHIBIT ‘A’ 

APPENDIX 7-1:  FIVE-YEAR SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS - RECREATION 

Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source 

of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Concession, bathrooms, 

building and sidewalks at 

NWRC 

General 

Fund 

 
$300,000 

 
    $300,000 

Parking Lot-NWRC Little 

League Fields 
 $510,000     $510,000 

Picnic Pavilions  $100,000  $100,000  $100,000 $300,000 

NWRC Ball Field 

Renovations 
$23,900 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000   $173,900 

Fitness Equipment for Kit 

Land Nelson Park (with 

grant) 

      $23,900 

Bleacher Covers Over 

Quad 3 
 $60,000     $60,000 

Tennis Court Resurfacing 

– NWRC 
   $50,000   $50,000 

Basketball Resurfacing – 

NWRC 
   $50,000   $50,000 

Lk. Ave. Park – 

Playground, Pavilion, 

Shade Structure 

  $350,000    $350,000 

Old Little League Fields 

New Park 
   $200,000   $200,000 

NWRC Scoreboards for 

(1) Quad 
 $30,000 $30,000    $60,000 

New ball fields (Baseball, 

soccer, etc.) 
  $2,200,000    $2,200,000 

Alonzo Williams Park 

Improvements 

(Contingent upon CDBG 

grant award) 

 

 $50,000     $50,000 

TOTAL GENERAL 

FUND 

 
$23,900 $1,100,000 $2,630,000 $450,000 $0 $100,000 $3,205,000 

 230



 

Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Recreation Splash Pad at 

NWRC 

Recreation 

Impact 

Fund 

    $400,000  $400,000 

Skate Park  $300,000     $300,000 

Playground at Apopka 

Athletic Complex (AAC) 
 $75,000     $75,000 

Splash Pad w/ Restrooms 

(Kit Land Nelson Park) 
$750,000      $750,000 

Park Lot - NWRC   $267,000 $865,000  $1,165,000 $2,297,000 

TOTAL RECREATION 

IMPACT FUND 
 $750,000 $375,000 $267,000 $865,000 $400,000 $1,650,000 $4,307,000 

Alonzo Williams 

Community Center Bldg. 
CDBG  $750,000     $750,000 

TOTAL CDBG   $750,000     $750,000 

Alonzo Williams Park1 

Renovations 

FRDAP 

Grant 

$28,000      $28,000 

Alonzo Williams Park 

New Construction2 
$22,000      $22,000 

Kit Land Nelson Park 

Renovations3 
$3,700      $3,700 

Kit Land Nelson Park 

New Construction4 
$42,500      $42,500 

AAC Renovations5  $17,000     $17,000 

AAC New Construction6  $33,000     $33,000 

Old Little League Fields 

New Park Construction 
   $200,000   $200,000 

TOTAL FRDAP 

GRANT FUNDS 

 
$96,200 $50,000 $0 $200,000 $0 $0 $346,200 

                                                 
1 Resurfacing, irrigation, drinking fountain, picnic facilities 
2 Playground, security lighting 
3 Resurfacing, tennis court maintenance, drinking fountain, picnic facilities, miscellaneous maintenance 
4 New playground, bike rack, picnic facilities 
5 Restrooms, playground surface materials, baseball dugout shelters, drinking fountain & picnic facilities 
6 Playground, landscaping, picnic facilities 
 
 
 

231



Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source 

of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Gymnasium/Aquatic 

Center (GO Bond) 

Other 

Funds 

 $20,000,000     $20,000,000 

Fitness Equipment for Kit 

Land Nelson 

Park/Outdoor Fitness 

Grant 

$9,560      $9,560 

TOTAL OTHER 

FUNDS 
 $9,560 $20,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,009,560 

 
APPENDIX 7-1 (CONT’D):  FIVE-YEAR SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS – PUBLIC SERVICES 

Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Downtown Parking Lot 

CRA 

$200,000      $200,000 

Downtown Park Lot 

Upgrades 
 $500,000    

 
$500,000 

TOTAL CRA FUND        $700,000 

Brick Streets, Repair & 

Restoration 

Street 

Improve- 

ment 

Fund 

 

 $500,000     $500,000 

Equipment (3412 Streets-

6400) 
$60,000 $60,000 $60,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $330,000 

New Sidewalk & Curb 

Construction (3412 

Streeets-6304) 

$50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $300,000 

Paving & Resurfacing 

(3412 Streets-6304) 
$600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000  $3,000,000 

8th Street Complex 

(Renovation/or Relocate) 

Split with 

3412/3513/3181) 

$300,000      $300,000 

TOTAL STREET 

IMPROVEMENT 

FUND 

 $1,010,000 $1,410,000 $710,000 $700,000 $700,000 $100,000 $4,630,000 

 

 232



 

 

  

Comprehensive 

Plan 

Element/Project 

Source of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY 

 21-22 Totals 

6th Street 

Reconstruction & 

Downtown Related 

Street Improvements, 

Central Ave to US 

441 

Traffic 

Impact 

Fee 

$500,000 $500,000 $1,000,000   

 

$2,000,000 

Bradshaw Rd US 441 

Traffic Signal 
$400,000     

 
$400,000 

Peterson Rd (End of 

pavement to Hermit 

Smirth Rd) 2 lanes 

  $750,000   

 

$750,000 

Maine Ave, Martin St 

to Old Dixie Hwy (2 

lanes) 

   $1,000,000  

 

$1,000,000 

Martin St, Maine Ave 

between Park Ave 
   $1,600,000  

 
$1,600,000 

Marden Rd (Keene 

Rd to CR 437A) 2 

lanes, Urban Section 

Improvement 

$500,000 $500,000    

 

$100,000 

New Sidewalks $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000  $250,000 

Rogers Rd, Lester Rd 

to Ponkan Rd 
  $1,400,000   

 
$1,400,000 

Old Dixie 

(Hawthorne Ave to 

Schopke Lester Rd) 

turn lane, curb, gutter 

$1,000,000     

 

$1,000,000 

Sheeler 

Ave/Cleveland St 

Intersection 

Improvement (turn 

lanes/traffic light) 

 $500,000    

 

$500,000 

Plymouth Rd/Yothers 

Rd Intersection 

Improvements 

$500,000     

 

$500,000 

233



 

  

 

Comprehensive 

Plan 

Element/Project 

 

Source of 

Funding 

 

FY  

16-17 

 

FY  

17-18 

 

FY  

18-19 

 

FY  

19-20 

 

FY  

20-21 

 

FY 

 21-22 

 

 

Totals 

Piedmont-Wekiwa 

Rd/Greenacres Rd 

(Traffic Light) 

Traffic 

Impact 

Fee 

(Cont’d) 

  $350,000   

 

$350,000 

TOTAL TRAFFIC 

IMPACT FUND 
 $2,950,000 $1,550,000 $3,550,000 $2,650,000 $50,000 $0 $9,850,000 

Drainage Upgrading 

– Citywide (6308) 

Stormwat

er 

Fund 

$350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $2,100,000 

TOTAL 

STORMWATER 

FUND 

 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $2,100,000 

Miscellaneous Water 

Mains (2) 

Water 

Impact 

Fund 

$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $500,000 

TOTAL WATER 

IMPACT FUND 
 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $600,000 

Binion Rd RWM, 

IFAS to Ocoee 

Apopka Rd, 5,329 

LF,  

Reclaim 

Fund 

 

   $511,584   $511,584 

16” Golden Gem 

Reuse Station HSP 
    $6,500,000  $6,500,000 

Keene Rd RWM, 

Marden Rd to Ocoee 

Apopka Rd, 4,413 

LF, 36” 

$794,340      $794,340 

Kelly Park Rd RMW 

II, Jason Dwelley 

Pkwy to Rock 

Springs Rd 16”, 

8,801 LF (2) 

  $705,000    $705,000 

Kelly Park Rd RWM, 

Golden Gem Rd to 

Round Lake Rd 24” 

 $371,400     $371,400 

234



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Comprehensive 

Plan 

Element/Project 

 

 

Source of 

Funding 

 

 

FY  

16-17 

 

 

FY  

17-18 

 

 

FY  

18-19 

 

 

FY  

19-20 

 

 

FY  

20-21 

 

 

FY 

 21-22 

 

 

Totals 

Miscellaneous RWM 

(5) 

Reclaim 

Fund 

(Cont’d) 

$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $600,000 

Northwest Reclaim 

Water Pump Station, 

2 @ $3,000 

 $700,000     $700,000 

Northwest Reclaim 

Water Pond 2 & 3 
$250,000      $250,000 

Ocoee Apopka Rd, 

RWM, Harmon Rd to 

Alston Bay Blvd, 

2,500 LF, 30” 

$412,500      $412,500 

Ocoee Apopka Rd 

RWM, Keene Rd to 

Alston Bay Blvd, 

4,000 LF 30” 

$660,000      $600,000 

Plymouth Sorrento 

Rd RWM, Yothers 

Rd to Ponkan Rd, 

4,654 LF 24” (2) 

  $670,176     $670,176 

Ocoee Apopka Rd 

RWM, Keene Rd to 

Binion Rd, 3,500 LF 

30” 

 $308,000      $308,000 

Plymouth Sorrento 

Rd RWM, Ponkan 

Rd to Kelly Park Rd 

2,745 LF, 20” (2) 

  $645,000     $645,000 

TOTAL RELAIM 

FUND 
 $2,524,840 $2,486,576 $805,000 $611,584 $6,600,000 $100,000 $13,128,000 

235



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Comprehensive 

Plan 

Element/Project 

Source 

of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Grossenbacher WTP, 

Replace Well 

Water 

Impact 

Fee 

   $910,000   $910,000 

Haas Rd WM, Mt. 

Plymouth Rd to 

Round Lake Rd, 

22,708 LF 12” (1) 

   $1,634,976   $1,634,976 

Kelly Park Rd WM, 

Golden Gem Rd to 

Round Lake Rd, 

4,035 LF 16” (1) 

 $387,360     $387,360 

Kelly Park Rd WM, 

Plymouth Sorrento 

Rd to Golden Gem, 

6,672 LF 12” (1) 

$400,320      $400,320 

Miscellaneous Water 

Mains (2) 
$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $600,000 

Mt. Plymouth Water 

Plant (Well #1) 

modifications and 

improvements 

$700,000      $700,000 

Mt. Plymouth Water 

Plant (Well #4) 

modifications and 

improvements 

 $900,000     $900,000 

NW WTP (1 MG 

Storage Tank) (1) 
  $850,000    $850,000 

Plymouth Sorrento 

Rd WM Ponkan Rd 

to Kelly Park Rd, 

10,720 LF 16” (1) 

  $1,030,000    $1,030,000 

236



 Comprehensive 

Plan 

Element/Project 

Source 

of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Plymouth Sorrento 

Rd WM, Yothers Rd 

to Ponkan Rd, 5,423 

LF 12” (1) 

Water 

Impact 

Fund 

(Cont’d) 

$390,456      $390,456 

Plymouth Regional 

Water Plant, 

modifications and 

improvements Wells 

#1 & 2 

 $900,000     $900,000 

Ponkan Rd, Ponkan 

Pines to Golden 

Gem 8,271 LF 12” 

 $595,572     $595,572 

Sheeler Oaks WTP 

65T .75 MG (1) 
 $750,000     $750,000 

Southwest Water 

Plant (1) 
    $4,500,000  $4,500,000 

US 441 WM, Roger 

Williams Rd to 

Sheeler Rd (1) 

  $240,000    $240,000 

TOTAL WATER 

IMPACT FUND 

 
$1,590,776 $2,245,572 $2,220,000 $2,644,976 $4,600,000 $100,000 $13,401,324 

Martin’s Pond 

Improvements 

Other 

Funds 

(TBD) 

      TBD 

TOTAL OTHER 

FUNDS 

 
      TBD 

237



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2535 – First Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial     
 Kyle Wilkes  

  

238



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Existing Uses Map 
    Ordinance No.2535 

  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2535 – CHANGE OF ZONING – JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY 
    
REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2535 – CHANGE OF ZONING – JACK 

& JOYCE CRAVEY - FROM “COUNTY: A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” AG 
(AGRICULTURE) (PARCEL ID NOS. 24-20-27-0000-00-056; 24-20-27-0000-00-
112); AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Jack & Joyce Cravey 
 
LOCATION: West of Phils Lane, east of Golden Gem Road (3815 Phils Ln. and 3827 

Hideaway Road) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Manufactured home 
 
PROPOSED 
LAND USE: Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 ac) (Note: This change of zoning amendment is 

being processed along with a large scale future land use amendment. 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single-family residential or manufactured home  
 
 
TRACT SIZE:   15.04 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 1 Unit 
    PROPOSED: 3 Units 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief   

239



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on May 4, 

2016, through adoption of Ordinance 2495. 

 

The applicant requests a change of zoning to assign an AG (Agriculture) zoning classification to the 

properties.  The requested AG zoning classification compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and 

with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The property owner is requesting 

the AG zoning classification to accommodate the use of the property for existing manufactured and 

proposed single-family and/or manufactured home residences.  The applicant intends to split the lot for two 

residences.  This use is consistent with the existing future land use, proposed zoning district and compatible 

with the general character of surrounding zoning and uses. 

 

The change of zoning application covers approximately 15.04 acres.  

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed AG Zoning 

classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request for a change of zoning to AG (Agriculture) will result in 

a number of potential units that will be considered de minimus; therefore, school capacity determination is 

not required. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 14, 2016 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 14, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

December 7, 2016 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 16, 2016 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/Map/¼ Page w/Map Ad 

 

  

240



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed change of zoning consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, 

and recommends adoption of the change in zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG (Agriculture) 

for the property owned by Jack & Joyce Cravey. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2016, found the proposed change of zoning 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code and compatible with the character of the 

surrounding area, and recommended adoption of the change in zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” 

AG (Agriculture) for the property owned by Jack & Joyce Cravey, and subject to City Council adopting a 

Future Land Use Designation of “Rural Settlement” for this property. 

 

City Council Recommended Motion: Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2535 and Hold it Over 

for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 

 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

241



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (0-1 du/10) A-1 Limited Access R-O-W (SR 429) 

East (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-2 Limited Access R-O-W (SR 429) 

South (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-2 Vacant 

West (City) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) AG Vacant 

 

LAND USE &  

TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property has access to local roadways (Phils Lane and 

Hideaway Lane).   

 

COMPREHENSIVE  

PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed I-1 zoning is consistent with the City’s Rural Settlement 

(0-1 du/5 ac) Future Land Use designation and with the character of the 

surrounding area and future proposed development. The AG zoning 

classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed within 

the Rural Settlement Future Land Use designation.   Development Plans 

shall not exceed the density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use 

Designation. 

 

AG DISTRICT 

REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,200 sq. ft. (Single-family) 

400 sq. ft. (Mobile home) 

Minimum Site Area: 5 acres 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. 

 Rear: 25 ft. 

 Side: 25 ft. 

 Corner 25 ft. 

 

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcels comply with 

code requirements for the AG district. 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: Uses including, but not limited to, kennels, livestock barn stables, and 

other similar uses shall be a minimum of 100 feet from all property lines.  

Apiaries shall be located 200 feet from any property line.  All other yard 

setbacks shall be 25 feet from the property line.  

 

  242



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

ALLOWABLE  

USES: Single-family dwellings, including mobile homes, and their customary 

accessory structures and uses in accordance with article VII of this 

Code, Apiaries, crop and animal production (and the buildings and 

structures necessary to support such production).  Livestock barns and 

stables, kennels, commercial wholesale foliage plant production 

nursery, kennels, office building and accessory buildings in conjunction 

with commercial agriculture uses for packing, shopping, and storage 

purposes. 

  

243



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 
Jack & Joyce Cravey 

Property Owner 
15.04 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Rural (0 – 1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 ac)  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
To: “City” AG 

Parcel ID #s:   24-20-27-0000-00-056 & 24-20-27-0000-00-112 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

244



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 245



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 246



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 
 

 

 
 

  

247



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2535 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” AG (AGRICULTURE) FOR 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF PHILS 

LANE, EAST OF GOLDEN GEM ROAD, COMPRISING 15.04 ACRES MORE 

OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of 
the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified 
in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed AG (Agriculture) zoning has been found to be consistent with the 
City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in 
the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby AG (Agriculture), as defined in the Apopka Land Development 
Code.  
 
 Legal Description: 
 

 
 

Parcel I.D.s: 24-20-27-0000-00-056; 24-20-27-0000-00-112 

Contains: 15.04 +/- Acres 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City 

of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.   

248



ORDINANCE NO. 2535 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force 

or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the effective date of adoption of 

Ordinance No. 2499. 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: October 21, 2016 

    December 11, 2016  

READ FIRST TIME:  December 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 21, 2016 

249



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. Ordinance No. 2536 – First Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative   Kyle 
Wilkes 

  

250



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2536 
  
SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2536 – SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

– MARSHALL HOWARD 

   

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2536 – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE 

LAND USE AMENDMENT – MARSHALL HOWARD – FROM RESIDENTIAL 

HIGH (0-15 DU/AC) TO COMMERCIAL (MAX. 0.25 FAR) (PARCEL ID NO. 13-

21-28-5300-03-100; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING AND 

ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Marshall Howard c/o Khaled Akkawi 
 
LOCATION: 1351 Tropical Circle (generally located north of Kenneth Street, east of S 

Orange Blossom Trail). 
 
EXISTING USE:  Mobile Home Park (Tropicana Mobile Home Park) 
 
CURRENT ZONING: R-3 (Residential) 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: “City” C-1 (Retail Commercial) (Note: this Future Land Use Map 

amendment request is being processed along with a request to change the 
Zoning Map designation from R-3 (Residential) to C-1 (Retail Commercial). 

 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Expansion of commercial space for the Shoot Straight business 
 
TRACT SIZE:   3.8 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 58 residential units 
    PROPOSED: 41,382 Sq. Ft.   
FUNDING SOURCE:   
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 251



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 16, 
1992, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 751.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment 
is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres 
are eligible to be processed as a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State 
planning agencies. 
 
A request to assign a C-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning category to the Property is being processed in 
conjunction with this future land use amendment request for an Industrial designation.  The FLUM 
amendment application covers approximately 3.8 acres and the current use of the property is for a mobile 
home park.  After a Future Land Use Designation and Zoning Category are assigned to the subject property, 
property owner intends to incorporate them into the abutting Shoot Straight C-1 (Retail Commercial) to the 
west, which is consistent with the allowable uses within the C-1 zoning district.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing use of a mobile home park is a legal, non-
conforming use with the current land use and zoning categories.  However, the proposed use of the property 
is consistent with the proposed Commercial Future Land Use designation and the proposed C-1 Zoning 
designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this Future Land Use Amendment represents a change to a 
non-residential designation, notification of Orange County Public Schools is not required. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 
any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 14, 2016. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 14, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
December 7, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 
December 21, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 
December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading & ¼ Page w/Map Ad 
 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and  recommends adoption of the change in Future Land Use Residential High (0-15 du/ac) to 
Commercial (0.25 FAR) for the property owned by Marshall Howard. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2016, found that the proposed Small Scale 
Future Land Use Amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and 
recommended adoption of the Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment from Residential High (0 - 15 
du/ac) to Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) for the properties owned Marshall Howard. 
 
City Council Recommended Motion: Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2536 and Hold it Over 
for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 252



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) A-1 (ZIP) Vacant 

East (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant 

South (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-2 R-O-W, Retail & Billboard 

West (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-1 Retail & Gun Range (Shoot Straight) 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is commercial and residential.  Lands to 
the east have single-family residential, which lands to the north are vacant. Properties to the south and west 
have a Future Land Use Designation of Commercial.   The properties to the south contain retail uses and a 
billboard; abutting properties to the west are used presently for the Shoot Straight indoor gun range and 
firearm sales.  The proposed future land use request is consistent with the adjacent future land use 
designations, as well as consistent with uses in the surrounding area. 
 

 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 

 Area of Critical State Concern: No 

 DRI / FQD: No 

 

 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA ) 

agreement on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “Core Area” of the JPA.  The 

proposed FLUM Amendment from “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (10 du/ac) to City 

“Industrial” is consistent with the intent of the Core Area JPA. 

 

 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 

adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the 

adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 

reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 

Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 

following policies: 

 

• Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 

• Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 

• Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 

 The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 

shows that there are karst features on the subject property. 

 

Analysis of the character of the Property:  The subject property has access to a city residential roadway 

(Kenneth Street), which has access to S Orange Blossom Trail. A mobile home park is located on the subject 

property.  The vegetative communities present are urban; the soils present are St. Lucie and Zolfo-Urban 

Land Complex. 

  

253



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 

Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: This property was 

annexed into the City on August 23, 1983. The Orange County Comprehensive Plan anticipated this 

property being developed with potential of up to fifty-seven residential units.  Because this proposed land 

use change is to a non-residential development, this amendment will impact the population projections in 

the City's Comprehensive Plan. 
 

 CALCULATIONS: 

 

  ADOPTED (City designation): 57 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 285 persons 

  PROPOSED (City designation): 0 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 0 persons 
 

 Housing Needs:  Within the city limits and within the vicinity of this Property, sufficient 

undeveloped lands are assigned residential land use designations.  These undeveloped residential properties 

can adequately accommodate future population anticipated to occur within the city limits. 

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 

Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan.   

 

1.  Roadways.  The subject property has access to Kenneth St, which intersects with S Orange 

Blossom Tr (US 441).   

 

 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 

Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This 

site is less than ten acres and is already developed and platted.  A habitat study will not be required at the 

time of a development plan application.   

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 

Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A  GPD/Capita; 

 81 GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  11,172  GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   6,207  GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 

None 

 

254



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 

 177 GPD/Capita; 177 GPD/Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

 City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    25878  GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  8276 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  No           
 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

City of Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  628  lbs./person/day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  83  lbs./day/1000 SF 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21,981 mil. GPD 

 

255



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33,696 mil. GPD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: NO 
 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: Lake Page 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.456 AC 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 
  

256



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 

 
Marshall Howard 

3.8 +/- Acres 
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: Residential High (0-15 du/ac) 
To: Commercial (0.25 max FAR) 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: R-3 (Residential) 

To: C-1 (Retail Commercial) 
Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-5300-03-100 

 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

257



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
  

258



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

259



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

260



ORDINANCE NO. 2536 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM RESIDENTIAL HIGH (0-15 
DU/AC) TO COMMERCIAL (MAX 0.25), FOR CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1351 TROPICANA CIRCLE, COMPRISING 
3.8 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY MARSHALL HOWARD; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2524 on November 16, 2016; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2524, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from Residential High (0-15 du/ac) to Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR), for 
certain real property located at 1351 Tropicana Circle, comprising 3.8 acres more or less, (Parcel 
No. 13-21-28-5300-03-100); as further described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
 
 

261



 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2536 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
        day of                , 2016. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
December 7, 2016 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:  

 
 
December 21, 2016 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: October 28, 2016 

      December 9, 2016 

 

262



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
ORDINANCE NO. 2536 

 
 

Marshall Howard 
3.8 +/- Acres 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Residential High (0-15 du/ac) 

To: Commercial (0.25 max FAR) 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: R-3 (Residential) 
To: C-1 (Retail Commercial) 

Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-5300-03-100 
 

 

263



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

8. Ordinance No. 2537 – First Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial     
 Kyle Wilkes 

  

264



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No.2537 
  

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2537 – CHANGE OF ZONING – MARSHALL HOWARD 

   

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2537 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

MARSHALL HOWARD, FROM R-3 RESIDENTIAL) TO C-1 

COMMERCIAL; (PARCEL I.D. NO. 13-21-28-5300-03-100.; AND HOLD 

OVER FOR SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Marshall Howard c/o Khaled Akkawi 
 
LOCATION: 1351 Tropical Circle (generally located north of Kenneth Street, east of S 

Orange Blossom Trail). 
 
EXISTING USE:  Mobile Home Park (Tropicana Mobile Home Park) 
 
PROPOSED  
FLUM DESIGNATION: Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR) (NOTE: This change of zoning application is 

being processed in conjunction with a small scale FLUM amendment 
requesting Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR). 

 
CURRENT ZONING: R-3 (Residential)  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Expansion of Shoot Straight indoor gun range & firearm sales (stocking space) 
 
 
TRACT SIZE:   3.8 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 58 Units 
    PROPOSED: 41,382 Sq. Ft. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
N/A  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 

 

265



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 

16, 1992 through the adoption of Ordinance No. 751. 

 

The applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of C-1 (Retail Commercial) to the 

property, consistent with the proposed Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR) future land use designation.  

 

A request to assign a change of zoning to C-1 (Retail) is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications 

and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The property owner is 

requesting the C-1 (Retail Commercial) zoning classification to accommodate the use of the property for 

the expansion of the Shoot Straight indoor gun range and firearm sales immediately adjacent to the west 

of the subject site. The subject properties abut a limited access highway (S.R. 414) with a planned 

interchange at Marden Road.  This change of zoning application is being processed in conjunction with a 

small scale future land use amendment for Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR).  The proposed use is consistent 

with the proposed future land use, proposed zoning district and compatible with the general character of 

surrounding zoning and uses (see Land Use & Traffic Compatibility below). 

 

The change of zoning application covers approximately 3.8 acres.  

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is 

consistent with the Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed 

C-1 (Retail Commercial) Zoning classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by 

the Future Land Use policies.  

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:   The request is for a non-residential zoning classification; therefore, 

a school capacity enhancement agreement is not required. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 14, 2016. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 14, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

December 7, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 21, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading & ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

266



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed change of zoning amendment consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code and compatible with the character of the surrounding 
area, and recommends adoption of the change in zoning from R-3 (Residential) to C-1 (Retail 
Commercial) for the property owned by Marshall Howard. 
 
The Planning Commission at its meeting on November 14, 2016, recommended approval (6-0) of the 
Change of Zoning from R-3 (Residential) to C-1 (Retail Commercial) for property owned by Marshall 
Howard located at 1351 Tropical Circle, subject to the findings of the staff report. 
 
Accept Ordinance No. 2537 and hold over for second reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 
incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

267



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) A-1 (ZIP) Vacant 

East (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant 

South (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-2 R-O-W, Retail & Billboard 

West (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-1 Retail & Gun Range (Shoot Straight) 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC 

COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (Kenneth 

Street), which has access to S Orange Blossom Trail. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE  

PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed C-1 (Retail Commercial) zoning is consistent with the City’s 

Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR) Future Land Use designation and with the 

character of the surrounding area and future proposed development. The C-

1 (Retail Commercial) zoning classification is one of the acceptable zoning 

categories allowed within the proposed Commercial Future Land Use 

Designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in 

the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

C-1 DISTRICT 

REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: NA 

Minimum Site Area: 10,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 100 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 10 ft. (From property line) 

 Rear: 10 ft. (30 ft. from residential) 

 Side: 10 ft. 

 Corner 15 ft.  

 

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcels comply with code 

requirements for the C-1 (Retail Commercial) district. 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: 

1. Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum ten-

foot landscaped bufferyard.  

2. Areas adjacent to agricultural and residential uses or districts shall 

provide a minimum six-foot-high masonry wall within a ten-foot 

landscaped bufferyard. 

3. Areas adjacent to nonresidential uses or districts shall provide a 

minimum five-foot landscaped bufferyard.  

 

268



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

ALLOWABLE  

USES: Any nonresidential permitted use in the PO/I or CN districts.  Retail 

establishments, banks, savings and loan and other financial institutions. 

Bowling alleys, skating rinks, billiard parlors and similar amusement 

centers, provided such activities and facilities are enclosed within a sound-

proof building.  Churches and schools, day nurseries, kindergartens and 

other child care centers. Restaurants, hotels/motels, bed and breakfast 

facilities and other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses 

permitted herein which adhere to the intents of the district and which are not 

prohibited. 

269



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 
Marshall Howard 

3.8 +/- Acres 
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: Residential High (0-15 du/ac) 
To: Commercial (0.25 max FAR) 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: R-3 (Residential) 

To: C-1 (Retail Commercial) 
Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-5300-03-100 

 
VICINITY MAP 

 

Subject 

Property

 

270



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 
 
 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

271



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 
 
 
 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

272



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 

 

 
 
 
 

EXISTING USES 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
 

273



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2537 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM R-3 (RESIDENTIAL) TO C-1 (RETAIL 

COMMERCIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED EAST OF ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, NORTH OF 

KENNETH STREET, COMPRISING 3.8 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND 

OWNED BY MARSHALL HOWARD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS 

TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 
identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed C-1 (Retail Commercial) zoning has been found to be consistent 
with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 
in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby C-1 (Retail Commercial), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

F B LYNCHS SUB H/88 LOTS 10 THROUGH 16 & UNPLATTED PORTION 

LYING N OF SAID LOTS BLK C Parcel I.D: 13-21-28-5300-01-100 

Contains: 3.8 +/- Acres 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

274



ORDINANCE NO. 2537 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 
 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption of Ordinance No. 2536. 
 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: October 28, 2016  

December 9, 2016 

READ FIRST TIME:  December 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 21, 2016 

275



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

9. Ordinance No. 2538 – First Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative   Kyle 
Wilkes 

  

276



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
X OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Existing Uses Map 
    Ordinance No. 2538 

  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2538 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL 
ENTERPRISES, LLC 

    
REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2538 – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE 

LAND USE AMENDMENT – PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, 
LLC – FROM “COUNTY” LOW-MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (0-10 
DU/AC) TO “CITY” INDUSTRIAL (MAX. 0.6 FAR) (PARCEL ID NOS. 09-21-
28-0868-01-230; 09-21-28-0868-01-240); AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 
READING AND ADOPTION. 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael Cooper 
 
LOCATION: 202 South Hawthorne Ave & 300 West 2nd Street (South of West 2nd Street, 

west of South Hawthorne Avenue, and south of West Orange Blossom 
Trail/CSX Railroad Line) 

 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” R-2 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) (Note: this Future Land Use Map 

amendment request is being processed along with a request to change the 
Zoning Map designation from “County” R-2 (ZIP) to “City” I-1 (Restricted 
Industrial). 

 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Industrial, Commercial or Office Development consistent with I-1 

(Restricted Industrial) zoning 
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.74 +/- acre 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING:   2 Residential Units (subject properties are platted as 2 lots) 
    PROPOSED:  10,977 Sq. Ft.  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  277



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTYY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 2, 

2015, through the adoption of Ordinances No. 241 and 2462.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use 

Amendment is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less 

than ten acres are eligible to be processed as a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require 

review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign an I-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning category to the Property is being processed in 

conjunction with this future land use amendment request for an Industrial designation.  The FLUM 

amendment application covers approximately 0.74 acres, exceeding the minimum development site area of 

15,000 sq. ft. Abutting lands to the north, west and south are already owned by the same property owner as 

the applicant and assigned an Industrial FLUM designation.  After a Future Land Use Designation and 

Zoning Category are assigned to the subject property, property owner intends to incorporate them into the 

abutting industrial park under the same ownership.  The property owner intends to use the subject site for 

industrial, commercial or office development consistent with Industrial FLUM designation and I-1 zoning 

category.    

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Industrial Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed I-1 Zoning designation.  Site 

development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this Future Land Use Amendment represents a change to a 

non-residential designation, notification of Orange County Public Schools is not required. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 14, 2016. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 14, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

December 7, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 21, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading & ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

  

278



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTYY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and  recommends approval of the change in Future Land Use from “County” Low-Medium Density 

Residential (0-10 du/ac) to “City” Industrial (0.6 FAR) for the property owned by Property Industrial 

Enterprises, LLC, and located at 202 South Hawthorne Avenue and 300 West 2nd Street. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2106, found that the future land use 

amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and recommended adoption of the small scale future 

land use amendment from “County” Low Medium Residential (0-10 du/ac) to “City” Industrial (max 0.60 

FAR), for properties owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC and located at 202 South Hawthorne 

Avenue and 300 West 2nd Street. 

 

City Council Recommended Motion:  Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2538 and Hold it Over 

for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

                                                                                                                                                                          

 

  

279



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTYY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 
I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Industrial\railroad tracks 

East (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-2 Hawthorne Ave. & Church 

South (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Industrial 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Industrial 

 
 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is industrial and commercial.  Lands on 
the east side of Hawthorne Avenue are assigned a Commercial FLUM designation.  A Future Land Use 
Designation of Industrial (0.6 FAR) is assigned to the properties on the north, south and west sides, making 
the proposed Future Land Use Designation of Industrial (0.6 FAR) compatible with adjacent land uses and 
the general character of the surrounding area. 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA ) 
agreement on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “Western Expressway Corridor 
Area” of the JPA.  The proposed FLUM Amendment from “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (10 
du/ac) to City “Industrial” is consistent with the intent of the Western Expressway Corridor Area JPA. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the 
adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 
reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 
Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 
following policies: 
 

• Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
• Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
• Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
 The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
shows that there are no karst features currently known to occur on the subject property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The subject property has access to a city collector roadway 
(Hawthorne Avenue) and a freight rail line.  A single family residence is located on each of the subject lots.  
The vegetative communities present are urban; the soils present are St. Lucie and Zolfo-Urban Land 
Complex. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: This property was 
annexed into the City on October 1, 2014. The Orange County Comprehensive Plan anticipated this property 
being developed with potential of up to sixty residential units.  Because this proposed land use change 
accommodates non-residential development, this amendment will not impact the population projections in 
the City's Comprehensive Plan. 

280



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTYY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 
 
 

 CALCULATIONS: 
 ADOPTED (County designation): 2 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 5 persons 
 PROPOSED (City designation): 0 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 0 persons 
 

 Housing Needs:  Within the city limits and within the vicinity of this Property, sufficient 
undeveloped lands are assigned residential land use designations.  These undeveloped residential properties 
can adequately accommodate future population anticipated to occur within the city limits. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan.   
 

1.  Roadways.  The subject property has access to Hawthorne Avenue, which is a designated collector 
road.  Hawthorne Avenue intersects with U.S. 441 and 4th Street.  A limited access highway (S.R. 
429/S.R. 451) is a mile driving distance from the subject property. 

 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This 
site is less than ten acres and is already developed and platted.  A habitat study will not be required at the 
time of a development plan application.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A  GPD/Capita; 
 81 GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  392  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   1647  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 
None 
 

Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 
 177 GPD/Capita;  177 GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    908  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  2195 GPD 

281



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTYY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  No           

 

 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  20  lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  22  lbs./day/1000 SF 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 

Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21,981 mil. GPD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33,696 mil. GPD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: No 
 

 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 24 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 
 

282



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTYY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.063 AC 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.015 AC 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 

  

283



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTYY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 
Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 

0.74 +/- Acre 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 2 residential dwelling units 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 10,977 Sq. Ft. 
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 

From: “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) 
To: “City” Industrial (0.30 FAR) 

Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” R-2 (ZIP) 

To: “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) 

Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0868-01-230 & 09-21-28-0868-01-240 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

  

Subject 

Properties 

284



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTYY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

  

285



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTYY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

286



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTYY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 11 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 
 

  

287



ORDINANCE NO. 2538 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” LOW-MEDIUM 
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (0-10 DU/AC) TO “CITY” INDUSTRIAL (MAX 
0.6), FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 202 S 
HAWTHORNE  AVE AND 300 W 2ND STREET, COMPRISING 0.74 
ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL 
ENTERPRISES LLC; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2524 on November 16, 2016; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2524, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) to “City” 
Industrial (Max. 0.6 FAR), for certain real property located at 202 South Hawthorne Ave & 300 W 
West 2nd Street, comprising 0.74 acres more or less, (Parcel No. 09-21-28-0868-01-230 & 09-21-
28-0868-01-240); as further described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 

288



 

 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2538 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
        day of                , 2016. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
December 7, 2016 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:  

 
 
December 21, 2016 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: October 28, 2016 

      December 9, 2016 

 

289



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
ORDINANCE NO. 2538 

 
 

Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 
0.74 +/- Acre 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 2 residential dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 10,977 Sq. Ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) 

To: “City” Industrial (0.60 FAR) 
Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” R-2 (ZIP) 

To: “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) 
Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0868-01-230 & 09-21-28-0868-01-240 

 
 

290



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

10. Ordinance No. 2539 – First Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial     
 Kyle Wilkes  

  

291



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No.2539 
  

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2539 – CHANGE OF ZONING – PROPERTY 

INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC 

   

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2539 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC, FROM “COUNTY” R-2 

(ZIP) TO “CITY” I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL); (PARCEL I.D. NOS. 

09-21-28-0868-01-230 & 09-21-28-0868-01-240; AND HOLD OVER FOR 

SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael Cooper 
 
LOCATION: 202 S Hawthorne Street & 300 W 2nd Street 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Residential 
 
PROPOSED 
LAND USE: Industrial (max 0.60 FAR) 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” R-2 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Industrial, Commercial or Office Development consistent with I-1 

(Restricted Industrial) zoning 
 
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.74 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  2 Residential Units (subject properties are platted as two lots) 
PROPOSED:   14,505 Sq. Ft. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

292



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on December 
2, 2015, through the adoption of Ordinances No. 2461 and 2462.   
 
The proposed change of zoning is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Presently, the subject property 
has not yet been assigned a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning 
classification of I-1 (Restricted Industrial) to the property.  
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to I-1 (Restricted Industrial) is compatible to the adjacent zoning 
classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The property 
owner is requesting the I-1 zoning classification to accommodate the use of the property for light 
industrial, commercial or office development allowed under the I-1 zoning district.  This use is consistent 
with the proposed Industrial Future Land Use Designation, proposed zoning district and compatible with 
the general character of surrounding zoning and uses. 
 
The change of zoning application covers approximately 0.74 acres.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 
Industrial (max 0.60 FAR) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed I-1 (Restricted 
Industrial) Zoning classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future 
Land Use policies. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning is to a non-residential zoning district and, 
therefore, a capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 
any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 14, 2016 
 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 14, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

December 7, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 21, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading & ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

 

293



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and the Land Development Code recommends adoption of the change in Zoning from “County” R-2 

(ZIP) to “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial), subject to the adoption of the associated small scale future land 

use amendment, for the property owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael Cooper. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2016, found the change of zoning to “City” 

I-1 (Restricted Industrial) consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and 

recommended adoption (6-0); subject to adoption of the Proposed Future Land Use Designation.  

 

City Council Recommended Motion:  Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2539 and Hold it 

Over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 

 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

294



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
ZONING REPORT 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Industrial\railroad tracks 

East (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-2 Hawthorne Ave. & Church 

South (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Industrial 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Industrial 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (W 2nd 

Street) and a city minor collector (S Hawthorne Avenue).  The 
proposed I-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning district is consistent and 
compatible with the adjacent zoning classifications and uses within the 
surrounding area. Properties owned by the same owner to the, north, 
west and south are zoned I-1, and properties to the east, across S 
Hawthorne Ave., are used for an institutional use (church) and zoned 
C-3 (Wholesale Commercial).  

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed I-1 zoning is consistent with the City’s Industrial (max 

0.60 FAR) Future Land Use designation and with the character of the 
surrounding area and future proposed development. The I-1 zoning 
classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed within 
the Industrial Land Use category.   Development Plans shall not exceed 
the density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
I-1 DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: NA 

Minimum Site Area: 15,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 100 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. 

 Rear: 10 ft. (30 ft. to residential)  

 Side: 10 ft. 

 Corner 25 ft. 

 
Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcels comply with 
code requirements for the I-1 district. 

 
BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: 1. Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum 

25-foot landscaped bufferyard.  
 
 2. Areas adjacent to agricultural uses or districts shall provide a 

minimum of ten feet abutting the property line with landscaping 
and a six-foot-high masonry wall. 

 
 

295



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 
 3.    Areas adjacent to residential uses or districts shall provide a six 

foot-high masonry wall within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped 
bufferyard. 

              
       4.   Industrial uses adjacent to nonresidential, nonindustrial uses or 

districts shall provide one of the following: 
 

        a.      A minimum of 25 feet abutting the property with landscaping 
and an earth berm, measuring three feet with a 3:1 slope; or 

        b.     A minimum six-foot-high masonry wall within a minimum of 
ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

 
ALLOWABLE  
USES: Any C-3 Commercial District permitted use and wholesale distribution, 

storage and light manufacturing, including: manufacture and processing of 

novelties, bakery and confectionary products, garments, scientific, 

electrical, instruments or equipment.  Bus, cab and truck repair.  Dyeing, 

dry cleaning and laundering. Machinery sales and machine shops. Cold 

storage and frozen food lockers.  All other uses not prohibited, and similar 

and compatible to those within the I-1 Restricted Industrial Zoning District. 

296



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 
Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 

0.74 +/- Acre 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 2 residential dwelling units 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 10,977 Sq. Ft. 
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 

From: “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) 
To: “City” Industrial (0.30 FAR) 

Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” R-2 (ZIP) 

To: “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) 

Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0868-01-230 & 09-21-28-0868-01-240 

 
VICINITY MAP 

 

SUBJECT 

PROPERTIES 

297



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 
 
 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

298



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 
 
 
 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

299



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 

 

 
 
 
 

EXISTING USES 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
 

300



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2539 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM R-2 (ZIP) TO I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL) 

FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF 

HAWTHORNE AVENUE, SOUTH OF 2ND STREET, COMPRISING 0.74 

ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL 

ENTERPRISES, LLC; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 
identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed I-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 
in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby C-1 (Retail Commercial), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

BRADSHAW AND THOMPSONS ADDITION TO APOPKA CITY B/25 LOT 

23 (LESS RR R/W) BLK A; AND BRADSHAW AND THOMPSONS 

ADDITION TO APOPKA CITY B/25 LOT 24 BLK A (LESS R/W 

Parcel I.D: 09-21-28-0868-01-230 & 09-21-28-0868-01-234 

Contains: 0.74 +/- Acres 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

301



ORDINANCE NO. 2539 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption of Ordinance No. 2538. 

 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: October 28, 2016  

December 9, 2016 

READ FIRST TIME:  December 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 21, 2016 

302



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

11. Ordinance No. 2540 – First Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial     
 Elizabeth Florence 

  

303



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning 

    Adjacent Uses 

    Existing Uses 

    Ordinance No. 2540 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2540 – CHANGE OF ZONING – SOUTH PASS LLC 
    
REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2540 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

SOUTH PASS LLC, FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (RURAL) TO “CITY” RCE-1 
(RESIDENTIAL) (PARCEL I.D. NO. 29-20-28-0000-00-034); AND HOLD 
OVER FOR SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. 

  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: South Pass LLC 
 
LOCATION: 2228 Vick Rd. 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
CURRENT LAND USE: Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates 1) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single-family residential 
 
TRACT SIZE:   4.77 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 1 Dwelling Unit 
    PROPOSED: 4 Dwelling Units 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 304



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” zoning 

category.  The applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of RCE-1 (Residential 

Country Estates 1) to the property.  

 

The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on August 6, 2008, through the adoption of 

Ordinance No. 2042.   

 

A request to assign a change of zoning to RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates 1) is compatible to the 

adjacent zoning classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  

The property owner is requesting the RCE-1 zoning classification to split the lot and develop two single-

family residences.  The proposed use is consistent with the existing Residential Low Suburban FLUM 

designation and compatible with the general character of surrounding zoning and uses.   

 

The change of zoning application covers approximately 4.77 +/- acres.  

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

proposed Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed 

RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates 1) Zoning classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity 

allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed change of zoning will not result in additional units 

above the number required for school capacity determination and, therefore, is considered de minimus.   

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 14, 2016. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 14, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

December 7, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 21, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/Map/¼ Page w/Map Ad 

  

305



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan, Land Development Code and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends 

approval of the change in zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” RCE-1 (Residential County Estates 1) 

for the property owned by South Pass LLC and located at 2228 Vick Road.  

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2106, found the proposed rezoning consistent 

with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code and recommended adoption of the change of 

zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates 1), for property owned by 

South Pass LLC and located at 2228 Vick Road. 

 

City Council Recommended Motion:  Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2540 and Hold it Over 

for Second Reading and Adoption on December 16, 2016. 

 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

306



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Institutional/Public Use PO/I City Retention Pond 

East (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant 

South (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) PUD Spring Ridge HOA easement and open space 

West (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) PUD Single-family homes (Spring Ridge subdivision 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a city collector (Vick Rd).  

The proposed RCE-1 zoning district is consistent with the existing 
Future Land Use designation, and is compatible with the zoning and uses 
in the surrounding area.  The subject property is adjacent to R-O-W 
(Vick Rd.) and vacant “County” A-1 rural zoning to the east, and PUD 
zoning and the Spring Ridge subdivision to the west.  The subject parcel 
abuts a City retention pond with PO/I zoning to the north and a Spring 
Ridge HOA easement and retention pond to the south.  The proposed 
RCE-1 zoning classification, which requires a minimum lot size of one 
(1) acre, as well as the proposed use for two single-family residences 
would serve as a transition from the rural zoning to the east and single-
family residential to the west. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates 1) zoning is 

consistent with the existing Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) 
Future Land Use designation and with the character of the surrounding 
area and future proposed development. The proposed RCE-1 
(Residential Country Estates 1) zoning classification is one of the 
acceptable zoning categories allowed within the Residential Low Future 
Land Use designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density 
allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
RCE-1 DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 2,200 sq. ft. 

Minimum Site Area: 1 acre 

Minimum Lot Width 130 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 35 ft. 

 Rear: 30 ft. 

 Side: 15 ft. 

 Corner 35 ft. 

 
Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcel complies with 
code requirements for the RCE-1 zoning district. 

 
 
 

307



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 
 

BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: 1. Developments shall have a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, 
erected inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.  
Landscape materials shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on 
the exterior of the buffer wall.  The city may allow the developer 
the option to provide up to 50 percent of the buffer wall length in a 
six-foot wrought iron fence between solid columns.  The columns 
shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-set and shall have a stone, brick 
or decorative block finish.  Where wrought iron is used, additional 
landscape materials and irrigation may be required.  This will be 
determined by the city on a case-by-case basis. 

 
 2. Areas adjacent to agricultural districts or activities shall provide a 

minimum five-foot bufferyard and a minimum six-foot high brick, 
stone or decorative block finished wall unless acceptable 
alternatives are submitted for approval. 

 
 
ALLOWABLE USES: Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures 

and uses in accordance with article VII of this code. Guest/granny 

quarters in accordance with article VII of this code. 

  

308



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 
South Pass LLC 

4.77 +/- Acres 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
To: “City” RCE-1 (Residential) 

Parcel ID #: 29-20-28-0000-00-034 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBJECT 

PROPERTY 

309



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 310



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 311



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 
 

 

 
 

  

312



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2540 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” RCE-1 

(RESIDENTIAL COUNTRY ESTATES) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2228 VICK ROAD, COMPRISING 4.77 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY SOUTH PASS, LLC; PROVIDING 

FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 
identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates) zoning has been found to 
be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 
in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby C-1 (Retail Commercial), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

S 298 FT OF E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4 & E 60 FT OF W1/2 SAID NE1/4 OF 
SE1/4 (LESS E 30 FT FOR RD R/W) & (LESS PT TAKEN ON E FOR R/W PER 
OR 4950/2909) OF SEC 29-20-28 
Parcel I.D: 29-20-28-0000-00-034 

Contains: 4.77 +/- Acres 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

313



ORDINANCE NO. 2540 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption. 

 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: October 28, 2016  

December 9, 2016 

READ FIRST TIME:  December 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 21, 2016 

314



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

12. Ordinance No. 2541 – First Reading – Right-of-Way Vacate – Quasi-Judicial     Rogers 
Beckett 

  

315



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 7 , 2016 

X  PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Map 

X  OTHER: Vacate   Utility Letters 

    Ordinance No. 2541 

    Survey/Legal Description 

Development Agreement 
  
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2541  - MID FLORIDA FREEZER WAREHOUSES, 

LTD - VACATING  PORTIONS OF UNNAMED RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 

REQUEST:  ACCEPT THE FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2541 - MID 

FLORIDA FREEZER WAREHOUSES, LTD – VACATING PORTIONS OF 

UNNAMED RIGHT-OF-WAY; AND HOLD IT OVER FOR SECOND 

READING AND ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
APPLICANT:              Mid Florida Freezer Warehouses, LTD 
 
LOCATION:              South of General Electric Road and East of Hermit Smith Road  
 
LAND USE:              Right of Way 
 
ZONING:   Right of Way 
 
EXISTING USE:  Unimproved Right of Way 
 
AREA TO  
BE VACATED:     2.11 +/- Acres (92,097 +/- Sq. Ft.) 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Land Use Zoning Present Use 
North - City Industrial I-1 Vacant Land 
East - City Industrial       I-1 Vacant Land 

South - City Industrial I-1 Vacant Land 
West - City Industrial  I-1 Vacant Land 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

 316



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 

MID FLORIDA FREEZER WAREHOUSES, LTD – VACATE  

PAGE 2 

 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicant is seeking to vacate a two sections of unimproved right-of-

way located east of Hermit Smith Road and south of General Electric Road.   This right-of-way vacate was 

authorized by City Council through the Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park Development Agreement, which 

was approved by City Council at its meeting held on October 5, 2016.  The portions of right-of-way that 

will be vacated is described within the legal description.  Vacating this portion of the road right-of-way will 

not affect any abutting property owners. 

 

Our Public Services department has evaluated the site and has agreed to the vacate request. Additionally, 

all local utility providers have been contacted by the applicant and have provided the letters received from 

each utility provider indicating no objection to this vacate request. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

December 7, 2016 - City Council - 1st Reading (1:30 p.m.) 

December 21, 2016 - City Council - 2nd Reading (7:00 p.m.) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

November 18, 2016 - Public Hearing Notice 

December 9, 2016 - Ordinance Heading Ad 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the request to vacate portions of unnamed 
right-of-way as described in the legal descriptions. 
 
City Council Recommended Motion:  Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2541 and Hold it Over 
for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
  

317



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 

MID FLORIDA FREEZER WAREHOUSES, LTD – VACATE  

PAGE 3 

 

PROPOSED VACATE PORTIONS OF UNNAMED RIGHT OF WAY  

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
                                                                                                                                                        
 

 

 

 

 

 
  Vacate Area 
   
    

318



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 

MID FLORIDA FREEZER WAREHOUSES, LTD – VACATE  

PAGE 4 

 

                                                 AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 

319



320



321



322



323



ORDINANCE NO. 2541 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO VACATE A 
PORTION OF  A RIGHT-OF-WAY; LOCATED EAST OF HERMIT 
SMITH ROAD AND SOUTH OF GENERAL ELECTRIC ROAD; IN 
SECTION 06, TOWNSHIP 21, RANGE 28 OF ORANGE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR 
SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 336.10, a Petition has been 
filed by Mid Florida Freezer Warehouses, LTD to vacate, abandon, discontinue, renounce and 
disclaim a portion of unnamed right of way as shown in Exhibit “A”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Century Link (f/k/a Embarq), Spectrun\Bright House Network (f/k/a Time 
Warner Cable), Duke Energy (f/k/a Progress Energy), and Lake Apopka Natural Gas District have 
no objection to the abandonment of a portion of the existing utility easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that under the proposed circumstances there 
exists no public need for this existing right-of-way; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice in accordance with Florida Statute 336.10, the City 
Council has determined that it is not contrary to public interest to vacate and abandon said existing 
right-of-way. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the following lands, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit “A,” 
shall be officially closed, discontinued, and vacated: 
 
 LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

 

THE EAST 746.00 FEET OF THE SOUTH 60.00 FEET OF THE NORTHWEST 

¼ OF THE SOUTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 

27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. CONTAINING: 44,760 SQUARE 

FEET (1.03 ACRES +/-)  

            AND  

THE 40.00 RIGHT OF WAY LYING BETWEEN BLOCK M, BLOCK L, MAP 

OF PLYMOUTH, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN 

PLAT BOOK B, PAGE 17, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY 

FLORIDA, BEING BOUND ON THE WEST BY THE WEST LINE OF SAID 

MAP OF PLYMOUTH AND BOUND ON THE EAST BY STATE ROAD NO. 

429, LYING IN SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, 

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. CONTAINING: 47,337 SQUARE FEET (1.08 

ACRES +/-) 

 

TOTAL COMBINED ACREAGE: 92,097 SQUARE FEET, (2.11 ACRES +/-)  
 
 Section II.  NOTICE.  That notice of the adoption of this Ordinance be published and the 
Ordinance be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Orange County, Florida, and duly 
recorded among the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
 

324



ORDINANCE NO. 2541 

PAGE 2 
 
 

 
            Section III. SEVERABILITY. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of 
this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate 
or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or 
part of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section IV.  CONFLICT. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section V.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of 
adoption. 
 
      READ FIRST TIME:  December 7, 2016 
 
      READ SECOND TIME 
      AND ADOPTED:  December 21, 2016 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________________  
Cliff Shepard, Esq., City Attorney 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  November 18, 2016 
        December 9, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Vacate\ 3 Ord 2541 -Mid Florida Freezer- Vacate - Unnamed Road– Ordinance-2541 

325



ORDINANCE NO. 2541 

PAGE 3 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 

  

326



ORDINANCE NO. 2541 

PAGE 4 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

13. Resolution No. 2016-35 - Economic Development Grant and Tax Abatement Agreement – Qorvo US, Inc.   James 
Hitt 

  

346



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

X CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

 PUBLIC HEARING FROM: Administration 

 SPECIAL REPORTS EXHIBIT(S): Grant Agreement 

 OTHER:   
  

 

SUBJECT:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE – QORVO US, INC. 

 

REQUEST: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-35 FOR THE ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE GRANT AGREEMENT AND QUALIFIED 

TARGET INDUSTRY (QTI) PROGRAM; and, AUTHORIZE THE CITY 

ADMINISTRATOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF APOPKA AND QORVO US, INC. FOR TAX 

ABATEMENT  
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Qualified Target Industry (QTI) Program: 

The city was recently made aware of a potential major business expansion within the city.  Qorvo US, Inc.  

Qorvo designs and fabricates key electronics components for consumer devices and the defense industry.  

Qorvo recently was granted new contracts that will require physical expansion of the facility and the 

potential for the addition of 100 new jobs.  However, they are in competition with another fabrication 

facility out of state.  The company has already transferred one product line to this out of state facility.  

There is little distinction between the two sites based upon capabilities. Due to this circumstance upon 

this, the Apopka site must show other competitive advantages such as cost efficiency, supportive local 

governments and talented employees. 

 

If successful, the expansion will consist of a 33,000 sq. ft. office addition and 7,000 sq. ft. of lab space 

and parking, to the existing facility.  The project will create, approximately 100 new high-wage jobs in the 

City for primarily engineers (90), IT (2), Management (5) and Production (3) with an average site salary 

of approximately $83,900 and an average engineer salary on site of $85,000.  It is anticipated that up to 

50% of the new employees will be hired locally.  

 

The property tax incentive the state has a Qualified Target Industry (QTI) program that provides a 

reimbursement to a company that meets job creation criteria.  Qorvo meets criteria for a $6,000 per job 

reimbursement.  Under this program, the state pays 80% of the cost ($480,000) while the local 

government contributes 20%.  Since we are approaching this as a partnership with Orange County, the 

city would be responsible for 10% or $60,000 for the job creation and Orange County would cover the 

other half.  Assuming all 100 jobs are created, the city would be ultimately responsible for $60,000 over 

the life of the agreement or an average of $7,500 per year.   

 

 

 

 

 
347



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 7, 2016 

ECONOMIC INCENTIVE GRANT 

PAGE 2 

 

Tax Abatement: 

Based upon this situation the Orlando Economic Development Commission,  Orange County Economic 

Development Department and City have joined forces to propose an economic incentive package to 

provide Qorvo with a competitive advantage over the out of state facility.  To accomplish this, Orange 

County is processing an incentive package that will include a tax incentive that will reduce the property 

tax burden by 50% for any increase in value for the expansion.  This is accomplished through a tax 

incentive program granted under Chapter 196 of the Florida Statutes.  The city may grant a similar 

reduction through an Economic Incentive Grant under Chapter166.021of the Florida Statutes.  Based 

upon this we may reimburse the company 50% of the increase in their property tax following the 

expansion.  This would be available to them over an eight (8) year period at which time they would begin 

paying taxes on the improvements.  Assuming a 43 million dollar investment which would include a new 

building and personal property Equipment, as anticipated by Qorvo, the city would reimburse 

approximately $578,745 over the term of the Agreement (approx. 8 years) through the proposed tax 

abatement. 

 

The benefit of incentives of this nature is that it is entirely performance based.  If the expansion does not 

occur or the jobs are not created the city has no obligation. 

 

Exhibits: 

 Resolution No. 2016-35 

 Orange County 2016 Incentive / Exemption Project Worksheet 

 Economic Development Grant Agreement – Tax Abatement (Apopka & Qorvo US, Inc.) 

 Sample QTI Payout Schedule – for jobs 

 Sample Tax Abatement – for Apopka City Taxes 

  
FUNDING SOURCE 

 

Budgeted Annually 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Approve Resolution No. 2016-35 for the Economic Development Incentive Grant Agreement for Qorvo 

in the Qualified Target Industry (QTI) Program for job creation; and, authorize the City Administrator or 

his designee to execute the Economic Development Incentive Grant Agreement for Tax Abatement 

between the City Of Apopka and Qorvo US Inc.      
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

348



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-35 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, RECOMMENDING THAT QORVO 
US, INC. BE APPROVED AS A QUALIFIED TARGET 
INDUSTRY BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 288.106, 
FLORIDA STATUTES; PROVIDING AN APPROPRIATED 
10 PERCENT SHARE OF $120,000 AS LOCAL 
PARTICIPATION IN THE QUALIFIED TARGET 
INDUSTRY TAX REFUND PROGRAM FOR FISCAL YEARS 
2017-2025; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, in 1994, the Florida legislature passed legislation establishing a “Qualified 
Target Industry Tax Refund Program” (“QTI Program”) to encourage the creation of new high-
wage job opportunities in Florida by providing “tax refunds” to qualified target industries; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the business under consideration is Qorvo US, Inc. (hereinafter “Qorvo”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Qorvo was incorporated on January 1, 2015, and is headquartered in 
Oregon; and 
 

WHEREAS, Qorvo provides standard and custom product solutions for the mobile, 
infrastructure and defense markets, as well as strategic foundry services, and has design, 
manufacturing, applications engineering and sales/support facilities around the globe; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Qorvo has 6.9 billion dollars in assets, 1.2 billion dollars in working 
capital, 4 major manufacturing sites within the United States, 40+ sites worldwide, generates 3 
billion dollars in revenue with no debt, and employees approximately 7,500 employees; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Qorvo seeks to expand its current manufacturing plant and design center in 
Apopka with a new 33,000 sq. ft. office addition and a 7,000 sq. ft. lab space for design and 
research (the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Qorvo will be increasing its production capacity and investing more than 
40 million dollars in high tech semi-conductor fabrication equipment; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the “Project,” will create, approximately 100 new high-wage jobs in the 
City for engineers for primarily engineers (90), IT (2), Management (5) and Production (3) with 
an overall average site salary of approximately $83,900 and an average engineer salary on site of 
$85,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, Qorvo intends to give at least 50% hiring priority to qualified City residents 
and to also seek qualified minorities from the Central Florida area to fill its hiring needs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, alternative sites for the Project exist in the Greensboro, NC metropolitan 
area, and financial incentives play a critical role in Qorvo’s decision to establish the Project in 
Apopka rather than in Greensboro, NC. 
  
 WHEREAS, Qorvo has applied to the Executive Office of the Governor, Office of 
Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development for approval as a qualified QTI Program applicant, 
and has applied for $600,000 in tax refunds from the State of Florida under the QTI Program, 
representing $6,000 per job pursuant to s. 196.1995, Florida Statutes; and 
 

349



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-35 

PAGE 2 

 
 WHEREAS, competition for Qorvo exists outside of Florida, and financial incentives are 
necessary to ensure that the company expands its Project in the City of Apopka rather than 
elsewhere; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State contribution consists of $480,000 = 80%, and the local contribution 
is $120,000 = 20% to be paid out by Orange County ($60,000 = 10%) and the City of Apopka 
($60,000 = 10%) 
 
 WHEREAS, a Resolution from Apopka City Council recommending Qorvo be approved as 
a target industry business and stating that the City agrees to pay 10% of the total tax refund received 
under the QTI Program, not to exceed $6,000 per job pursuant to s. 196.1995, Florida Statutes, is 
required before Enterprise Florida and the Office of Tourism, Trade and Economic Development 
will consider Qorvo’s application for the program which is half of the necessary commitment of 
local financial support; and 
  
 WHEREAS, Orange County has also agreed to pay 10% of the of the total tax refund, 
which equates to the other half of necessary commitment of local financial support.  
  
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF APOPKA, FLORIDA: 
 
 Section 1. The Apopka City Council hereby recommends that the State of Florida 
Department of Economic Opportunity approve Qorvo as a “qualified applicant” under the QTI 
Program pursuant to s. 288.106, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section 2. The Apopka City Council verifies that the necessary local financial 
support for the Qualified Target Industry Tax Refund Program exists, subject to the terms of this 
Resolution, in the amount of, but not to exceed $60,000, which equals 10% of the local tax 
refund requested as the local contribution from the City of Apopka, and will be provided in the 
form of ad valorem tax abatement granted to Qorvo US, Inc. pursuant to s. 196.1995, Florida 
Statutes. 

 
 Section 3. The Apopka City Council’s promise to pay the amount specified in this 
Resolution is contingent upon (i) Qorvo receiving the designation as a “qualified applicant” in 
connection with the QTI program, (ii) appropriation by the Apopka City Council in each applicable 
year authorizing payment of the revenues hereunder, (iii) on an annual basis, award by the State of 
Florida of tax refunds under the QTI Program; and, (iv) Orange County pays their 10% share of the 
local contribution as well for the program for each of the applicable years.  

 
 Section 4. Unless otherwise provided in this Resolution, the City shall pay the “local 
financial support” as shown in Exhibit “A” in the following amounts: 
 
  Fiscal Year      Amount 
  2016/2017 ………………………………………… $   3,000 
  2017/2018 ………………………………………... $   6,000 
  2019/2020 ………………………………………... $   9,000 
  2020/2021 ………………………………………... $ 12,000 
  2021/2022 ………………………………………... $ 12,000 
  2022/2023 ………………………………………... $   9,000 
  2023/2024 ………………………………………... $   6,000 
  2024/2025 ………………………………………... $   3,000 
  TOTAL      $ 60,000 
 

350



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-35 

PAGE 3 

 
Such sums shall be paid from any legally available source or sources of revenue other than those 
specified in the QTI Program (or rules promulgated thereunder) as being ineligible for such purpose. 
 
 Section 5. In the event that Qorvo is approved by the State of Florida for tax refunds in 
an amount less than the estimated amount of $600,000, the local financial support to be paid by the 
City to the Economic Development Trust Fund shall be proportionately reduced so that the total tax 
refund awarded to Qorvo by the City will not exceed ten percent (10%) of the total tax refund 
awarded to Qorvo under the QTI Program. 
 

Section 6.  Severability.   If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution 
is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, that holding in no 
way shall affect the remaining portions of this resolution. 
 

 Section 7.  Effective Date.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption. 

PASSED AND RESOLVED this ____ day of _____________, 2016, by the City 
Council of the City of Apopka, Florida.  

 
APPROVED: 

 
 
        _________________________________ 
                                                            Joe Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

351



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-35 

PAGE 4 

 

Exhibit “A” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

\\apk-fs1\users$\jhitt\Documents\QORVO - Shark II\City Council Approval\Qorvo QTI Resolution No 2016-35 CC11-7-16.doc 

352



 

1 

____________________________________________________ 

 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

and 

QORVO US, INC.  

_____________________________________________________ 

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT AGREEMENT 

_____________________________________________________ 

 

 This Economic Development Grant Agreement, herein referred to as the “Agreement,” is entered 

into as of the _____ day of ___________, 2016, by and between the City of Apopka, Florida, a municipality 

within the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as “City,” and Qorvo US, Inc., a corporation registered 

in the State of Delaware, herein referred to as “Qorvo.” 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

 WHEREAS, the Florida Legislature enacted Section 166.021, Florida Statutes, (the “Act”), which 

grants economic development powers to cities and acknowledges that the expenditure of public funds for 

economic development activities is a valid public purpose; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, municipal economic development activities constituting a public 

purpose may include, but are not limited to, making grants to private enterprise for the expansion of 

businesses existing in the community or the attraction of new businesses to the community; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Qorvo was incorporated on January 1, 2015, and is headquartered in Oregon; and 

 

WHEREAS, Qorvo provides standard and custom product solutions for the mobile, infrastructure 

and defense markets, as well as strategic foundry services, and has design, manufacturing, applications 

engineering and sales/support facilities around the globe; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Qorvo has 6.9 billion dollars in assets, 1.2 billion dollars in working capital, 4 major 

manufacturing sites within the United States, 40+ sites worldwide, generates 3 billion dollars in revenue 

with no debt, and employees approximately 7,500 employees; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Qorvo seeks to expand its current manufacturing plant and design center in Apopka 

with a new 35,000 sq. ft. building that will house approximately 7,000 sq. ft. of research and design and 

prototype labs (the “Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, Qorvo will be increasing its production capacity and investing more than 40 million 

dollars in high tech semi-conductor fabrication equipment; and  

 

353



 

2 

 WHEREAS, the “Project,” will create, approximately 100 new high-wage jobs in the City for 

engineers (90), IT (2), Management (5) and Production (3) with an average site salary of approximately 

$83,900 and an average engineer salary on site of $85,000; and 

 

 WHEREAS, alternative sites for the Project exist in the Greensboro, NC metropolitan area, and 

municipal financial incentives play a critical role in Qorvo’s decision to establish the Project in Apopka 

rather than in Greensboro, NC.; and 

 

 WHEREAS, THE City has approved Resolution No. 2016-35 (Exhibit “A”) in support of the 

Qualified Target Industry (QTI) program, in which the parameters of the Tax Abatement program shall be 

adhered to.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and considerations herein, and for other 

good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties 

agree as follows: 

 

 Section 1. Recitals.  The above recitals are true and correct and form a material part of this 

Agreement. 

 

 Section 2.  Definitions.  The Project that is subject to this Agreement is comprised of a design 

center and R&D/prototype lab expansion which shall have the meanings as set forth in the Preamble 

hereinabove of this Agreement. 

 

 “Project Property” for purposes of this Agreement shall consist of all facilities, equipment, tools and 

furnishings utilized in or with respect to the Project (whether owned or leased by Qorvo, or any other 

affiliate, including whether owned by finance affiliates and lessors) that are added to the City’s property 

tax rolls on  2017 – 2025.  “Project Property” under this Agreement specifically excludes facilities, 

equipment, tools and furnishings existing on the City’s personal property rolls prior to 1/1/2017, and 

specifically excludes property acquired to replace existing property. 

 

 “General Fund Portion” shall mean City property taxes collected by Orange County government 

from Qorvo and then paid from Orange County to the City, it being understood that the citywide property 

tax rate is currently $3.7876 per $1,000 of taxable value. 

 

 Section 3. Payment.   

 

 3.1 The City shall pay to Qorvo an amount equal to the General Fund Portion of property taxes 

received on the Project by the City for each of eight calendar/tax years, 2017 through 2025, as an economic 

development grant, hereinafter referred to as the “Grant,” pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth 

herein. 

 

 3.2 The City’s obligation to make payments under this Agreement each year shall be contingent 

upon and shall arise only after the following events: 

354



 

3 

 

a. Approval by the State of Florida of Qorvo’s application for participation in the QTI Program. 

 

b. Appropriation by the City Council of Apopka in each applicable fiscal year of revenues for 

the payment of the Grant hereunder.   

 

c. Qorvo’s payment of ad valorem taxes levied against Project Property for the year for which 

an installment payment is requested. Exhibit “B” shows the estimated revenue from each 

year’s tax abatement which runs from about 18% to 40% of the estimated increase of new 

taxes each year, less the QTI job creation payments. 

 

d. Qorvo’s written request for an installment payment for the particular calendar year, and 

provision to the Finance Director and City Administrator of all documents, statements, and 

other evidence of completion of the requirements contained in this Agreement, including, 

without limitation, a description of the Project Property.  Said evidence shall include 

ownership descriptions, property tax account numbers, date or dates that the Project Property 

is added to the tax roll, taxable values, total taxes paid, eligible taxes paid, and copies of tax 

bills on the Project Property. 

  

 3.3 Provided the City Council has appropriated the funds as set forth in 3.2b. above and provided 

the Finance Director has determined that Qorvo has complied with the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, within 15 business days of the receipt of such request for payment the Finance Director shall 

provide a written memo to the City Administrator stating that Qorvo has satisfied the particular 

requirements set forth in Section 3.2 herein.  Within 15 days of receipt of this written memo, the City 

Administrator shall cause the appropriate installment payment for the applicable year as set forth herein. 

 

 3.4 Each of the eight annual potential installment payments by the City shall be an amount equal 

General Fund Portion of the City taxes paid by Qorvo, less the QTI program payment.  In no year shall 

incentive payments exceed the General Fund Portion of tax revenue to the City that is generated by this 

Project. 

 

 3.5 Qorvo shall be eligible to receive Grant Installment payments for the eight calendar/tax years 

2017 through 2025.  The amount of each installment payment shall be as set forth in section 3.4.  Qorvo 

expressly understands that the City will not accrue obligations for annual installment payments for 

calendar/tax years in which it fails to request payment by March 1 following each calendar year.  If, upon 

termination of this Agreement, Qorvo has received an amount of installment payments less than the amount 

set forth in section 3.1, the City shall have no obligation to pay the deficiency. 

  

 Section 4. Records, Audit, Breach, Repayment, Term, Termination and Notice 

 

 4.1 Qorvo shall maintain books, records, and other evidence relating to the Project (“Books and 

Records”) in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, procedures and practices, which 

documents Project Property in a manner that fulfills the requirement of this Agreement. 

355



 

4 

 

 4.2 Qorvo acknowledges the City shall have the right to audit the Books and Records of Qorvo 

from time to time for compliance by Qorvo with the terms, conditions, obligations, limitations, restrictions 

and requirements of this Agreement, which shall extend for a period of three (3) years after the term of this 

Agreement. 

 

 4.3 The City shall, upon reasonable notice, have full access during normal business hours for 

inspection, review and audit of the Books and Records of Qorvo. 

 

 4.4 Qorvo shall be liable for repayment of any funds disbursed under the terms of this Agreement 

that may be deemed by the City to have been disbursed in error. 

 

 4.5 This Agreement shall take effect after it is duly approved by the City and is properly executed 

and delivered by the parties hereto, and after Qorvo provides documentation to the City reflecting the 

fulfillment of the conditions set forth in sections 3.2.a. 

 

 4.6 This Agreement shall terminate on December 31, 2025 (provided, this Agreement shall 

continue to the extent and for such time as Qorvo has the right to receive, and actually receives, the 

installment payment for calendar/tax year 2025). 

 

 4.7 If Qorvo breaches any material term of this Agreement and such breach remains uncured as 

provided in section 4.8, the City may terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement. 

 

 4.8 Before the City may exercise its right of termination, the City shall provide written notice to 

Qorvo of its breach, and Qorvo shall have thirty (30) days thereafter within which to cure the breach or 

default. 

 

 4.9 Waiver by the City of breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall not be deemed 

a waiver of any other or subsequent breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of 

this Agreement. 

 

 4.10 If any court finds Section 166.021, Florida Statutes, invalid for any reason, the City shall 

have the right to terminate this Agreement. 

 

 4.11 Any notices required or allowed herein under shall be in writing and given by certified mail, 

return receipt requested, or in person with proof of delivery to the addressees below or such other addresses 

either party shall have specified by written letters to the other part delivered in accordance herewith: 

 

   CITY:  Glenn Irby, City Administrator 

     City of Apopka 

     120 East Main Street 

     Apopka, FL  32703 

 

356



 

5 

     and 

 

   QORVO: Jaymie McCoy, Corporate Site Services Manager 

     Qorvo Florida, Inc. 

     1818 S. Orange Blossom Trail 

     Apopka, Florida 32703 

    

Section 5. Indemnification.  Each party to this Agreement shall be solely responsible for all 

claims, including but not limited to, suits, actions, legal or administration proceedings, claims, demands, 

damages, liabilities, interest, attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses of whatsoever kind or nature, arising out 

of its acts, errors and omissions in connection with this Agreement, or the acts, errors and omissions of 

anyone acting under its direction, control and on its behalf, and accordingly each party shall defend, 

indemnify and hold harmless the other party, its agents, employees and elected officers, at all times from 

and against any and all liability, loss or expenses arising from said claims.  City’s liability under the 

preceding sentence shall not include punitive damages or interest for the period before judgment.  

Additionally, City shall not be liable pursuant to this indemnity to pay a claim or judgment by any one 

person which exceeds the sum of $200,000 or any claim or judgment, or portions thereof, which, when 

totaled with all other claims or judgments paid by the City arising out of the incident or occurrence, exceeds 

the sum of $300,000. 

 

 Section 6. Assignment.  Qorvo shall not assign any rights or duties under this Agreement to 

any other party without the prior written consent of the City which consent shall be determined in City’s 

sole discretion; provided that Qorvo may, upon written notice to the City, assign this Agreement to any 

other entity controlled by Qorvo, to the extent that the Project is simultaneously assigned to Qorvo, or such 

other controlled entity so long as such entity agrees to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

 Section 7. Laws and Venue. 

  

 7.1 Qorvo will comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and rules and regulations. 

 

 7.2 This Agreement shall be construed, controlled and interpreted according to the laws of the 

State of Florida, and venue shall lie in the Circuit Court of Orange County, Florida, in the event of litigation 

proceedings in connection with this Agreement. 

 

 Section 8. Other Conditions. 

 

 8.1 Any alterations, variations, modifications or waivers of provisions of this Agreement shall 

be valid only when such have been reduced to writing, signed by both parties, and approved by the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 

 8.2 The name of the official payee to whom the City shall issue checks shall be “Qorvo US, 

Inc.” 

 

357



 

6 

 8.3 This Agreement is for the benefit of the City and Qorvo, and no right or cause of action shall 

accrue upon or be reason hereof to or for the benefit of any third party.  Nothing in this Agreement, 

expressed or implied, is intended or shall be construed to confer upon or give any person, corporation or 

governmental entity or agencies, other than the parties hereto, any right, remedy or claim under or by reason 

of this Agreement or any provisions or conditions hereof. 

 

 WHEREFORE, the City of Apopka, Florida and Qorvo have executed this Agreement as of the day 

and year first above written. 

 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

358



 

7 

 

       CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

       By:  City Administrator 

 

 

 

       By:  _______________________ 

        Glenn Irby 

        City Administrator 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By:  _____________________________ 

 Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

359



 

8 

 

       QORVO US, INC. 

 

 

 

       By:  ________________________ 

 

 

Witness: 

 

__________________________________ 

Name:  ____________________________ 

 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 

 

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of _________, 2016 by 

__________________________________ who is personally known to me or has produced 

__________________________________ as identification and who did (did not) take an oath. 

 

 

_____________________________ Notary Public 

Notary Signature   My Commission Expires: 

 

_____________________________ 

Print Name 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

\\apk-fs1\users$\jhitt\Documents\QORVO - Shark II\City Council Approval\Qorvo Economic Development Grant Agreement CC12-7-16 jh.docx 

 

 

 

360



 

9 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-35 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, RECOMMENDING THAT QORVO US, INC. BE 

APPROVED AS A QUALIFIED TARGET INDUSTRY BUSINESS 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 288.106, FLORIDA STATUTES; 

PROVIDING AN APPROPRIATED 10 PERCENT SHARE OF $120,000 

AS LOCAL PARTICIPATION IN THE QUALIFIED TARGET 

INDUSTRY TAX REFUND PROGRAM FOR FISCAL YEARS 2017-

2025; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, in 1994, the Florida legislature passed legislation establishing a “Qualified Target 

Industry Tax Refund Program” (“QTI Program”) to encourage the creation of new high-wage job opportunities 

in Florida by providing “tax refunds” to qualified target industries; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the business under consideration is Qorvo US, Inc. (hereinafter “Qorvo”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, Qorvo was incorporated on January 1, 2015, and is headquartered in Oregon; and 

 

WHEREAS, Qorvo provides standard and custom product solutions for the mobile, infrastructure 

and defense markets, as well as strategic foundry services, and has design, manufacturing, applications 

engineering and sales/support facilities around the globe; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Qorvo has 6.9 billion dollars in assets, 1.2 billion dollars in working capital, 4 major 

manufacturing sites within the United States, 40+ sites worldwide, generates 3 billion dollars in revenue 

with no debt, and employees approximately 7,500 employees; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Qorvo seeks to expand its current manufacturing plant and design center in Apopka 

with a new 33,000 sq. ft. office addition and a 7,000 sq. ft. lab space for design and research (the “Project”); 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, Qorvo will be increasing its production capacity and investing more than 40 million 

dollars in high tech semi-conductor fabrication equipment; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the “Project,” will create, approximately 100 new high-wage jobs in the City for 

engineers for primarily engineers (90), IT (2), Management (5) and Production (3) with an overall average 

site salary of approximately $83,900 and an average engineer salary on site of $85,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, Qorvo intends to give at least 50% hiring priority to qualified City residents and to 

also seek qualified minorities from the Central Florida area to fill its hiring needs; and 

 

 WHEREAS, alternative sites for the Project exist in the Greensboro, NC metropolitan area, and 

financial incentives play a critical role in Qorvo’s decision to establish the Project in Apopka rather than in 

Greensboro, NC. 

Exhibit “A” 

361



 

10 

  

 WHEREAS, Qorvo has applied to the Executive Office of the Governor, Office of Tourism, Trade, 

and Economic Development for approval as a qualified QTI Program applicant, and has applied for $600,000 

in tax refunds from the State of Florida under the QTI Program, representing $6,000 per job pursuant to s. 

196.1995, Florida Statutes; and 

 

 WHEREAS, competition for Qorvo exists outside of Florida, and financial incentives are necessary to 

ensure that the company expands its Project in the City of Apopka rather than elsewhere; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the State contribution consists of $480,000 = 80%, and the local contribution is $120,000 

= 20% to be paid out by Orange County ($60,000 = 10%) and the City of Apopka ($60,000 = 10%) 

 

 WHEREAS, a Resolution from Apopka City Council recommending Qorvo be approved as a target 

industry business and stating that the City agrees to pay 10% of the total tax refund received under the QTI 

Program, not to exceed $6,000 per job pursuant to s. 196.1995, Florida Statutes, is required before Enterprise 

Florida and the Office of Tourism, Trade and Economic Development will consider Qorvo’s application for 

the program which is half of the necessary commitment of local financial support; and 

  

 WHEREAS, Orange County has also agreed to pay 10% of the of the total tax refund, which equates 

to the other half of necessary commitment of local financial support.  

 

  NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA: 

 

 Section 1. The Apopka City Council hereby recommends that the State of Florida Department of 

Economic Opportunity approve Qorvo as a “qualified applicant” under the QTI Program pursuant to s. 288.106, 

Florida Statutes. 

 

 Section 2. The Apopka City Council verifies that the necessary local financial support for the 

Qualified Target Industry Tax Refund Program exists, subject to the terms of this Resolution, in the amount 

of, but not to exceed $60,000, which equals 10% of the local tax refund requested as the local contribution 

from the City of Apopka, and will be provided in the form of ad valorem tax abatement granted to Qorvo 

US, Inc. pursuant to s. 196.1995, Florida Statutes. 

 

 Section 3. The Apopka City Council’s promise to pay the amount specified in this Resolution is 

contingent upon (i) Qorvo receiving the designation as a “qualified applicant” in connection with the QTI 

program, (ii) appropriation by the Apopka City Council in each applicable year authorizing payment of the 

revenues hereunder, (iii) on an annual basis, award by the State of Florida of tax refunds under the QTI 

Program; and, (iv) Orange County pays their 10% share of the local contribution as well for the program for 

each of the applicable years.  

 

 Section 4. Unless otherwise provided in this Resolution, the City shall pay the “local financial 

support” as shown in Exhibit “A” in the following amounts: 

362



 

11 

  Fiscal Year      Amount 

  2016/2017 ………………………………………… $   3,000 

  2017/2018 ………………………………………... $   6,000 

  2019/2020 ………………………………………... $   9,000 

  2020/2021 ………………………………………... $ 12,000 

  2021/2022 ………………………………………... $ 12,000 

  2022/2023 ………………………………………... $   9,000 

  2023/2024 ………………………………………... $   6,000 

  2024/2025 ………………………………………... $   3,000 

  TOTAL      $ 60,000 

 

Such sums shall be paid from any legally available source or sources of revenue other than those specified in 

the QTI Program (or rules promulgated thereunder) as being ineligible for such purpose. 

 

 Section 5. In the event that Qorvo is approved by the State of Florida for tax refunds in an amount 

less than the estimated amount of $600,000, the local financial support to be paid by the City to the Economic 

Development Trust Fund shall be proportionately reduced so that the total tax refund awarded to Qorvo by the 

City will not exceed ten percent (10%) of the total tax refund awarded to Qorvo under the QTI Program. 

 

Section 6.  Severability.   If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution is held to 

be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, that holding in no way shall affect the 

remaining portions of this resolution. 

 

 Section 7.  Effective Date.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 

PASSED AND RESOLVED this ____ day of _____________, 2016, by the City Council of the 

City of Apopka, Florida.  

APPROVED: 

 

 

        _________________________________ 

                                                            Joe Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

363



12 

 

 

Exhibit “A” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

\\apk-fs1\users$\jhitt\Documents\QORVO - Shark II\City Council Approval\Qorvo QTI Resolution No 2016-35 CC11-7-16.doc 

 

364



13 

 

 

 

365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Thank you letter to the Public Services Department from Resident.  
  

373



374



375



376



377



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Thank you letter from Deanna Killian for the Ann Dupee memorial flowers.   
  

378



379



380


	Top
	1. 12-07-16 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES  11/16/16 Council
	11-16-16 Draft.pdf

	1. 12-07-16 - CC - Presentation - Canterwood Industrial Revenue Bond
	Glenn - Canterwood presentation.docx

	1. 12-07-16 - CC - Appropriations/Donations/Grants - COPS
	12_07_16_PD CHP Grant City Council Meeting.docx

	2. 12-07-16 - CC - Appropriations/Donations/Grants - FD
	Committee of One Hundred Staff Report.pdf
	Award Letter.pdf

	1. 12-07-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PD - Mutual Aid Agreements
	12_07_16_Mutual Aid Agreements.docx

	2. 12-07-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PD - Service Weapon
	12_07_16_Gideon Service Weapon.docx

	3. 12-07-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PD - Laser Scanner
	12_07_16_FARO SR.docx
	12_07_16_FARO Quote.docx

	4. 12-07-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PD - Motorola
	12_07_16_Motorola Second Site SR2.docx

	5. 12-07-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS Inmate 1 WS1095
	Inmate 1 WS1095 new.pdf
	W1095 Contract - CR.pdf

	6. 12-07-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS Brush Dr
	Brush Dr Construction.docx
	OCPA Brush Dr.pdf
	Brush Prelim.pdf

	7. 12-07-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS FD F-150 Truck
	PS FD Public Ed Truck.pdf

	8. 12-07-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS - Sanitation Rear Laoader Truck
	Sanitation CNG Rear Loader.docx

	9. 12-07-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS WRF Change Order 1 Tetratech
	Tetratech Change Order 1 Staff Report.docx
	Tetratech Apopka WRF Amend 1 Proposal.pdf

	10. 12-07-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - CD - Agreement - Prof Ser - LDC Update
	1 Clarion LDC Agreement CC 12-7-16.pdf
	2 LDC Apopka Prof  Ser Agree_11-16-16_FINAL_Clarion v3.pdf

	11. 12-07-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Rec - Disposal Form - Park 
	Agenda - Surplus Disposal - Playground (3).docx
	AAC playground 1.JPG.pdf
	AAC Playground 2.pdf

	1. 12-07-16 - CC - Business (Action) - Final Dev. Plan &amp; Dev. Agree. - Emerson North Townhomes - PLACEHOLDER
	1 Emerson North Townhomes - FDP - CC 12-07-16.pdf
	2 Emerson North - FDP Subdivision Plan.pdf
	3 Emerson North - Landscaping.pdf
	4 Wall and Residential Structure Details.pdf
	5 Emerson North DA Final w_Exhibits.pdf
	6 Harmon Rd East Concept Rd &amp; Landscape Design Plan - West.pdf
	7 Harmon Rd East Concept Rd &amp; Landscape Design Plan - East.pdf

	2. 12-07-16 - CC - Business (Action) - Final Development Plan/Plat - Maudehelen, Ph. 4
	1 Maudehelen Ph 4 - FDP  Plat Revision - CC.pdf
	2 Maudehelen -PH.4.pdf
	3 Maudehlen Ph 4 Plat.pdf

	1. 12-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2510 - 2nd Rd - Ch 74 - BTR - Postpone
	1 Ch 74 - Business Tax Receipt - VFH - CC 11-02-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord No 2510 - BTR - Vehicles for Hire.pdf

	2. 12-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2511 - 2nd Rd - Ch. 86 - VFH - Postpone
	1 COO Ch 86 - Vehicle for Hire staff rpt CC 12-0716 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2511 - Vehicles for Hire - FINAL 11-17-16 - inc TNC comments.pdf
	3 Lyft Comments and Amendments to Apopka 09-21-16 CC mtg.pdf

	3. 12-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2532 - 1st Rd - Small Scale FLUM - CFEA
	1 Central FL Expressway Authority-  - FLU - CC - 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2532  - Central FL Expressway Authority - FLU.pdf

	4. 12-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2533 - 1st Rd - Zoning - CFEA
	1 Central FL Expressway Authority -  - ZON - CC  1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2533 - Central FL Expressway Authority  ZON.pdf

	5. 12-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2534 - 1st Rd - Comp Plan Amend - CIE
	1 5 Year CIP Annual Update - CC - 12-7-16.pdf
	2 Ord 2534 CIE Amendment CIP Annual Update.pdf

	6. 12-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2535 - 1st Rd - Zoning - Cravey
	1 Jack &amp; Joyce Cravey -  ZON - CC - 12-07-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2535 - Jack &amp; Joyce Cravey ZON.pdf

	7. 12-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2536 - 1st Rd - Small Scale FLUM - Howard
	1 Marshall Howard -  FLU - CC - 12-7-16.pdf
	2 Ord 2536  - Marshall Howard - FLU.pdf

	8. 12-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2537 - 1st Rd - Zoning - Howard
	1 Marshall Howard Tropical Circle - ZON - CC 12-7-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2537 - Marshall Howard - 1351 Tropicana Circle - ZON.pdf

	9. 12-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2538 - 1st Rd - Small Scale FLUM - Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC
	1 Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC - FLU - CC 12-7-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2538  - Property Industrial Enterprises LLC - FLU.pdf

	10. 12-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2539 - 1st Rd - Zoning - Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC
	1 Property Industrial Enterprises - ZON - CC 12-7-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2539 - Property Industrial Enterprises - ZON.pdf

	11. 12-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2540 - 1st Rd - Zoning - South Pass LLC
	1 South Pass LLC -  ZON - CC 12-7-16.pdf
	2 Ord 2540 - South Pass LLC - ZON.pdf

	12. 12-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2541 - 1st Rd - Vacate - Mid Florida Freezer Ltd.
	1 Mid Florida Freezer - Vacate CC 12-07-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Utility Letters.pdf
	3 Ord 2541 - Mid Florida Freezer - Vacate - Unnamed Road.pdf
	4 Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouse - Recorded 10-13-16 - Developer&apos;s Agreement.pdf

	13. 12-07-16 - CC - Res. #2016-35 - Economic Dev Grant/Tax Abate Agree - Qorvo US, Inc.
	1 Qorvo Grant Agreement Staff Report - CC 12-07-16.docx
	2 Res No 2016-35 - CC 12-07-16.pdf
	3 Qorvo Economic Development Grant Agreement CC 12-07-16 jh.pdf
	4 Signed Orange County EDC ApplicationR1.pdf

	1. 12-07-16 - CC - Not Requiring Action - PS WA Svc Repair Letter
	PS - Thank you Letter from Resident -.pdf

	2. 12-07-16 - CC - Not Requiring Action - Ann Dupee
	Thank you Letter - Ann Dupee - Deanna Killian.pdf

	Bottom

